
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WP will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityotFranklinWIGov

REVISED**
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS

9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA*

TUESDAY,JUNE 15,2021 AT6:30P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Common Council Meeting of June 1, 2021.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business - The following Mayoral appointment has been submitted for Council
confirmation: Lori Domzil, 7495 S. 74th St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Fair Commission for a 3 year unexpired
term, expiring 4/30/24.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council Upon the

Application ofCroatian Eagles Soccer Club, Applicant, for a Special Exception to Certain
Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance.

2. An Ordinance to Amend§ 169-1 of the Municipal Code, "Licenses Required" to Update
the Health Department License Categories and Fees as Referred to by $ 138-28 of the
Municipal Code, "Fees".

3. A Resolution for a Professional Services Agreement With Kueny Architects LLC for
Department ofPublic Works and Fire Needs Assessment Services Project in the Amount
of $23,375.

4. A Resolution Authorizing the Installation of a Fence within the 10 Foot Drainage
Easement Upon Lot 11 ofPlat of Outlots 1 thru 5 ofTumblecreek Subdivision (4259 W.
Pebble Beach Court) (Tax Key No. 739-0011-001) (Stojanovich, Peter and Diane L.,
Applicants).

5. Discussion of Trail Projects Including: S. 116th Street, St. Martin of Tours, W. Forest
Home Avenue, W. Church Street, STH 100, Ryan Creek and Cascade Creek Park.

6. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a2Lot Certified Survey Map, Being a Redivision
of Lot 1 and 2 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Located in the Northwest 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4, and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Addition No. 1 Located
in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21
East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, Excepting Therefrom that
Part Conveyed to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim Deed Recorded as Document
No. 6934853 (City of Franklin, Applicant) (at 5801 West Franklin Drive).



Common Council Meeting Agenda
June 15, 2021
Page2

Common Council Rules of Order.
Handbook for Wisconsin Municipal Officials.
Plan to Update to Existing Policies/Need for Additional Policies, and Common
Council Training/Professional Development Opportunities.

A Resolution for Contract for Services with the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration for Low Income Household Water Assistance Program Vendor Refund
Policy.

Recommendation from the Fair Commission to Hold St. Martins Labor Day Event on
September 5 and 6, 2021.
Recommendations from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of June 14, 2021:
Continued Discussion Regarding the Establishment/Use of the City of Franklin Common
Council Reference Manual:
(a) Common Council Code ofConduct.
(b)
(c)
(d)

+9

7.

8.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses - License Committee Meeting of June 15, 2021.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentaton and details of these agenda 1tems are available m the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www.franklmnw1 gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of d1sabled mdrvduals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

6:30p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
7:00 p.m.

June 17
July 5
July 6
July 8
July 20
July 22

Plan Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m.
City Hall Closed-Independence Day
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting



CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JUNE 1, 2021
MINUTES

C.

ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
MAY 18, 2021

ORGANIZATIONAL E.
BUSINESS

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on June 1, 2021
and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the Franklin
City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin,
Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance: Alderman
Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm,
Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and Alderman
John R. Nelson. Also present were Dir. of Administration Peggy
Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A.
Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at
6:41 p.m.

Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of May 18, 2021 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to confirm the following Mayoral
Appointments:

1. Robert Knackert, 9049 S. 83rd St., Ald. Dist. 1- Civic
Celebrations Commission for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

2. John Bergner, 8501 S. Parkland Dr., Ald. Dist. 4- Civic
Celebrations Commission for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

3. Douglas Clark, 8173 S. 100th St., Ald. Dist. 2- Civic
Celebrations Commission for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

4. MiraKresovic, 8810 S. 51st St., Ald. Dist. 4- Civic
Celebrations Commission for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

5. Edward Holpfer, 8058 S. 77th St., Ald. Dist. 1 -
Community Development Authority for a 4 year term
expiring 08/30/25.

6. Steve Bobowski, 9012 S. Cordgrass Circle W, Ald.
Dist. 6- Economic Development Commission for a 2
year term expiring 06/30/23.

7. Barbara Wesener, 7479 Carter Circle South, Ald. Dist. 5
- Economic Development Commission for a 2 year term
expiring 06/30/23.

8. Janice Coenen, 7316 S. 77th St., Ald. Dist. 2- Parks
Commission for a 3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

9. Carol Brunner, 7473 S. Karth Ct., Ald. Dist. 5 -



Common Council Meeting
June 1, 2021
Page 2

Personnel Committee for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

10. Joel Pesch, 8103 S. Chapel Hill Dr., Ald. Dist. 2 -
Personnel Committee for a 3 year term expiring
04/30/24.

11. Patricia Hogan, 8239 W. Drexel Ave., Ald. Dist. 1 -
Plan Commission for a 3 year term expiring 04/30/24.

12. Adam Burckhardt, 7541 S. 72nd St., Ald. Dist. 5- Plan
Commission for a 1 year term expiring 04/30/22.

13. Maria Imp, 12131 W. Elmwood Drive, Ald. Dist. 6 -
Library Board for a 3 year term expiring 06/30/24.

14. Alan Aleksandrowicz, 3927 W. Glenwood Dr., Ald.
Dist. 4- Library Board for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

15. Michael Karolewicz, 8208 W. Coventry Dr., Ald.
Dist. 2-Library Board for a 3 year term expiring
06/30/24.

Further, to confirm the following appointment of Alderman
Barber:

16. Fred Knueppel, 5659 W. Cascade Dr., Ald. Dist. 5 -
Quarry Monitoring Committee for a 3 year term
expiring 05/31/24.

Seconded by Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

LETTERS AND
PETITIONS

RES. 2021-7732
GRADING
EASEMENT
7508 S. 51 ST ST.

RES. 2021-7733
GRADING
EASEMENT
7575 S 49TH ST.

RES. 2021-7734

F.

G.l.

G.2.

G.3.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve temporary paint striping for
pickleball courts at Lions Legend II. Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Letter from Susan Lance regarding additional Pickleball Courts at
Lions Legend II was placed on file.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7732, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FROM
DREXEL AVENUE, LLC OF 7508 S. 51ST STREET. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7733, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FROM
WALTER HABLEWITZ OF 7475 S. 49TH STREET. Seconded by
Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7734, A



Common Council Meeting
June 1, 2021
Page 3

THE GLEN AT PARK
CIRCLE
ADDENDUM

UDO REWRITE G.4.
AGREEMENT

STH 100 G.5.
PEDESTRIAN IMPR.

W. FOREST HOME G.6.
AVE.
RECONDITIONING
PROJECT

RES. 2021-7735 G.7.
DNR COMPLIANCE
NR-208

MONTHLY VEHICLE G.8.
ALLOWANCE

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AFFIDAVIT OF CORRECTION
FOR THE GLEN AT PARK CIRCLE CONDOMINIUMS
ADDENDUM NO. 4 (DOCUMENT NO. 10921372) TO ALLOW
FOR RELABELING UNIT 9 IN BUILDING 5 BASEMENT FROM
"UNFINISHED BASEMENT" TO "FINISHED BASEMENT" AT
7760 WEST PARK CIRCLE WAY NORTH (TAX KEY NO. 896
1019-000) (RHONDA IWINSKI, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve an Agreement for Professional
Services with Houseal Lavigne Associates LLC for the Unified
Development Ordinance Rewrite Project in an amount not to exceed
$174,255. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct staff to send a letter to the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation indicating path on west side
along STH 100 from W. Prairie Grass Way to W. Loomis Road (STH
36) compliance, subject to ability for the Department of Public Works
to maintain and cost sharing with use of impact fees. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to direct staff to draft a resolution for future
Common Council action reflecting the desired segments for sidewalk,
if any, for W. Forest Home Avenue in a Milwaukee County
Department of Transportation Road Reconditioning Project. Seconded
by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7735, A
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT
OF NATURAL RESOURCES NR-208 COMPLIANCE
MAINTENANCE REPORT FOR YEAR 2020. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize a $400 monthly vehicle
allowance for each of the two current Assistant Fire Chiefs, as well as
future Fire/Assistant Fire Chiefs, subject to the execution of the
'Acknowledgement of Terms for a Monthly Vehicle Allowance' Form,
and to authorize Human Resources to incorporate the allowance into
the Employee Handbook, in lieu of the regular use of a City-owned
vehicle. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, Alderman
Dandrea, Alderwoman Wilhelm, Alderwoman Hanneman, Alderman
Barber, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye; Alderman Mayer Abstained.
Motion carried.

USI INSURANCE G.9. Alderman Barber moved to approve the recommended 2021



Common Council Meeting
June 1, 2021
Page 4

SERVICES

CITY'S EMAIL G.10.
SYSTEM STORAGE
CAPACITY

RES. 2021-7736 G.11.
DEFINED BENEFIT
RETIREMENT PLAN

APRIL 2021 G.12.
MONTHLY
FINANCIAL REPORT

LICENSES AND H.1.
PERMITS

Consulting Services Agreement with USI Insurance Services, LLC, for
employee and retiree health insurance and other ancillary benefits for
the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024, at an annual cost of
$40,000, plus ancillary commissions; and, to authorize the Director of
Administration to execute the appropriate, related contract as needed.
Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to authorize the purchase of additional,
needed storage capacity for Microsoft Exchange, the City's email
system, along with the corresponding extended warranty, through
Paragon Development Systems, Inc. at a total cost of $8,423.40.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7736, A
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-7347 TO REVISE THE INVESTMENT
POLICY STATEMENT FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED
BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to receive and place on file the April 2021
Monthly Financial Report. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following:

Grant 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 Operator License to: Roman J
Arneson, 2109 Clarence Ave., Racine; Geraldine L Arteaga, 4065 S
84th St. Apt #6, Greenfield; Lindsay T Dodovich, 811 N 14th St. Apt
#309, Milwaukee; Matthew J Domanek, 4448 S 44th St., Greenfield;
Pamela J Jablonski, 10500 W Pallottine Dr., Greenfield; Tracy M
Mueller, 4016 S 55th St., Milwaukee; Lillian E Nogalski, 6685 Hill
Park Ct., Greendale; Jamie L Platz, 9364 S Chicago Rd., Oak Creek;
Remy E Ziolkowski, 4651 Vanderheyden Dr., Franklin;

Grant 2021-2022 Operator License to: Dawn M Gottschalk, 9830 W
Morgan Ave., Milwaukee; Michael P Hansen, 2300 Raymond Ave.,
Franksville; Marissa D Kiolbasse, 615 W Riverwood Dr. Apt #312,
Oak Creek; Leonid M Kish, 7821 S Scepter Dr. Apt #4, Franklin;
Josefina Mora, 435 W Aspen Dr. Unit 19, Oak Creek; Kimberly L
Rayls, 414 11th Ave, South Milwaukee; William Tietjen, 11811 W
Birchwood Lane, Franklin; Dragan Vasiljevic, 7033 W Forest Home,
Milwaukee, with a warning letter from the City Clerk; Derek A
Wesson, 721 E Townsend St., Milwaukee; Michael S Williams, 2826 S
Aurene Circle, West Allis; Ian M Wirtz, 6723 S Harvard Dr., Franklin;
Jennifer M Aguilar, 2121 W Grant St. Upper, Milwaukee; Sandra A
Albert, 10520 S 112th Franklin; Cathy J Anderson, 8736 S Country Dr.



Common Council Meeting
June 1, 2021
Page 5

#201, Oak Creek; Jamie M Balistreri, 7712 Dunkelow Rd., Franksville;
Michael J Bartolone, 3842 S Marcy St., Milwaukee; Nicole M Bower,
1875 E Hidden Creek Ct. #102, Oak Creek; Tammy Bresette, 3912 W
Denis Ave., Milwaukee; William J Canales, 722 Mackinac Ave., South
Milwaukee; Joel B Clifford, 3115A S Brisbane Ave., Milwaukee; Eric
J Cottman, 2355 W Birchwood Ave., Milwaukee; Rebecca L Deall,
3725 S 76th Street, Milwaukee; Jeffrey F Dejna, 8417 Willow Pointe
Parkway, Franklin; Kaitlyn J Ehlers, 10512 W Cortez Cir Apt #23,
Franklin; Joshua J Farrell, 7417 S 36th St., Franklin; Jennacy A Frey,
3440 Britton Ridge, Union Gove; Kathleen M Galipo, 7984 S 60th St.,
Franklin; Nicole A Gaus, 1127 N Cass Street #lB, Milwaukee; Susan
C Grainer, 4899 W Maple Leaf Cir., Greenfield; Jacob D Gutierrez,
10508 W Cortez Cir Apt #10, Franklin; Jody L Haase, 2431 W Carroll
Ave., Oak Creek; Jeremy J Haese, 6818 S 118th St., Franklin; Jo Ann
M Hansen, 2300 Raymond Ave., Franksville; Lisa M Hansen, 14000
60th St., Bristol; Patti S Hartung, S102 W21742 Kelsey Dr., Muskego;
Nicholas A Harvey, W6538 N Lakeshore Dr., Elkhorn; Kristen M.
Herwig-Kuzmiuk, 10005 S Jennifer Ln., Oak Creek; Kimberly L Hill,
1240 S 98th St., West Allis; Jacquelyn M Huett, 5970 S 32nd St.,
Greenfield; Lisa M Hutts, 5612 Easton St., Greendale; Ellen L Jensen,
2415 W Hilltop Ln., Oak Creek; Kevin K Kais, 3201 Pleasant View
Cir., Caledonia; Elizabeth B Karampelas, 1435 S Rock Pl., New
Berlin; Jennifer N Knight, 4536 W Hilltop Ln., Franklin; Danielle M
Krueger, N1369 County Rd C, Sharon; Kim T Kuklinski, 7555
Parkview Rd., Greendale; Leah B Kutz, 205 W Aspen Ct. Unit 8, Oak
Creek; Austin J Korth, 8481 S 5th Ave. Trlr 4B, Oak Creek; Joseph M
Ligocki, 10400 S Redwood Ln., Oak Creek; Michael J Lloyd, 353
Maple Grove Ter., Slinger; Marica G Lonzaga, 753 N 116th St.,
Wauwatosa; Thomas R Manske, 5459 Olympia Dr., Greendale; Grace
M Mantyh, 4073 W Rivers Edge Cir #8, Brown Deer; Mark J Matecki,
1007 W Morgan Ave., Milwaukee; Janet Miller, 8995 Woodbridge Dr.,
Greendale; Diane T Mueller-Yarnell, 3574 S 84th St., Milwaukee;
Sarah S Nickolaus, 2935 Cherry Tree Ct., Caledonia; Martha E
Norman, 9741 S Deerpath Dr., Oak Creek; Michael S Norman, 9741 S
Deerpath Dr., Oak Creek; Derek J Olszewski, 4909 W Rawson Ave.,
Franklin; Kim M Olszewski, 3015 Statesman Way #202, Franklin;
Amy M Ottaviani, 28706 Beach Dr., Waterford; Julie M Palivoda,
4551 S 51st St., Greenfield; Eugenia F Parks-Conway, 4001 W
Cleveland Ave., West Allis; Brittany Perleberg, 1522 S 37th St.,
Milwaukee; Craig A Pescheck, 7155 S 49th St., Franklin; Amber L
Pflueger, 4001 S 76th St. Apt #6, Milwaukee; Robin L Raasch, 3168A
$ 25 St., Milwaukee; Charles H Raine, 6435 Lyra Ln., Racine; Debra
A Reichart, 25304 Windsong Ct., Wind Lake; Annamaria E Robel,
26716 Julia St., Wind Lake; Paul J Robinson, 4201 S Taylor Ave.,
Milwaukee; Daniel T Rodriguez, 8014 W Hilltop, Franklin; Laura
Rogers, 6823 W Bennett Ave., Milwaukee; Christine A Rozewicz,



Common Council Meeting
June 1, 2021
Page 6

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

I.

J.

8123 S Legend Dr. Unit A, Franklin; Bobette A Sakiewicz, 9215 S
Orchard Park Cir., Oak Creek; Joseph M Schauer, 8520 W Euclid
Ave., Milwaukee; Victor J Schwan, 7721 S Scepter Dr. Apt 30,
Franklin; James A Seehausen, 1220 Michigan Ave., South Milwaukee;
Rebekah L Shallow, 6125 S Martin Rd., New Berlin; Aksh-Deep
Singh, 8609 W Forest Hill Ave., Franklin; Linda Marie Steeves, 9265
S 92nd St., Franklin; Mark R Steffes, 5344 Sutton Place S., Greenfield;
Alexis M Steitz, S65 W18718 Onyx Dr., Muskego; James A Steuck,
3119 S 122nd St., #19, West Allis; Molly A Tengel, 731 60th St.,
Caledonia; Jennifer E Teske, 16150 W Melody Dr., New Berlin;
Kathryn M Theis, 5774 Elston St., Greendale; Carly P Thompson,
7007 W Coldspring Rd. Apt. #2, Greendale; Tiffany A Torres, S65
W18718 Onyx Dr., Muskego; Sarah J Walkington, 1030 S 74th St.,
West Allis; Melissa K Waulters, 6605 W Howard Ave., Milwaukee;
Kathleen R Wegner, 26545 Nordic Ridge Rd., Wind Lake; Denise R
Widenski, 7335 S Quincy Ave., Oak Creek; Laken Williams, 7409 S
46th St., Franklin; Matthew E Zemla, 3101 W Drexel Ave. Unit 224,
Franklin;

Hold the 2021-2022 Operator License Application of: Jessica A
Hogan, 3338 W Birchwood Ave., Milwaukee, pending appearance; and

Grant Temporary Class B Beer to: Civic Celebration-Fourth of July
Festivities, Franklin Noon Lions Club, William Tietjen, 9229 W
Loomis Rd., July 2, 2021 thru July 4, 2021.

Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the following: City vouchers with
an ending date of June 1, 2021 in the amount of $1,960,901.28; payroll
dated May 21, 2021 in the amount of $406,528.34 and payment of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $429,766.96 plus City
matching payments; estimated payroll dated June 4, 2021 in the
amount of $433,000 and payment of the various payroll deductions in
the amount of $232,000 plus City matching payments; and property tax
disbursements with an ending date of May 28, 2021 in the amount of
$3,001,145.44. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the meeting at 7: 16 p.m.
Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral and Commission Appointments

MEETING
DATE

06-15-21

ITEM NUMBER

E.

The following Mayoral appointment has been submitted for Council confirmation:

Lori Domzil, 7495 S. 74" St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Fair Commission for a 3 year unexpired term, expiring
4/30/24.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointment:

Lori Domzil, 7495 S. 74th St., Ald. Dist. 5 - Fair Commission for a 3 year unexpired term, expiring
4/30/24.

CITY CLERK



Shirley Roberts

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinw info
Frday, May 28, 2021 224 PM
Lusa Huening; Shurley Roberts; SandWesolowski
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard: no
CivicCelebrations: no
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: no
EnvironmentalCommission: no
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: yes
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFaci litiesMonitoringCommittee: no

30

Lori Domzil
4148013950

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

no
Wiki Woolz & Wares
7495 S 74th Street

4148013950

2005

still working!!!

1



EndDateandPositionJob2:
CompanyNameJob3:
AddressJob3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:

Address:
Prioritylisting:

Whyl nterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

See Current Results

Lori Ann Domzil
5-28-2021
Lori Ann Domzil
5-28-2021
7495 S 74th Street

I have been a participating vendor mn the fair for the past 10 years. I am looking
to put my experience to work for the commission.
Owner of Wiki Woolz &Wares, custom apparel small business. Designing and
creating logo wear for small businesses and sport teams. I do vending at local
fairs, festivals, events, as well as manage my online shopping website.

I have over 10 years experience managing hospital gift shops, buying, inventory
and website managing. Currently l am living my dream owning/managing my
own custom shirt/promo item business.

2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

STANDARDS, FINDINGS AND DECISION
OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON
COUNCIL UPON THE APPLICATION OF
CROATIAN EAGLES SOCCERCLUB,

APPLICANT, FORA SPECIAL EXCEPTION
TO CERTAIN NATURAL RESOURCE

PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

MEETING
DATE

06/15/2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.1

At their meeting on May 26, 2021, the Environmental Commission recommended
approval of the Special Exception to natural resource provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance with, conditions as presented at their meeting and as set forth
in the attached City of Franklin Environmental Commission document.

The public hearing for this item was opened at the regular meeting of the Plan
Commission on June 3, 2021. Following a properly noticed public hearing, the
following action was approved: motion to recommend approval of the Croatian Eagles
Soccer Club, Natural Resource Features Special Exception pursuant to the Standards,
Findings and Decision recommended by the Plan Commission and Common Council
consideration of the Environmental Commission recommendations.

At the same meeting, the applicant received site plan approval for the development,
which consists of installation of a new turf surface for one existing soccer field, and
related stormwater detention facilities. Impacts are the result of necessary grading for
this installation. Mitigation will take place on site, and conservation easements have
been submitted for review.

The Plan Commission's recommendation has been reflected in the Decision section of
the attached draft Standards, Findings, and Decision document.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt the standards, findings and decision of the City of Franklin Common Council
upon the application of Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, applicant, for a special exception
to certain natural resource provisions of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance.

Department of City Development: MX



Redraft 6/10/21

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of Croatian Eagles

Soccer Club, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin

Unified Development Ordinance

f Franklin
1s mendation

May 26, 2021 being

aving filed an application
o Section 15-9.0110 of the
to the granting of Special
lated, Wetland, Wetland

r Enhancements to a
nexed hereto and

of Franklin Plan
ion and having made

of the City of Franklin
ne , 021 being annexed hereto

ject of the application for a Special
u 6th Street and 9220 South 76th Street,

ervancy District, and such properties are more
xhibit annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Wherea
Commission,
its recommen
Planning De
and incorporz.,».
E "••-.·Xceun ar+;;
zoned PfP. +;particularly

Whereas, Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, applic
dated December 8, 2020, for a Special Exception pu
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Naviga
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions,
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application
Environmental Commission a
upon the application, a copy
annexed hereto and incorporated

Whereas, 0.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as ame rdinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions ream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated December 8, 2020, by Croatian Eagles

1



t's use of the property and
ther alternatves considered

rty would requre a greater degree of
already improvedfaclity. This is an

any conditions imposed under this Section will:

xisting character of the neighborhood: the proposed
if a Special Exception as requested wzll be conszstent
he nezghborhood, and

Soccer Club, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated
as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present
evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made
by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special
Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rat, · e artificial turffield must
be regulation-sized so that the Croatian park can dult soccer leagues The
stormwater pond is the minimum size required tormwater regulations. All
other alternatves considered to locate the fur re on the property would
require a greater degree ofimpact to natur tld replace an already
zmprovedfacility Thus is an improvemen acts to buffer will
be appropriately miflgated on site.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore
wetland buffer, and wetland se

a. be unreasonably burdensome
practicable alternatives

that there are
to locate t
impact toitar""%3 T•.-C'0#ope. ,,.,
'a. be co

developme
with the exis

b. not effectively u ine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other prope1iies: Thzs is an improvement to an exzsflngfacility Impacts to
buffer wll be appropriately mtigated on ste, and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the prov1s1ons of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: This is an improvement to an exstingfacilty.
Impacts to buffer wzll be approprzately mitigated on site, and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the

2



development: (this findng only applying to an application to improve or enhance a
natural resourcefeature). Not applicable.

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

s or conditions applying
ply generally to other
dered to locate the

ee of impact to
This is an

f improvements at issue;
o allow for play zn wet

,,,,,, elltive in the athletic

, tallowed by the Special Exception:
ue Impacts to buffer will be appropriately

unding property: This is an improvement to an

5. Dt%Thashs an mprovetie
atigeed on site.,
6. Proxirrftt
existingfaci

4.

3. Existing and future uses o
disability of an occu
weather This wil
market and to a

h property is located and neighboring area: The Property
s zoned P-1 Parklan urrounding properties are· Milwaukee County owned land
to the north and east, vacant land zoned R-8 to the south and single-family reszdentzal
to the west.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intend
properties or uses in the same district: A
turffield elsewhere on the property v
natural resources, or would replace
improvement to an existingfacility. Impacts
on ste

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: This is an improvement to an exi. aclity. Impacts to buffer
will be appropriately mitigated on site.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negatve affect upon adjoining
property is perceived.

9. Natural features of the property: This is an improvement to an exstng faclity
Impacts to buffer wll be appropriately mitigated on ste

3



10. Environmental impacts: This is an improvement to an existngfacilty. Impacts to
buffer will be appropriately mitigated on site.

proceedings heretofore had
ants a Special Excepton
itons:

eas _; on the properties to be
o ent to be approved by the

ithin the areas for whch the Special
y OccupancyPermts,

92aPproval(s) from all other applicablet, t h f h h hment w n t e areas or w e. te

reas for which the Special Exception is granted
overned by the approved Natural Resource

r app cable plans for Croatian Eagles Soccer Club,
able provsons ofthe UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.
servation and mitigation information on related plans,

, rmation, and provide for financal suretes for their
ted by $15-4.0103.D

Upon the above find
upon the subject applzcation
for such reliefas ·
1) that the nat
developed be
Common Cou
Except''
2) th
go
Sp
3)
sha
Protecto
applicant,
4) that app
including man
implementation, a

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendaton
and ts reference to the report ofMay 26, 2021 s incorporated herein

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.0110C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impac he entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis wi rd to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any conce the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general inte dinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and int section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission he Environmental
Commission recommendation address t

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecal Excepton s permanent

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2021.

4



ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-

5

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



TO:
DATE:
RE:
APPLICATION:

City of Franklin Environmental Commission

Common Council
May 26, 2021
Special Exception application review and recommendation
Croation Eagles Soccer Club, Applicant, dated: December 8,
2020
(9100 South 76th Street and 9220 South 76th Street)

I. §15-9.0110 of the Unified Development Ordinance Special Exception to
Natural Resource Feature Provisions Application information:

I. Unified Development Ordinance Section(s) from which Special Exception is
requested: The applicant is requesting an exception from §15-4.0101
Natural Resource Protection Standards, and §15-4.0102 Natural Resource
Features Determination which require that identified natural resources
features be protectedfrom impacts ofdevelopment. Specifically, the request s
for an exception to §15-4.0102H WetlandBiiffers

2. Nature of the Special Exception requested (description of resources,
encroachment, distances and dimensions): The proposed artifical turfsoccer
field (355'x 230) and adjacent storm water pond will impact Wetland Setback
and Wetland Buffer areas. The proposedfield is located by the park entrance
The wetland is 66,717 SF (1 53 acres), and requested impacts are to 0 6 acres
ofwetland buffer and 0. 21 acres ofsetback area outside the buffer

A small amount of mature woodland will be impacted by this project.
Woodland impacts to mature woodlands do not exceed the standards of$15
4 0102 and do not require an NRSE at this time

3 Applicant's reason for request: Renovation ofexistng faclites to allow for
play mn wet weather. This will allow the Croatian Society to stay compettve n
the athletzc market and to accommodate larger group sizes

4. Applicant's reason why request appropriate for Special Exception: All other
alternatves consdered to locate the turffield elsewhere on the property would
requve a greater degree ofmpact to natural resources, or would replace an



already improved facility. This is an mprovement to an exsting facility.
Impacts to buffer will be appropriately millgated on site

II. Environmental Commission review of the §15-9.0ll0C.4.f. Natural Resource
Feature impacts to functional values:

1. Diversity of :flora including State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered species: There are no rare species concernsfor this project.

2. Storm and flood water storage: The wetland does not provide substantzal
storage offlood or stormwater. In addition, the wetland is not adjacent to a
lake or stream A stormwater pond wll be providedfor the newfaclity

3. Hydrologic functions: Impacts are to wetland buffer and setback, the wetland
wll not be directly impacted.

4. Water quality protection including filtration and storage of sediments,
nutrients or toxic substances:

5. Shoreline protection against erosion: The wetland does notprovide substantial
storage offlood or stormwater. In addition, the wetland is not adjacent to a
lake or stream.

6. Habitat for aquatic organisms: Impacts to wetland buffer do not directly
impact the wetland itself

7. Habitat for wildlife: Impacts to wetland buffer do not directly impact the
wetland itself

8. Human use functional value: Not applcable Impacts to wetland buffer do not
dzrectly impact the wetland itself The adjonung areas will be protected in
future by a conservaton easement

9. Groundwater recharge/discharge protection: Impacts to wetland buffer do not
dzrectly impact the wetland itself

10. Aesthetic appeal, recreation, education, and science value: Not applzcable.
Impacts to wetland buffer do not directly impact the wetland itself The
adjoining areas wll be protected infuture by a conservaton easement

1 l. State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or species of
special concern: Not applzcable

12. Existence within a Shoreland: Not applicable

2



13. Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or within an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission from time to time:
Not applicable.

III. Environmental Commission review of the $15-10.0208B.2.d. factors and
recommendations as to findings thereon:

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application
to improve or enhance a natural resource feature): The artificial turffield must be
regulation-szed so that the Croatian park can host adult soccer leagues The
stormwater pond s the minimum sze required to meet stormwater regulations.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicants and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: ,or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicants' use of the property
and that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The artificial turffield
must be regulation-sized so that the Croatian park can host adult soccer
leagues The stormwater pond s the mnimum size required to meet
stormwater regulations.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: Ths s an
improvement to an existingfaclity; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: This is an improvement to an existng faclty
Impacts to buffer wll be appropriately mtgated on ste, and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: Thzs zs an improvement to an exsting
faclty Impacts to buffer will be approprately mitigated on ste, and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable
water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co
existence with the development (thus findng only applying to an applcaton to
zmprove or enhance a natural resourcefeature): Not applicable

3



IV. Environmental Commission review of the §15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c.
factors and recommendations as to findings thereon:

I. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative placement
of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: This is an improvement to an existing facility. Impacts to
buffer will be appropriately mitigated on site.

2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to
other properties or uses in the same district: All other alternatives considered to
locate the turffield elsewhere on the property would require a greater degree of
zmpact to natural resources, or would replace an already improvedfaclity. Ths
is an improvement to an exstingfaclity. Impacts to buffer will be approprately
mitigated on site.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: Renovation ofexistingfacilities to allowfor play in wet
weather. This will allow the Croatian Society to stay compettive mn the athletic
market and to accommodate larger group sizes

4. Aesthetics: The aesthetics ofthe property will not be affected

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
This s an improvement to an existing facility. Impacts to buffer will be
appropriately mitigated on site

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: This is an improvement to an
existingfaclity

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: The
Property zs zoned P-1 Parkland Surrounding properties are· Milwaukee County
owned land to the north and east, vacant land zoned R-8 to the south and szngle
famzly reszdentzal to the west

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: none

9. Natural features of the property: This is an zmprovement to an exstng facilty
Impacts to buffer wll be appropriately mitgated on ste

10. Environmental impacts: Thus is an improvement to an existngfaclity Impacts
to buffer will be appropriately mutgated on ste

V. Environmental Commission Recommendation:

4



The Environmental Commission has reviewed the subject Application pursuant to
§ 15-10.0208B. of the Unified Development Ordinance and makes the following
recommendation:

1. The recommendations set forth in Sections III. and IV. Above are incorporated
herein.

2. The Environmental Commission recommends [approval] [denial] of the
Application upon the aforesaid recommendations for the reasons set forth
therein.

3. The Environmental Commission recommends that should the Common
Council approve the Application, that such approval be subject to the
following conditions:

a. Pursuant to § 15-4.0103 and § 15-10.0208.B.3 .b., the applicant shall
provide mitigation for natural resource impacts. As required by $15
4.0103.B.l.d, land upon which the mitigation is to take place shall be
protected by a conservation easement as permanent natural resource
features.

b. The applicant shall submit conservation easements for areas of
preserved natural resources (§15- 4.0103.B.l.d, §15-7.0201.H)
Common Council review and approval, prior to any land disturbing
activities.

c. The applicant shall provide conservation and mitigation information on
related plans, including maintenance information, and provide for
financial sureties for their implementation, as permitted by § 15-
4.0103.D.

The above review and recommendation was passed and adopted at a regular meeting
of the Environmental Commission of the City of Franklin on the 26 day of May,
2021.

Dated this_day of -Jud ,2021.

Attest:

Linda Horn, Vice-Chairman

5



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of June 3, 2021

Site Plan Amendment and Natural Resource Special Exception

RECOMMENDATION: Department of City Development staff recommends approval of the
Site Plan Amendment, and of the request for a Special Exception to Natural Resource Feature
Provisions. Staff recommendations are incorporated into the draft Standards, Findings, and
Decision, and the Draft Resolution, as recommended conditions of approval.

Item C.1.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Planner:

Croatian Park NRSE and Turf Improvement Site Plan
Amendment

9100-9140 S. 76 Street

Fed of Croatian Soc Inc.

Fed of Croatian Soc Inc.

P-1 Park District

Recreational

Milwaukee County owned land to the north and east,
vacant land zoned R-8 to the south and single-family
residential to the west

Recommendation of approval for the proposed Site Plan
amendment. Recommendation to Common Council for
approval of the NRSE.

Marion Eeks, Associate Planner

On December 8, 2020 the applicant filed applications for a Site Plan Amendment and Natural
Resource Special Exception requesting approvals for the installation of a new soccer field surface at
the Croatian Eagles Park located at 9100 S. 76" Street. At that time, it was determined that
stormwater facilities on the property required additional review. The Site Plan and NRSE were
therefore held until April 8, 2021 to allow for completion of stormwater plans.

The property is one of two parcels which make up the Croatian Eagles Soccer Club. This sports club
consists of several soccer fields and practice areas, other sport and game facilities, and a beer garden.
The property is zoned P-1 Parkland. The new surface is intended to allow for play in wet conditions.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS:

The proposal is to improve the surface of the existing soccer field adjacent to the Park entrance. The
site plan for the project area was approved by Plan Commission Resolution 20 l 0-003. The proposed
new amenities meet the dimensional requirements of the P-1 Parkland district. Staff notes that
grading for the dry stormwater basin encroaches on the required 50' front yard setback, however
hardscaping for the outfalls conforms to the setback.



Grading for the new surface will require impacts to nearby wetland setbacks and buffers in the
project area, and a small degree of impacts to mature woodland. The NRSE request is for wetland
impacts; impacts to mature woodlands do not exceed the standards of $15-4.0102 and do not require
an NRSE at this time.

Included in the submittal is information about long-term development plans for the club's facilities
including contemplation of a future expansion of the pavilion, and changes to bocce courts. Revised
stormwater plans include calculations for this future expans1on Staffnotes that the current request 1s
not for approval of these facilities, which will require a future Site Plan Amendment

Site Plan

The Croatian Eagles Soccer Park contains recreational facilities including bocce courts, futsal courts,
and grass soccer fields, as well as a pavilion and parking areas In order to extend their play season,
the Club proposes to convert the field nearest to the entrance into artificial turf. The proposed turf
field is 230' by 3557(75 yards by 115 yards). Installation of turf wll require the expansion of
stormwater facilities, as the turfmust be underlaid with a "granular subbase" and drained
appropriately.

Lighting
The applicants do not intend to install lighting at this time, however the site plan includes locations
of footings for future lighting poles. Installation of future lighting will require site plan review. Staff
notes that lighting design could be in excess of what is allowed by the UDO (Div1s1on 15-5.0400)
with regards pole height or luminaire type Plan Commission may allow for exemptions from
exterior lighting standards for park and recreational facilities provided the applicant demonstrates
that neighboring homes are adequately shielded from light and glare spill-over by either landscaping
or lighting design ($15-5.0403).

Parking
The application under consideration is an improvement to an existing field. As such, no new parking
1s required. Staff notes that future expansion plans for the pavilion may call for adding parking.

Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

The current NRSE request is specific to the soccer field development project area. Future srte
developments may require a subsequent request.

The appltcant completed wetland delineations on June 20 of 2020, and identified six (6) areas of
wetland on the property, which is part of the Root River watershed The wetland are identified as
Wetlands A through F The applicant's request is to impact wetland buffer of Wetland C, located in
the southwest quarter of the parcel, to allow for grading and mstallatton of a turf surface. Wetland C
1s 66,717 SF (1.53 acres). Specifically, the exception is requested for impacts to:

• 0 6 acres of wetland buffer
• 0.21 acres of setback area outs1de the buffer

The WIsconsmn Department ofNatural Resources (DNR) does not regulate wetland buffers or setbacks
The applicant has obtained appropnate DNR permits to allow for gradmg

2



The applicant has provided the attached Natural Resource Special Exception Application, NRPP,
Questionnaire, Project Description, and associated information. Staffwould note:
• The wetland delineation was prepared by an Assured Delineator.
• Required permits from other units of government have been obtamed
• Conservation easements materials for existing natural resources to be preserved must be provided.
• Current impacts to mature woodlands must be included mn future calculations

Natural Resource Mitigation
Mitigation is proposed within the site, by expanding existing wetland buffer areas. $15-4.0103B.4 and
§ 15-4.0103B.5 require that wetland setback and buffer impacts be mitigated by creat10n of new, high
quality areas of setback and buffer in the amount of 1.5 times the area of impact

The applicant will provide mitigation for these impacts, consisting of:
• Creation of 0.9 acres of wetland buffer adjacent to Wetland E, located in the southeast corner of

the parcel.
• Restoration of the setback areas disturbed or created by construction of thus project, by re

establishing native grasses

The packet contains a revised design for the mitigation area, which preserves a greater portion of the
adjoining practice field. Mitigation areas must be protected by a conservation easement, along with
existmg natural resources. Draft easements documents have been provided for mitigation areas.
Mitigation plans Include appropriate maintenance information. Plan Commission may require financial
sureties for that maintenance; staff has included a condrt1on to this effect in the draft Standards and
Findings document.

Staff suggested installation of a rain garden in the dry detention stormwater area; the applicant has
included appropriate plans in revised NRSE and Site Plan materials.

Environmental Commission Review
The Environmental Commission reviewed the matter at their May 26, 2021 meeting. They concurred
with Staffs recommendation that the dry detention area include rain garden plants. The Commission
recommended approval of the request for an NRSE, upon condition of the applicant providing
mitigation, and that natural resources related to the project area be protected by conservation
easements. A draft of their recommendation is provided in the packet These recommendations are
also reflected in the draft Standards, Findings and Decision of the Common Council.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Department of City Development staff recommends approval of the Site Plan Amendment and
NRSE, subject to proposed conditions.

3



Draft 6/3/21

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of Croatian Eagles

Soccer Club, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, applicant, having filed an application
dated December 8, 2020, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section 15-9.0110 of the
City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the granting of Special
Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland, Wetland
Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or Enhancements to a
Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated May 26, 2021 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated June 3, 2021 being annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the properties which are the subject of the application for a Special
Exception are generally located at 9100 South 76th Street and 9220 South 76th Street,
zoned P- Park District and C-1 Conservancy District, and such properties are more
particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated herein; and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
the application for a Special Exception dated December 8, 2020, by Croatian Eagles

1



Soccer Club, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters incorporated
as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of proof to present
evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such findings be made
by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to grant such Special
Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): but rather,

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives: ,· or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: _

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood: the proposed
development with the grant ofa Special Exception as requested will be consistent
with the exsting character ofthe neighborhood; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties: ; and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement: , and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this findzng only applyzng to an applicatwn to zmprove or enhance a
natural resourcefeature).

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: _

2



2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: _

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: _

4. Aesthetics:----------------------------

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property:

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: Residential.

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: No negative affect upon adjoining
property is perceved

9. Natural features of the property: _

10. Environmental impacts:. _

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report of is incorporated herein

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.0ll0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein.

Decision

Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject applcaton, the Common Councl hereby grants a Special Exception
for such relefas is described within Exhibit C, upon the condtons
I) that the natural resourcefeatures and mitigation areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by the

3



Common Council prior to any development within the areas for which the Special
Exception zs grantedprior to the issuance ofany Occupancy Permits;
2) that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development wthin the areas for which the
Speczal Exception s granted;
3) that all development within the areas for whch the Special Exception s granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plans for Croatian Eagles Soccer Club,
applicant, and all other applicableprovisons ofthe UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.
4) that applzcant provide conservation and mitigation information on related plans,
includzng maintenance iriformation, and provide for financial sureties for thezr
implementation, as permitted by $15-4 0103 D.

The duration ofthzs grant ofSpecial Exception is permanent.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---

4



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
PLAN COMMISSION [Draft 5-25-21; Redraft 5-27-21]

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE SITE PLAN FOR PROPERTIES
LOCATED AT 9100 SOUTH 76TH STREET AND 9220 SOUTH 76TH

STREET TO ALLOW FOR CONVERSION OF THE EXISTING GRASS
SOCCER FIELD IN CROATIAN PARK INTO AN ARTIFICIAL TURF

SOCCER FIELD, AND INSTALLATION OF ADDITIONAL LIGHTING
AND STORMWATER FACILITIES

(TAX KEY NOS. 884-9995-000 AND 884-9996-000)
(CROATIAN EAGLES SOCCER CLUB, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin having applied for an amendment to the Site Plan
for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street and 9220 South 76th Street, such Site
Plan having been previously approved on June 9, 2005, by Resolution No. 2005-0080 and
amended thereafter by Resolution No. 2010-003, on April 8, 2010 and 2017-010, on August
3,2017;and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment proposes conversion of the existing grass
soccer field in Croatian Park into a 230 foot by 355 foot artificial turf soccer field, and
installation of additional lighting and stormwater facilities, and the Plan Commission having
reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance
of those express standards and purposes of a Site Plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100
of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, dated May 17, 2021,
as submitted by Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, as described above, be and the same is hereby
approved, subject to the following conditions:

1. Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, successors and assigns and any developer of the
Croatian Eagles Soccer Club atiificial turf soccer field installation within Croatian
Park project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including
fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Croatian Eagles Soccer Club artificial
turf soccer field installation within Croatian Park project, within 30 days of invoice
for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the City of Franklin and the



CROATIAN EAGLES SOCCER CLUB - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2021---
Page 2

Croatian Eagles Soccer Club artificial turf soccer field installation within Croatian
Park project for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street and 9220 South 76th
Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be
developed and as presented for this approval.

3. The Croatian Eagles Soccer Club artificial turf soccer field installation within
Croatian Park project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the plans City
file-stamped May 17, 2021.

4. This site plan amendment is for alterations related to installation of a new turf surface.
Future proposed facilities including lighting will require a new site plan amendment
approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, that the Croatian Eagles Soccer Club artificial turf soccer field installation within
Croatian Park as depicted upon the plans City file-stamped May 17, 2021, attached hereto
and incorporated herein, shall be developed and constructed within one year from the date of
adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder
shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan
for the properties located at 9100 South 76th Street and 9220 South 76th Street, as previously
approved, is amended accordingly.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin this day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Chairman

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



9100 S. 76th Street & 9220 S. 76th Street
TKNs 884 9995 000 & 884 9996 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 435 870 1,740 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



9100 S. 76th Street & 9220 S. 76th Street
TKNs 884 9995 000 & 884 9996 000

- - 11 11 - ~I II I~ JE#
0- - -1. t-"en_- :::c,- t ----/,,,~
en,
-I

I I ... Properties _(;

I I I I ft
/N) L I /-HEE -I -- I I - /- HEGE!IEE--- (- I I I I I I

C
n

--,1 I I I I I 1/

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 435 870 1.740 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyo,:
This map is providedfor informational pwposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



CONSERVATION EASEMENT

CROATIAN PARK

This Conservation Easement is made by and between the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal
corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "grantee," and FEDERATION OF
CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC, hereinafter referred to as "Grantor," and shall become effective upon the
recording of this Grant of Conservation Easement, together with the Acceptance following, with the
Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to §700.40(2)(b) of the Wisconsin
Statutes.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property, located within the City
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, being part of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5
North, Range 21 East, described in Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (protected
property); and

WHEREAS, the grantor desires and intends that the mitigation area shown on the Natural
Resource Protection Plan prepared by Helianthus LLC, last revised May 13, 2021, which is located in
the office of the Department of City Development, be preserved and maintained by the continuation of
land use that will not interfere with or substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workings ofnatural
systems; and

WHEREAS, grantee is a "holder", as contemplated by §700.41 (1 )(b) 1. ofthe Wisconsin Statutes,
whose purposes include, while exercising regulatory authority granted to it, inter alia, under §62.23 and
§236.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the conservation of land, natural areas, open space, and water areas;
and

WHEREAS, the grantor and grantee, by the conveyance to the grantee of the conservation
easement on, over, and across the protected property, desire to conserve the natural values thereof and
prevent the use or development of the protected property for any purpose or in any manner inconsistent
with the terms of this conservation easement; and

WHEREAS, the grantee is willing to accept this conservation easement subject to the
reservations and to the covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set out herein and imposed hereby;

NOW, THEREFORE, the grantor, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitations and of the
mutual covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions subsequently contained, and as an absolute and
unconditional dedication, does hereby grant and convey unto the grantee a conservation easement in
perpetuity on, over, and across the protected property.

Grantee's rights hereunder shall consist solely of the following:
1. To view the protected property in it's natural, scenic, and open condition;
2. To enforce by proceeding at law or in equity the covenants subsequently set forth, including, and in

addition to all other enforcement proceedings, proceedings to obtain all penalties and remedies set
forth under Division 15-9.0500 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, as
amended from time to time, any violation of the covenants subsequently set forth being and
constituting a violation of such Unified Development Ordinance, as amended from time to time, or
such local applicable ordinance as may be later adopted or in effect to enforce such covenants or the
purposes for which they are made, it being agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the
grantee's right to insure compliance with the covenants and conditions of this grant by reason of any
prior failure to act; and

3. To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the protected
property to determine if the grantor is complying with the covenants and conditions of this grant.

1



And in furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights of the grantee, the grantor makes the following
covenants which shall run with and bind the protected property in perpetuity, namely, that, on, over, or
across the protected property, the grantor, without the prior consent of the grantee, shall not:
1. Construct or place buildings or any structure;
2. Construct or make any improvements, unless, notwithstanding Covenant 1 above, the improvement

is specifically and previously approved by the Common Council of the City of Franklin, upon the
advice of such other persons, entities, and agencies as it may elect; such improvements as may be
so approved being intended to enhance the resource value of the protected property to the
environment or the public and including, but not limited to animal and bird feeding stations, park
benches, the removal of animal blockage of natural drainage or other occurring blockage of natural
drainage, and the like;

3. Excavate, dredge, grade, mine, drill, or change the topography of the land or it's natural condition in
any manner, including any cutting or removal of vegetation, except for the removal of dead or
diseased trees;

4. Conduct any filling, dumping, or depositing of any material whatsoever, including, but not limited
to soil, yard waste, or other landscape materials, ashes, garbage, or debris;

5. Plant any vegetation not native to the protected property or not typical wetland vegetation;
6. Operate snowmobiles, dune buggies, motorcycles, all-terrain vehicles or any other types of

motorized vehicles.

To have and to hold this conservation easement unto the grantee forever. Except as expressly limited
herein, the grantor reserves all rights as owner of the protected property, including, but not limited to,
the right to use the protected property for all purposes not inconsistent with this grant. Grantor shall be
responsible for the payment of all general property taxes levied, assessed, or accruing against the
protected property pursuant to law.

The covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this grant shall be binding upon the grantor
and the grantee and their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, and
shall constitute servitudes running with the protected property in perpetuity. This grant may not be
amended, except by a writing executed and delivered by grantor and grantee or their respective personal
representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns. Notices to the parties shall be personally delivered or
mailed by U.S. Mail registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows:

2



To Grantor:
FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC
PO Box 1548
West Milwaukee, WI 53234-1548

To Grantee:
City of Franklin
Office of the City Clerk
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

In witness whereof, the grantor has set his hand and seals this on this date of _
2021.

FEDERATION OF CROATIAN SOCIETIES INC

By:
To»ISL.Av7.K07MNovic.NE5sILNT

STATE OF------------
COUNTY OF--------

Before me personally appeared on the day of, 2021, the above
named TOMISLAV Z. KUZMANOVIC, PRESIDENT of FEDERATION OF CROATIAN
SOCIETIES INC to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged
the same as the voluntary act and deed of said limited liability company.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires _

Acceptance

3



The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Conservation Easement granted and conveyed
to it under and pursuant to the foregoing Grant of Conservation Easement. In consideration of the
making of such Grant of Conservation Easement, the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be
binding upon the undersigned and its successors and assigns and that the restrictions imposed upon the
protected property may only be released or waived in writing by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, as contemplated by $236.293 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the day of
2021.--------~

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: _
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

By: _
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE)

On this day of _, 2021, before me personally
appeared Stephen R. Olson and Sandra L. Wesolowski, who being by me duly sworn, did say that they
are respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said
instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the
foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by its authority, and
pursuant to Resolution File No.adopted by its Common Council of,2021.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

My commission expires _

4



This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin.

Approved as to contents:

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner
Department of City Development

Approved as to form only:

Date

Jesse A. Wesolowski
City Attorney

Date

5



MORTGAGE HOLDER CONSENT

The undersigned, (name of mortgagee), a Wisconsmn banking corporation ("Mortgagee"), as Mortgagee

under that certain Mortgage encumbering the Property and recorded m the Office of the Register of Deeds for

Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on,O, as Document No.

hereby consents to the execution of the foregoing easement and its addition as an encumbrance title to the Property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mortgagee has caused these presents to be signed by its duly authorized

officers, and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as of the day and year first above wntten

Name of Mortgagee
a Wisconsm Banking

STATE OF WISCONSIN
ss

On this, the day of 20_, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared name of officer of mortgagee, the (title of office, 1e VP) of (name of mortgagee), a Wisconsin bankmg

corporation, and acknowledged that (s)he executed the foregomg instrument on behalf of said corporation, by its

authority and for the purposes therein contained

Name: _

Notary Public, State of Wisconsm

y commission eXpres

6



Exhibit A

Legal Description of Property:
The North 662.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of Section 22,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Address: 9100 South 76 Street
Parcel Number: 884-9995-000

Legal Description ofConservation Easement Area:
All that part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North, Range
21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:
Commencing at the northwest corner of said Southwest 1/4; thence South 00°26'01" East along
the west line of said Southwest 1/4, 662.25 feet; thence North 89°17'59" East 60.00 feet to the
east right-of-way line of South 76 Street; thence continuing North 891759° East 1139.13
feet; thence North 00°00'00" East 42.21 feet to the place of beginning of the land hereinafter to
be described; thence continuing North 00°00'00" East 88.00 feet; thence North 90°00'00" East
35.00 feet; thence South 46°07'42" East 46.60 feet; thence South 31 °47'37" West 30.64 feet;
thence South 60°30'46" West 60.26 feet to the place of beginning.

7



Exhibit B
(Conservation Easement Area)

t LL

1"' = 200'0

GRAPHICAL
SCA LE (FEET)

I I

0
O>

e

1- NECORNER
OF SW H4r SEC 22-5 2

~ l &JU'24''12'E 002 25~----~--=~:_,:_=c.::._--=-.:.;;__::c'------'r---rr-------====-7
~ IIi} s46742'4&Gog, Pon I

~ m GON-S!aRVATION!__.,,...-T I

;;; i CA"Er,rNT17- I; «oer srioeeke,"a, t
Hau [
:m: F NOO'oo•oo·E 15 oo 1
.t= t5 Nfl'OIYOIY'E ilfl 00 I
g {! :i NO"OffOO~E 42 21 I
z ,
~ 1g ,

I
I
I
I
I
g
q
i
I
I
I
I
I
t

PARCt.L NUMBER 884-9%-5-tl'.10
AUDRES!i, ')ffl..? SOLJTH 76rll $ TRl:£T

I
I

1a3weea55gr1..-ii@i7sap-IN'NCORNER I"'"
OF SW ~/4 - - ---- - _fl~- - --- --~.1.. f;,!HlO' - - ---- - -

1/eST LINE OF THE S','V 1.'4 5K 22-5-21sec 22 521 soyTH 76TH STREET --sou'26'01·1: ?649 01'
''HILE FLU3LI 3 »

SW CORNER
OF SWi,'4
SEC 22-5-21---~,/'-•

Prepared May 14 2021 Pmnacle Engmeermg GroupJob #2063 00-WI

8



City of Franklin
Department of City Development
**Developer responses in red, 5/12/2021.

Date: May 7, 2021

To: Fredy Jany

From: Department of City Development Staff

RE: Croatian Eagles Soccer Club NRSE and Site Plan Amendment - Staff Comments

Please be advised that staff has reviewed the above applications to revise the surface of
an existing play field approved by PC Resolution 2010-003. Department comments are as
follows for the NRSE and Site Plan Amendment Applications submitted by Fredy Jany
date stamped by the City of Franklin on December 8, 2020. The application was held for
stormwater review until April 8, 2021.

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Requirements:

Site Plan
Site Plans are reviewed according to the standards of Division 15-7.0100, and must
conform to the requirements of the zoning district. The property is zoned P-1 Parkland
with areas of remnant C-1 Conservation zoning, and subject to the setbacks and
dimensional standards of that zoning. In addition, natural resources have their own
protection requirements that must be observed (§15-7.0103Q).

1. The proposed new amenities meet the dimensional requirements of the district.
a. Staff notes that grading for the dry storm water basin encroaches on the

required 50' front yard setback, however hardscaping for the outfalls
conforms to the setback. Comment only, no change.

2. Please revise the proposed site plan to include the location of stormwater facilities
($15-7.0103P), and light poles ($15-7.01031). Theproposed site plan, sheet 2 of5 of
the civilplan set was revised to include the location ofthe storm waterfacility.

3. Please include proposed topography on the proposed site plan(§ 15-7.0103F).
Proposed topography has been added to theproposed site plan.

4. $15-7.0103s and §15-7.0201N requires provision of site intensity calculations as part
of Site Plan applications. Please provide calculations using the procedure described
in Division 15-3.0500. Site intensity calculations and the corresponding tables have
been added to theproposed site plan.

5. Please depict the location of any existing or proposed easements, including
conservation easements, on the site plan (§ 15-7.0103X). Theproposed conservation
easement to cover the mitigation area is now shown on theproposed site plan.
There are no existing easements.



Parking

6. Please clarify where parking is located on the site plan(§ 15-7.0103H). The existing
gravel areas are parking areas and they have been labeled as such on the proposed
site plan.

7. Please note that future expansions to the Pavilion and other amenities may also
require additional parking facilities. Comment only, no change.

Lighting

Lighting must conform to the standards of Division 15-5.0400. Plan Commission may
allow for exemptions from exterior lighting standards for park and recreational facilities
if the applicant can satisfy the Plan Commission that the proposed lighting meets the
standards of§ 15-5.0403.

8. Please provide a graphic depiction of the light cut-off angles(§ 15-5.0402B.4).
Lighting is not proposed at this time. Future potential lights are shown on the
proposed site plan and a note has been added that states that lighting plans will be
submitted to the City if and when lights areformally proposed.

9. Please verify that neighboring residences are adequately shielded from light and glare
spill-over by either landscaping or lighting design(§ 15-5.0403C). No proposed lights
at this time.

Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE)

Natural Resources are protected by the City of Franklin UDO Part 4: Natural Resource
Protection. Impacts to resources in excess of these standards require a Natural Resource
Special Exception under § 15-10.0208; the application currently under review. In
addition to the standards of Part 4, which regulates the degree of allowable disturbance,
and procedures to mitigate or restore such disturbance, the standards of§ 15-7.0201 also
apply to Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) documents to be filed with the City.

I 0. Actively maintained farm drainage and roadside ditches are exempt from City of
Franklin natural resource protection standards (§15-4.0102.J.3). If any of the wetland
areas identified on the NRPP meet this standard and are also deemed artificial or
otherwise exempted by the DNR, please provide documentation to that effect. The
NRPP may then be revised to show the wetland only, indicating that it is exempt, and
impacts related to such wetlands and their associated buffers do not need to be
included in impact and mitigation calculations. The main ditch on the site is not
actively maintained and it has a connection to the Root River so it would not be
considered exempt by DNR. The roadside ditch is connected to this main ditch so
there/ore it would be regulated by association. The other wetlands that could be
exempted are notproposed to be impacted by this project.

11. Please note that future impacts to woodlands will be calculated against the base
woodland area of this NRPP. Comment only, no change.

12. The applicant has provided a mitigation proposal that meets the standards of§ 15-
4.0103.B.5. Comment only, no change.

2



13. Note that §15-4.0103D allows for financial sureties to be required for restoration.
Plan Commission may choose to impose this requirement on landscape and
restoration plans. Staff recommends a maintenance period of a minimum 3 years to
allow for plants to establish. Comment only, no change.

14. Please submit conservation easements for areas of natural resources to be preserved
($15- 4.0103.B.1.d, § 15-7.020 I.H). See attachedfor theproposed conservation
easement over the mitigation area.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)

15. Please include the following required information on the NRPP:
a. location or address of the site(§ 15-7.0201 B) Added to both the existing and

proposedNRPP.
b. Contact information including names, addresses, and telephone numbers of

the owners, lessee and/or developer(s) of the property and of the designer of
the plan. (§ 15-7.0201 C) Added to both the existing andproposedNRPP.

c. Location of existing and proposed easements (§15-7.0201H) including
conservation easements. Theproposed conservation easement to cover the
mitigation area is now shown on the proposed site plan. There are no
existing easements.

16. Please indicate the amount and type of any areas of overlapping natural resource
features(§ 15-4.0102.K) in the table on the NRPP. Added the overlapping areas to
the table.

Additional Comments

Planning Department Comments:

Site Plan

17. §15-7.0102F requires that the proposed developments are situated and designed to
minimize adverse effects upon owners and occupants of adjacent and surrounding
properties. Although the proposed turf and lighting are an improvement to an existing
playfield, § 15-7.0102H allows for adverse effects from a proposed development to be
minimized by landscape buffers (See also§ 15-5.0301.C and D). Staff suggests
inclusion of additional trees to screen new lighting. There are no lights being
proposed at this time.

18. Staff suggests that the applicants install rain garden landscaping in the dry detention
basin. A stormwater seed mix is now identifiedfor the storm water pond area.

19. If new landscaping is provided, please supply a landscape plan (§15-7.0103R). No
new landscaping is proposed.

20. Indicate the current project area on the site plan. Project disturbed areas are now
listed on the proposed site plan.

3



Natural Resource Special Exception

None

Engineering Department Comments:

Engineering requirements must be satisfied before commencing construction.

Storm water approval has been receivedfrom the City, MMSD and the Wisconsin
DNR. City Engineering has approved theplans. The Club is waiting toformally receive
the erosion controlplan until construction is ready to moveforward because
inspections begin when thepermit is received.

4



Croatian Eagles Soccer Club Site Plan Amendment Project Summary
Revised May 12, 2021

This project summary is being prepared as part of the Site Plan Amendment application
for the Croatian Eagles Soccer Club and their proposed installation of a turf soccer field.
The Croatian Eagles Soccer Club uses the complex located at 9100 S. 76" Street in the
City of Franklin. The Federation of Croatian Societies Inc own the property. The
property is known as tax key numbers 884-9995-000 and 884-9996-000

The property currently contains grass soccer fields, a paved driveway, gravel parking
areas, multiple buildings, futsal and bocce courts. The current proposal is to convert one
of the grass soccer fields into a turf field. The next future proposal on the property 1s to
construct a pavilion and additional bocce courts which will replace an existing bar and
stage area. The civil plans and the storm water management plan were prepared to
address both the turf field and the pavilion work but the turf field is the only construction
proposed for 2021. The turf field is needed for the Club to stay competitive with other
clubs in the area. The turf field will provide a field that can be played on in early spring
and late fall or any other times when rain typically causes cancellations due to the field
conditions There are no lights planned at this time but there is potential to add lights in
the future. The civil plans showwhere the lights would be located and rt is noted that if
and when the lights are formally proposed, City approval will be needed The turf field
will be located on the south side of the existing driveway from S 76th St where there is
currently a grass field The proposed field will be 230 'x 355. This field size will allow for
regional and local tournaments along with high school and adult games As part of the
design of the turf field, the wetlands on the property were delineated and Natural
Resource Protection Plan prepared In addition to the proposed site plan amendment,
an application for a Natural Resource Special Exception has been submitted to the City
of Franklin. The special exception is to allow for grading within a wetland buffer so that
the drainage from the field can be routed through a storm water management pond and
then toward the existing wetland complex on the property. The existing elevations in the
area require that a portion of the wetland buffer to be impacted. The storm water
management pond will be a dry pond located west of the turf field in an area that was
not previously used as a soccer field A storm water management plan was prepared to
address the storm water runoff from the turf field along with the future pavilion and
bocce court. The storm water management plan has been submitted to the City
Engineering Department and has received approval from the City, MMSD and the
Wisconsmn DNR

The Club is currently obtaining bids on the turf field work so a final cost for construction
has not been finalized



15-9.0110 Application for a Special Exception Narrative (REV 5/12/2021)

A. Name and address of all adjacent property owners Is attached as a separate document.

B. Plat of survey has been included on the Existing Conditions Plans, attached.

C. All questions have been answered in the attached, updated application form. An
expanded description of the proposed project and project purpose is included below:

Project Description
The Federation of Croatian Soc1et1es Inc has owned and operated the park on 9100 S. 76th Street since
1956. The Croatian Eagles Soccer Club use the park as their home facility. The Club has identified a
need to update and expand their current facilities to meet the needs of their club and to stay
competrtve within the sports industry They would like to update the current location to meet their
needs; but ultimately, they will need to purchase a new property to develop 1f they are unable to
achieve their goals at thus location.

The first goal Is to create an artrfical turf field. The purpose of this 1s to expand the season in early
spring and mn late fall, and after ram events. The ground under natural grass 1s too soft to be playable
during these times. When compared to a grass field, the artificial turf field will dry out quicker due to
a drainage system below the field. The field needs to be NCAA compliant to be able to play regional
and local soccer tournaments on this field Therefore, the size of the field needs to be 75 yards by 115
yards. Thus size wll accommodate hgh school level and adult play. The location of the turf field itself
will be placed south of the existing drveway onto South 76"" Street and outside of the wetland
setback and buffers but the grading for the side slopes will impact a small amount of wetland setback.
Even though the artificial turf field 1s permeable due to the granular subbase, stormwater
management Is required as part of the field construction. A dry stormwater pond will be installed
adjacent to the turf field to address the stormwater requirements The size of the pond 1s the smallest
size needed to meet the stormwater requirements. The western side slope of the stormwater pond
will also impact a small amount of wetland setback. Furthermore, to dram the stormwater pond and
have the elevations of the pond and field fit into the existing topography, the outlet of the pond must
penetrate the wetland setback and buffer. The total amount of buffer that will be impacted Is 0.06
acres and the total amount of setback that will be impacted will be 0.21 acres The existing wetland
buffer and setback areas are areas of mowed lawn and they will be restored as grass. A small amount
of mature woodland (0.05 acres) will be impacted by the grading. The turf field would be constructed
in 2021.

The second goal for the project is to expand the bocce ball courts located mn the northwest portion of
the park. The park currently has two lanes of bocce ball. However, three lanes are required to have
tournaments. Currently, the Federation rents a portable bocce lane unit when they want to hold
tournaments. They would like to add a third permanent lane, so they no longer need to rent a lane to
hold tournaments. The required size 1s 20 feet by 80 feet for the new lane. This project 1s slated for
some time in the near future and has been included so that when they are ready to construct the
court, rt will have been addressed mn the NRPP and stormwater management plan.

The third goal is to replace the ex1st1ng concrete pavilion also located mn the northwest corner of the
park near the bocce ball area. The pavilion would be replaced with a larger and more attractive
structure. The current pavilion seats 80-90 people, and the new proposed pavilion will seat 200. The
current structure 1s made of concrete blocks, and the new pavilion will be designed to increase the
aesthetics of the park The size of the structure required for 200 people 1s 60 feet by 160 feet. Again,
this project will be a future project to be completed at the same time as the bocce ball courts but the
desire was to include 1t in the NRPP and the stormwater management plan The amount of mature



woodland that is proposed to be impacted by the bocce court and the pavilion Is 0.35 acres.

Finally, the Federation would hke to remove the large, dead oak (not mapped) on the south part of
the property as the dead branches are a potential hazard for park users. They would also like to
remove all dead trees (mostly green ash) along the ditch area on the east part of the property, for the
same reason. Since the trees are dead, they have not been included as part of the Mature Woodland
ca lculations.

Alternative locations for the artificial turf soccer field were considered but were rejected for several
reasons. An area on the east side of the north parcel rs large enough for the field, but the Club had
installed a drainage and ImgatIon system in that field already and did not want to waste the money
they had spent on that project by removing It for the new field. The area on the east side of the south
parcel of the park was rejected because rt would have resulted in even more wetland buffer impact.
In add1t1on, the Federation would hke to keep all its developed areas on the north parcel in case they
choose to sell the south parcel at some future date. It Is also more convenient to keep the turf field
near the existing parking areas.

D. Copies of all necessary governmental agency permits for the project.
No wetland or waterway permits are required for this project. The City stormwater consultant approval
letter, the MMSD approval letter and theWisconsin DNR permit have been attached.

Mitigation

Under part 15-4 0103.B 5, mutgation for wetland buffers must be for 100% of the area impacted and
must be mitigated at a ratio of 1.5:1. The required mitigation Is creating a new wetland buffer area
planted with native species and provided with soils of equal or greater quality than those found In the
disturbed wetland buffer. The new buffer must be a minimum of 30 feet wide. The proposed project
will impact 0.06 acres of wetland buffer and 0 21 acres of wetland setback The impacts to the
wetland setback area will be temporary and It will be restored to its current cond1t1on as lawn after
construction Is complete At 1.5:1, a total of 0.09 acres of new wetland buffer must be created as
mItIgatIon We are proposing to create a buffer planting m the southeast corner of Parcel 1, and
adjacent to an existing setback. Four inches of topsoil wll be added to the soul surface and the area
wll be seeded wrth native grasses at the following rates:

Bouteloua curt1pendula / Side-oats grama grass
Elymus canadens1s I Canada rye
Sch1zachynum scopanum / Little bluestem

2lbs/acre
6Ibs/acre
4lbs/acre

Under part 15-4.0102.A 2, Table 15-4.0100, the protection standard for Mature Woodland Is 70%.
The total area of mature woodland on this srte Is 6 21 acres. The required level of protection Is 4 35
acres All the proposed impacts to Mature Woodlands, both for the turf field and the future
expansions of the bocce court and the pavilion are a total of 0.40 acres Therefore, mItIgatIon for the
proposed impacts to the Mature Woodlands would not be required



Names of Adjacent Property Owners:

Gregory & Steven Smith
9410 $. 76 st
Franklin, WI 53132

Milwaukee County House of Correction
8885 S. 68St.
Franklin, WI 53132

Sagar Patel
9088 S. 76 St
Franklin, WI 53132

Richard and Karen Neuhengen
7676 W. Stonewood Circle
Franklin, WI 53132

Justin Lynn Urbas
7660 W. Stonewood Circle
Franklin, WI 53132

Aysha Bhatti
7636 W. Stonewood Circle
Franklin, WI 53132

Robert D Schmitt
7620 W. Stonewood Circle
Franklin, WI 53132

Edward and Helen Garchar
7619 W. Stonewood Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Christopher and Jennifer Herkowsk1
7637 W. Briarwood Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Brent M Johnsen and Nicole M Lancour
7655 W Briarwood Drive
Franklin, WI 53132

Sanatkumar P Patel
7701 W Briarwood Drive
Franklin, WI 53132



State ofWisconsin
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Sturtevant Service Center
9531 Rayne Road
Sturtevant, WI 53177-1833

January 7, 2021

Tomislav Kuzmanovic
Federation ofCroatian Societies Inc.
PO Box 1548
West Milwaukee WI 53234-1548
Via email: tkuzmanovic@hinshawlaw.com

Tony Evers, Governor
Preston D. Cole, Secretary

Telephone (262) 884-2300
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463

TTY Access via relay - 711

SUBJECT: Coverage Under WPDES General Permit No. WI-S067831-05: Construction Site Storm Water Runoff

Permittee Name: Federation of Croatian Societies Inc.
Site Name: Croatian Eagles Soccer Club
FfN: 74828

Dear Permittee:

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources received your Water Resources Application for Project Permits or Notice of
Lntent, on December 21, 2020, for the Croatian Eagles Soccer Club site and has evaluated the information provided regarding
storm water discharges from your construction site. We have determined that your construction site activities will be
regulated under ch. 283, Wis. Stats., ch. NR 216, Wis. Adm. Code, and in accordance with Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (WPDES) General Permit No. WI-S06783 1-05, Construction Site Stonn Water Runoff. All erosion
control and storm water management activities undertaken at the site must be done in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the general permit.

The Start Date of pennit coverage for this site is January 07, 2021 The maximum period of permit coverage for this site is
limited to 3 years from the Start Date. Therefore, permit coverage automatically expires and terminates 3 years from the
Start Date and storm water discharges are no longer authorized unless another Notice of Intent and application fee to retain
coverage under this permit or a reissued version of this permit is submitted to the Department 14 working days prior to
expiration.

A copy of the general permit along with extensive storm water information including technical standards, forms, guidance
and other documents is accessible on the Department's storm water program Internet site. To obtain a copy of the general
permit, please download it and the associated documents listed below from the following Department Internet site:
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/stormwater/construction/forms.html

• Construction Site Storm Water Runoff WPDES general permit No. WI-S067831-05
• Construction site inspection report form
• Notice of Termination form

If, for any reason, you are unable to access these documents over the Internet, please contact me and I will send them to you.

To ensure compliance with the general permit, please read it carefully and be sure you understand its contents. Please take
special note of the following requirements (This is not a complete list of the terms and conditions of the general permit.):

I. The Construction Site Erosion Control Plan and Storm Water Management Plan that you completed prior to
submitting your permit application must be implemented and maintained throughout construction. Failure to do so may
result in enforcement action by the Department.

dnr.wi.gov
wisconsin.gov NatarattyWISCONSIN {!_,PRINTED

'ON RECYCLE
PAPER

e"



2 The general perrmt requires that eros1on and sedunent controls be routinely mspected at least every 7 days, and
w1thm 24 hours after a ramnfall event of0 5 mches or greater Weekly written reports ofall mspectlons must be
mamtamed. The reports must contam the followmg mformatIOll"

a Date, tune, and exact place ofmspection,
b Name(s) of mdrvdual(s) performing inspection,
c An assessment ofthe condition oferosion and sedunent controls;
d A descript1on ofany eros1on and sedunent control mmplementaton and maintenance performed,
e. A descnpt10n of the site's present phase ofconstruction

3 A Certificate ofPermit Coverage must be posted m a conspicuous place on the construct1on s1te The Certificate
of Permit Coverage (WDNR Publication# WT-813) is enclosed for your use

4 When construction activates have ceased and the site has undergone final stabilization, a Notice ofTermmation
(NOT) of coverage under the general permit must be submitted to the Department

It rs rmportant that you read and understand the terms and conditions ofthe general permit because they have the force of law
and apply to you Your project may lose its permit coverage ifyou do not comply with its terms and conditions The
Department may also withdraw your project from coverage under the general permit and require that you obtamn an indrvdual
WPDES permit rnstead, based on the Department's own motion, upon the filing of a wntten petition by any person, or upon
your request

Ifyou believe that you have a rght to challenge thus decision to grant permit coverage, you should know that the Wisconsin
statutes and adminstratrve rules establish time penods within which requests to review Department decisions must be filed
Forjudc1al review ofa dec1s1on pursuant to ss 227 52 and 227 53, WIs Stats , you have 30 days after the decision 1s mailed,
or otherwise served by the Department, to file your petition with the appropnate crrcuit court and serve the petition on the
Department Such a peht10n forJudicial review must name the Department ofNatural Resources as the respondent

To request a contested case hearmg pursuant to s 227 42, Wis Stats, you have 30 days after the dec1s10n 1s marled, or
otherwise served by the Department, to serve a petition for heanng on the Secretary ofthe Department ofNatural Resources
All requests for contested case heanngs must be made mn accordance withs NR 2 05(5), Wis Adm Code, and served on the
Secretary m accordance with s NR 2 03, Wis Adm Code The filmg ofa request for a contested case heanng rs not a
prerequisite for judicial revew and does not extend the 30-day penod for filmg a pet1tuon forud1c1al review

Thank you for your cooperation with the Construct1on S1te Storm Water Discharge Permit Program If you have any
questions concernmg the contents of this letter or the general permit, please contact Peter Wood, PE at (262) 884-2360

Sincerely,

Peter Wood, P. E
Southeast Region
Water Resources Engmeer

ENCLOSURE Certificate ofPermit Coverage

Page 2



0
5. 0

0 C:
C: 3
U) E

N Oa, :::s.:;
""""a, x 00·- > .,.0

0 3 Lt)
Cl) U) N·- N """"C: E - NU t 0.:; 0

"""" N0 ....
t ,..-...0 - r.... ..-C: .. 0 ..-:i... -(.) 0 :i...

0e a,
~ ..-.c .__..,

......
U0 a, E :::s (")a.. ..-C: :::s C: CX)0 - z U I·- 0 -, 5- 3 a,3 - C: ..:i...

C: a, t±
C a,

0 0 - C
0 "'O

.c: 3:;:::; a, (.)
0 0a. :;:::;

cu LL
U) a, t:: cuE

(.)

,_
i..: 1-. a, 0

g a, a, .... - oC
C: Cl) :::J

- C: - Cl.cu 3: 3: 0 - 0::0 3 ·-C 0
E zg5 "'O -C: :i... 0

:!:= C: C: 0 a, z"O co 0
(.) a..2l5 _J

-a,a,
:i...-Cl)
.c:-0r....
.c:-:::s0
Cl)

.c:::s
(.)
:i...
a,
O
0
0
Cl)
U)
a,
0) 0
CO O
w """"

' e o...... z -a, - \\I C:
.c: LL .:; 0
1 6 ·g5°' o e co:Ez u g
> a, '" _J
0 - .., -G oco U)
a, a::: z g
U) z a, "'O
/ -5
ci'.: 3: en <

a,
C:·-_J

i=
a,
.c:-0-C:
0.:;
3
E
:i...
0......
C:

Pe
Z....., CD

C'CS M
- (l)
<( .:: ~
..J ...J ""•<¢

·- 00
~ ~ I
Oz>oco
..J 3: 09

(l) ~OS
0::: .s 0:::
H- g2z£
O>
0 ~ ::::-
z (l) a.

..c -QH;
53
O.cOt/'J 00
0::: ~w

11.
11.
0z
::::,
0r;
0
W LO
I- C?
<C ~g

u!
J: ~ 0t-ocn

I

'Hwen 3:uu .z I- 0::::, - z(/) .....,
z
0 s...
- (l)
I- a.(.)
::::,r
1-
(/)z
0
(.)
(/)
w
Ca.
3:

LL-I-
C:::
w
(.)

-

w
(!)

¢
w>
0
(.)
1--
~

et::
wa..
LL
0
w
1-
<C
(.)



~Harwood(_? Engineering
2"l Consultants

civil landscape design structural mechanical electrical plumbing/fire protection lighting design security technolog

To

From

Date

Re

Sara Arnold, P.E., City of Franklin

Brad Seubert, P.E., Harwood Engineering Consultants

March 25, 2021

Croatian Soccer Club Stormwater Review #3

Items Reviewed:

1. Civil Plan Set (6 pages)
2. Stormwater Management Report

Sara,

Dated: 03-15-21
Dated: 03-22-21

Harwood Engineering Consultants has reviewed the above referenced stormwater management
plans. All outstanding comments have been addressed. We recommend this be approved and
sent to MMSD for final review and approval.

4/.±
Brad M. Seubert, PE
Senior Associate I Civil Project Manager

Page I of 1



[so
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

April 8, 2021

Sara Arnold, PE
Assistant City Engineer
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132-9630

Subject Notice of Approval for Croatian Soccer Club expansion I 9100 & 9220 S 76th St
Stonnwater Management Plan (SWMP)

Dear Ms. Arnold,

The Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) is pleased to notify the City of Franklin
that the Croatian Soccer Club expansion stormwater management plan (SWMP) has been
approved.

In this SWMP, the critical time period starts at 12:00. The accepted start time for the critical time
period is 11:45, which accounts for the run-up to the peak of the storm. In future submittals, the
critical time period must begin at 11:45. In this case, the SWMP is approved as noted. Factors
used in making the decision to approve as noted include:

• The placement of best management practices (BMPs) relative to neighboring sites, the
roadway, existing grading, and new imperious surfaces.

• The area of new impervious surfaces relative to the total area of the site.
• The combination of the stone base trench and pond to manage runoff from the turf field.

The SWMP meets the requirements of Chapter 13 Surface and Stormwater Rules of the District
based on the information submitted on March 26%, 2021.

Dione Garson
Project Engineer



Natural Resource Special Exception Question and Answer Form.

Questions to be answered by the Applicant

Items on this apphcation to be provided m wntmg by the Applicant shall mclude the followmg, as
set forth by Section 15-9 011OC of the UDO

A Ind1cat1on of the sect1on(s) of the UDO for which a Spec1al Except1on 1s requested
A Special Exception is requested for sections 15-4.0102H Wetland Buffers See attached civil plans tor details.

B Statement regarding the Special Exception requested, giving distances and dimensions
where appropnate
Artific ial turf soccer field (355 x 230) and adjacentstorm water pond will impactWetland Setback and Welland Buffer areas A small amount of Mature

Woodland will be impacted by the field and pond Pavilion replacement (60'x160) and bocce court addition (80'x20 ') are slated for future development and

would impact Mature Woodland

C. Statement of the reason(s) for the request
To renovate the existing park facili ties to allow the Croatian Soc iety to stay competitive in the athletic market and to accommodate larger group sizes

They have identified a need for an artific ial turf soccer field which will extend their season of play

D Statement of the reasons why the particular request 1s an appropnate case for a Special
Exception, together with any proposed cond1t10ns or safeguards, and the reasons why the
proposed Special Exception 1s m harmony with the general purpose and mtent of the
Ordmance In addition, the statement shall address any except10nal, extraordmary, or
unusual circumstances or conditions applymg to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or
mntended use that do not apply generally to other properties or uses in the same d1strict,
mcludmg a practicable alternative analysts as follows

1) Background and Purpose of the Project.

(a) Descnbe the project and 1ts purpose m detail Include any pertinent construct1on
plans
The proposed projec t is to construct park improvements to support continued use ofthe park. The improvements consist of one artificial

turf soc cer field a new pavilion and to expand the existing bocce court. See the attached plans and narrative

(b) State whether the project 1s an expansion of an ex1stung work or new
construction
The park has already been developed The proposed proJect is to support continues use of the park.

Page [ I
City of Franklin Natural Resource Spec1al Except1on Question & Answer Form



(c) State why the project must be located m or adjacent to the stream or other
navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback to
ach1eve 1ts purpose
The project has been designed to avoid the wetland buffer and setback to the maximum extentpossible A standard regulation sized soccer

field into the park, and its attendant stormwater pond barely fit into this portion of the park. The setback has been avoided by the soccer

field itself but the grading required for the field will tempo rarily disturb the wetland setback. The pond overflow must cut through setback

and buffer to outlet to the wetland at the proper elevation

2) Possible Alternatives.

(a) State all of the possible ways the project may proceed without affecting the
stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or
wetland setback as proposed.
Three alternative locations tor the artific ial turf field were originally identified The alternative with the least natural resource impact has been

selected One alternative placed the turf field in Parcel 2 to the south More buffer and/or woodland would have been impacted by this

loca tion and the parki ng lot is farther away in the north parcel The east side of Parce l 1 has already been developed with a drainage system

(b) State how the project may be redesigned for the site without affecting the stream
or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland
setback
The projec t has been designed to the minimum size needed to achieve project objectives and to meet stormwater regulations.

(c) State how the proJect may be made smaller while still meetmg the project's
needs
The artificial turf field must be regulation-sized so that the Croatian Park can host adult soccer leagues. The stormwater pond is the minimum

srze required to meet stormwaler regulations.

(d) State what geographic areas were searched for alternative sites
None Improvements to existng park. The Croatian Society would like to stay at their current location

(e) State whether there are other, non-stream, or other non-navigable water, non
shore buffer, non-wetland, non-wetland buffer, and/or non-wetland setback sites
available for development mn the area.
NA

Page 12
City ofFrankhn Natural Resource Special Except10n Quest10n & Answer Form



(f) State what will occur 1fthe project does not proceed
The Croatian Society would lke to make all the improvements at ther existing park. However if thus is not possible then they have indicated

their proJec t goals are important enough to the success of the orgarnzat1on that they would consider purchasing park property elsewhere

including in places outside of the City of Franklin

3) Comparison of Alternatives.

(a) State the specific costs ofeach ofthe possible alternatives set forth under sub 2 ,
above as compared to the ongmal proposal and consider and document the cost
ofthe resource loss to the commumty
The other alternatives that resulted in a loss to more natural resources and have been reJected The alternative that places the turf field in the

far southeast corner of the parkwill impact more buffer area and wetland The alternative that places the turf field mn the east side of Parcel

1was rejected bec ause money has already been spenton drainage and irrigation m that field

(b) State any logistical reasons muting any of the poss1ble alternatives set forth
under sub 2 , above
As stated the location of the parking lot and the main facilities is in the north parcel The preferred alternative places the new turt field

near the parki ng area.

(c) State any technological reasons lmmrting any ofthe poss1ble alternatives set forth
under sub 2 , above
The stormwater pond has to meetminimum size requirements to meet City of Franklin MMSD and WDNR stormwater regulations.

Even though the artificial socce r field is permeable the review agencies are requiring a stormwater pond to handle runoff

(d) State any other reasons lmutmng any of the possible alternatives set forth under
sub 2, above
NA

4) Choice of Project Plan.
State why the project should proceed mstead of any of the possible alternatives hsted
under sub 2 , above, which would avoid stream or other navigable water, shore buffer,
wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback impacts
The current alternative has the least natural resource impacts It also does not destroy the already installed drainage and irrigation system in the east field

Page I 3
City ofFranklm Natural Resource Special Exception Question & Answer Form



5) Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Description.

Descnbe m detatl the stream or other navigable water shore buffer, wetland, wetland
buffer, and/or wetland setback at the site which will be affected, mcludmg the
topography, plants, wildhfe, hydrology, soils and any other sahent mformat1on pertammg
to the stream or other navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or
wetland setback
No wetland will be impacted A total of 0 21acres of wetland setback will be temporarily impacted by grading of the side slopes for

the field and the pond but will be restored to lawn. A total ol 0 06 acres of wetland buffer will be impacted by the overflow structure of the pond

which is required to penetrate both buffers in order to outlet into the wetland at the existing elevation Both the buffer and setback are currently

mowed lawn areas and have no special plants or w1ldhfe

6) Stream or Other Navigable Water, Shore Buffer, Wetland, Wetland Buffer, and
Wetland Setback Impacts.

a) Diversity of flora mcludmg State and/or Federal designated threatened and/or
endangered spec1es @ Not Applicable [] Applicable

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

Storm and flood water storage

Hydrologc functions

Shoreline protect1on against eros1on

Habrtat for aquatic organ1sms

Habitat for wldlife

Human use functional value

~ l\ot Applicable

~ Not Applicable

~ Not Applicable

[i@] Not Applicable

~ Not Applicable

[i@ Not Applicable

D Applicable

D Applicable

D Applicable

D Applicable

D Applicable

D Applicable

Water quality protection mcludmg filtrat10n and storage of sediments, nutnents
or toxic substances [is] Not Applicable [] Applicable

1) Groundwater recharge/discharge protection
~ Not Applicable

J) Aesthetic appeal, recreaton, education, and science value
[@ Not Applicable

D Applicable

□ Applicable

k) Specify any State or Federal designated threatened or endangered species or
spec1es of spec1al concern [@ Not Applcable [] Applicable

1) Existence wIthmn a Shoreland ~ Not Applicable D Applicable

m) Existence within a Primary or Secondary Environmental Corridor or wthmn an
Isolated Natural Area, as those areas are defined and currently mapped by the
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Plannmng Comm1ss1on from tmme to time

~ Not Applicable D Applicable

Descnbe m detail any impacts to the above funct10nal values of the stream or other
navigable water, shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback
The functional values ol the buffer and the setback will notbe impacted by this pro Ject as they are currently mn mowed lawn

Page 14
City of Franklmn Natural Resource Special Exception Quest10n & Answer Form



7) Water Quality Protection.

Descnbe how the project protects the pubhc mterest m the waters of the State of
Wisconsin
A stormwater pond will collect drainage water from the artificial turf field and treat the water before it is released into the wetland

Page 15
City ofFranklm Natural Resource Special Except10n Question & Answer Form



-1111

1111

ii 111

1111

O::'.wuu
0
(/)

(/)
w
__Jffi
(_') :::)
<( __J

wU

z
<(
I-
<(
0
O::'.u

payyw

roe /sj "---...,
arapoor o:w

#\ ',,
'• '---\ '\.,__...,

\
I
I

\ '.. ... \. \.,-.---<'--'
.. '···I \ .....

_....--:~-=----- --~:- --1\""-

-n_
'

uoJua-op20uudM



wo:J ·J6ua-apouu1d·MN,'-A

i
-1111

1111

0wuu
0
(/)

(/)
w
_j(D
('.):::)
<( _J

wU

z
<(
I-
<(
0
0-u

0
w

Q_ U)
Q_ 0
O:'.'. Q_
>O

O:'.'.
Q_

~ 1111a

✓- )

.. -·········", ,I/,.,
/

'

······· I.l ±

g8a2l E

,,, . .
·-.:ilrios I

q-



a:w>
0u

·1111

ii#l

ii 111

ca
:::::,
..J
u
c:::
w
u zu I-<

0 V)
z

(/) 0
(/)

u
V)

w I-<

..J s:
o z
<C I-<

_J

w :.:zz £
<C LL
1--4
I-
<C
0
c:::u

I
i,
!!;I
I';!

ll
£

e!
2,0-

"' &u,,
>· l..Jj:J
u,· zo:

ffii&.
vi uiu , z2:
z G<' z...,.
"-' w

w
...Ju
<<zz
C:

Ii..

(,!)
z
I-<a:: V)rz U
ii d
(,!) 1-
z zwo
10
I-<>I-<u

I

'II~
%
11 z
,1 0i#.I g

+

I- zuop
Octa: u
0. 0

_J

wo:n5ua-apeuu!d"MMM 'P'

(/) Cl)
z w:3 ca..J cc :::::, z
C. :l..J Q.

I- ~ :::::, u ....
1--4 0

"'z ~ c::: V) >-
w <C ..J w I- 39w

u __

: .. a:: u N'"'
w

:lz58~~z :rw w u 1--4 0 u >- V) o.a.v,00

> LL 0 z .........
..J zl3 LL g55

0 :::.:: 0 (/) ,=;6 0 #5°EEw "'o'" t:;c::: z 0 z a: >-E5 °' X(/) w C>wC>::>::>
d 0 ? Zv,zcz::a:C. a: £ 0. w w ,-.. -v 0 gt;> 0 w ..J a: ·Z..-< z 5gzzLL <C w a: LL V) t-< ,:t I-<

1--4 u. a ±gu wo.(!)UU

0 ..... u u. V) <C I= .... z z
z 5ju 39
1--4 I- u > 0. z LL il: .-1NMs::tLl'Ic::: I- <Cw <C 0 1--4 1--4w u ~z 01--4 (/) 0O c:::z
~ uw u



uo 1Due [eUUId MMM ii NVld 3.11S ~NI.LSIX3

1I 111

·1111

/#l3223

! i I
l+I

z
:3
0.
w
I-....
U)
l!)z....
I-
U)....
Xw

co
::,
...Ju
c:::wu zu ....
0 U)z(/) 0
(/) uU)
w ....
...J 31:
(!) z'
<( ....

..I
w ~zz £< u..
1-1

~
0a::u

'u;,
3#s?
le
~
¥
:J,o:
¥

fE us
> oie. Z=$0

ffilz
0
]i UHu z0
z [5
< z['__ UJ

w
...Ju
<(
zz
c:::

u

I

'ill Ii
?th«it.tole

99)800@ sob€wa$¢



NVld 3.US 03S0d0lld

z
:5c..
w
I::;
(/)

Cw
(/)
0c..
0a:c..

·1111

'/lavz 3al

ii 111

3l

Hn
H

~ N LOili

a

j

• cc::,
• ..J
' u'0 ex:]

.± wu3 u z
3± ....

0 (/)zen 0
en u

(/)

w ....
..J s:
(!) z
<( ....

..J
w ~zz ~
<( u..
1-1

~eu
#ln:~
+;°
I

0.¥
:Jio:
C:::•

SJ • o}
> \..J>:J Zlw
0 zaz
CJ uJf
]\ LU ·/
Lw z9
z G< za LU

w
...Ju
<(
zz
E:

II''

.0' ·97t 3.Z~.t'Z.OOS•

~ ..:. ..

!lt!lll,1illi1!1:l11
0JaOoarep#4win}%

~---- ----.\.

\
\ £

( ( \ \
l I ~, \ '

·' I 11 \ .-

\ l_
~ '"""'q •i .

- .cs-+,#e
~••'• .l33H.lS H.l9L H.tnOS it..

l iii !l il r., s -, 1. 5

f ; '
!I l!l:11 I I .1,t

Hp4.4 11

I
ll!-

11 I l•J 'ijl ! I ll•. ·l1 ,,,1,.
M111• ,,,,

4 !li!lilll ii!!·1,1•~ 1•1 %4Io h :11 iil
i i. i i

I
I
i
I.ll
i
I
I

I
i

I ~ I
\ '(

I /1

I 1'
I

1 I I l1
i I I

wo::>16ua apeuu1dM1v1v, ,,.



wo:i 16ua apeuurd M 1ViN1 •i-< NVld 1011.LNO::> NOISOll3 '8 9NIO'v'll9

z
01-<z
33
0:: C.
w..J
oiso
Cl 0::z f.... z
00
3°
\!)

+1+1
! i II
·1111

i

ii 111

cc
:::::,
..Ju
xw
? 2u I-<Q Vl

(/) ~
(/) ~W3:..J
c:, z
<t: ~
uu 3
z 3<t: LL
1-1z
0
0u

~
:J
0
C::'.

Q' \.Jw:> \.JJw. za zz
CJ UJ
J'i UJw za
z G< z_j
"-' UJ

/

rJI

iiw,
9

i~
~
~

c;j ~

11·
~
ci

~i ~::,

3
w
i
i:3 .. l'lo.o ~01- gf:g

2"- !;;
-z ;;I~c,O

~~ zz~,~
wz ±~~;!u. If<4

b V!,
,

I .

t
l
r



·1111

ii

ii 11 1

z
0
,.., VII:; .J::>,..,
0:: ~uu2o
0u

:J0
C::'.

O' \..Jw> \..J..Jw. z0 z2
\2 LU
lJ) LUw z0
z G
~: z

LU
w
....Iu
<(zz
E

il ,r"q

ZW--"'' '»<
8'9atcw so 9 3

C0
:::::,
..Ju
c:::wu zu ,..,
0 VIz(/) 0
(/) u

VI
w ,..,

::w ..J
...J (!) zt::: <(

,..,
± .J

w :,.:
z z
¢ z $
f- <C u..
(/) 1--1

~
0c:::u

z
in
<(
(0

I
0z
0

)

S7IV.L30 NOI.L:JmU.SNO:J

...J

~w
0
z
3
0
I
0zw
I>'.u.

.
UH0i
Z½

±

®

"'z
0;::
0
w
"'0zw
o._

~
0
I>'.
0
I-
z
0;::
0
wzz
0
0
N

z
"'0
<(

iia

i.
!I

l'IGIJRE27

<(

>- '
~""'""" ""'

$

+4
I

.
UH
0°
Zl

±

®

wo:i 16ua apeuu1d·MMN1 "l""

s+!
r:.
ti

~1! #ti



u102 J u3 a[2Uud MMM Y' S1IV.L30 NOI.L:>ml.LSNO:>

ii 11 1

,_
~ Lil Lil

·1111
~ l
z <5s

z a±!
I Ill
+11·1

z
0,-.,
I- Vl
U...J=> ,-.,
ct <(
I- I-
Vl UJ
Z Cl
0u

r
(/)
<(
w
0
f- cof-
(/) ::,
% ...J
z u
0 c::E
(.) ww on:
0g u zz uz ,-.,

0 VlO'.'. z0
O'.'. (/'} 0w

(/'} u
0 Vlz w ,-.,
:, ;:...JI C, ;i(.)z <( ,-.,
w ...J
O'.'. w ::,,:
f- zz $

<C LL
1-1z
0c::u

'isl
I'eg
+3£

~
::i
0
e::::

"' lJllJ> lJ:J
UJ. zD• c;2z
CJ UJ
vi UJ
llJ z0
z lJ
~: z

UJ
w
....Iu
<<zz
1S:

El ..r"f

z
...Izw
0

~~ ==__}- ta
> H

• h.
1 %

&

'±

11
<

z
0
,=uw
(/J
(/J
(/J
0
"'u
0z
0
Q_

"'l±
5
"'%

>-
4
a:
(/J

>-
0zw
Cl

"'w
5w



REVISED MITIGATION
EXHIBIT

Sheet 2 - 5 of proposed
Site Plan



N'1'1d 3.US 03S0d0lld

c...
:::,
0e
lJ
lJz
c2
UJ
UJz
Gz
UJ
w
..Ju
<(zz
E

tJ II,

cc::,
..Ju

"wO 2u ....o2
(f) 8
(f) VJ
uu 5..J
(!) z
<C '.:l
uu 3
z
<( IL
1-1zg
u

z:sc..
w
1-....
VJ
Cw
VJ
0c..
%c..

+Il l

#i

"''s;
__j
J
0
2
Jy.

8
2
<
fC'

ILII

' \
\ I

I
/ I

I /

/ I I
,' 3
+}",I-«

#7r
3s •%,4

I I ~,.
I I !:i
I I f

!l111il.1111l1l::!11
9U@O,@@a rob49won}4

r
5

I i' i If iiI :! l ,, '•

il
1,i I! , ,i ,I I ,,. I l

iii i i liJ!hl
Ith ~el•'l1l 1111!11I' I, UI I •
I Ii t+ fr
i i i ! i

wo::JJBua apeuu,d M,V\M ..,.



June 11, 2021

Property Records Drafting Technician
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds
901 North 9th Street
Milwaukee, WI 53233

RE: Preliminary Review of CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
A redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No 8546 being a redivision of Outlot 1,
Block 11 of the Plat of Franklin Business Park Addition No. 1 and being part of the
Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of Section 26. Town 5 North, Range 21 East City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Tax Key Number(s): 930 1004 000

Applicant: MLG Development Inc

Enclosed are two (2) exact copies of a survey for your preliminary review and comments
along with a check for $75.00.

Please review the enclosed and let us know your recommendations by June 30, 2021.

We appreciate your cooperation.

Sincerely,

Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Principal Planner
Department of City Development

Enclosures

cc: Ronnie Asuncion, Engineering Technician
File



June 11, 2021

Oak Creek-Franklin Joint School District
7630 S 10" Street
Oak Creek, Wi 53154

RE: Certified Survey Map
A redivision of Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No 8546 being a redivision of Outlot 1,
Block 11 of the Plat of Franklin Business Park Addition No. 1 and being part of the
Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of Section 26. Town 5 North, Range 21 East City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Tax Key Number(s):
Applicant:

930 1004 000
Boomtown LLC

To the Attention of the School Board:

Enclosed is a copy of a land division request within your jurisdiction filed with the Department of City
Development of the City of Franklin for your review and recommendation. A copy of the application is
being forwarded to you per the requirement of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance.

The results of review, with objection or no objection, would be appreciated by June 30, 2021.
Comments may be submitted electronically to generalplanning@franklinwi.gov.

If you should have any questions or comments in regards to this matter, please contact the Department
of City Development at 414.425.4024.

Sincerely,

Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Principal Planner
Department of City Development

Enclosures

cc: City of Franklin Engineering Department



blank page



APPROVAL$le
Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Ordinance Amendment to update Chapter 169, License
and Permits associated with the Health Department

MEETING DATE
June 15, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.2.

Background: The Health Department acts as an agent for the State of Wisconsin Department
of Agriculture and Consumer Protection (DATCP) to license and inspect all local food,
lodging, and public water attraction facilities. Various fees fund these Health Department
inspection services. While the amounts for licensing fees were updated in 2020 and remain
unchanged, DATCP has made changes to the fee structure of Wisconsin Administrative Rule
ATCP 75 that changes how Franklin's retail food establishments may be categorized for license
year 2021-2022.

Analysis: The changes to ATCP 75 include the renaming of establishment types as well as the
use of a risk-based licensing scoring system to determine license fees. Each retail food
establishment will be assessed on scale using seventeen categories. Establishments will then
fall into one of three groups which will determine their license fee for the upcoming license
year:
- Simple (score of > 2.5)
- Moderate (score 2.5-4.5)
- Complex (score 4.5 or more)

The majority of the licensed retail food establishments in Franklin were not impacted by the
changes to ATCP 75; however, some were reclassified into another category with the results of
their risk-based assessment score and this will lead to a change in their annual license fee
moving forward. These changes were outlined in communications from the Health
Department to the establishments over the last several months.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval of the
ordinance amendment to update Chapter 169, License and Permits per changes to Wisconsin
Administrative Rule ATCP 75.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests approval of the ordinance amendment to
update Chapter 169, License and Permits associated with the Health Department.

Health Department: CD



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO 2021

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND S 169-1 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, "LICENSES REQUIRED"
TO UPDATE THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT LICENSE CATEGORIES AND FEES AS

REFERRED TO BY § 138-28 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, "FEES."

WHEREAS, $ 138-28. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin provides that "[t]he
fees for licensure and for services and activities performed by the Health Department 1n carrying
out its responsibilities under this code shall be determined by ordinance of the Common
Council, as may be modified from time to time as rt so shall determine, and shall be set forth in
Chapter 169 of this code"; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having found and determined that such amendment is
necessary to correct identified omission and allow the Health Department to update its
application forms, which is part of its operating budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. $169-1. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, Is
hereby amended, under the section indicating fees for Chapter 138,
entitled "Health Department" to read as follows

"Retail Food Establishment - Not Serving Meals License Fees
(Includes Mobile Retail Food Establishment- Not Serving Meals)"

Complex

Moderate

Simple TCS (final product TCS)

Simple Non-TCS (final product Non-TCS)

Prepackaged
Micro Market Single Location
Micro Market Multiple Locations

$1,514.50

$733.50

$503 00

$256.00

$219.50
$44 00
$66.00

"Retail Food Establishment Not Serving Meals Pre-inspection Fees
(Includes Mobile Retail Food Establishment - Not Serving Meals)"

Complex $460.00



Moderate

Simple TCS (final product TCS)

Simple Non-TCS (final product Non-TCS)

Prepackaged

$225 00

$160.00

$130.00

$90.00

"Retail Food Establishment Not Serving Meals Reinspection Fees
(Includes Mobile Retail Fod Establishment - Not Serving Meals)"

Complex

Moderate

Simple TCS (final product TCS)

Simple Non-TCS (final product Non-TCS)

Prepackaged

$280.00

$230.00

$180 00

$155.00

$105.00

"Retail Food Establishment Serving Meals/Mobile Retail Food
Establishment Serving Meals License Fees"
Prepackaged $315 50

Simple

Moderate

Complex

Additional Prep Area

$460 00

$505 00

$711.00

$120 00

"Retail Food Establishment Serving Meals/Mobile Retail Food
Establishment Serving Meals Pre-Inspection Fees"
Prepackaged $130.00

Simple

Moderate

Complex

$165 00

$265.00

$365.00



"Retail Food Establishments Serving Meals/Mobile Retail Food
Establishment Serving Meals Re-Inspection Fees"
Prepackaged $155.00

Simple

Moderate

Complex

$180.00

$230 00

$280 00

"Retail Food Establishments Serving Meals and Not Serving Meals
Miscellaneous Licenses and Services Fees"
Operating without a License $749 00

Operating without a Certified Food Manager

Late License Application

Duplicate License

$150.00

$100.00

$20.00

"Mobile and Transient Retail Food Establishment Licenses or Fees"

Transient Retail Food Establishment License Fee

Mobile Retail Food Establishment Not Serving Meals
Inspection Fee

Mobile Retail Food Establishment Serving Meals
Inspection Fee

Transient Retail Food Establishment Inspection Fee

Late Application Fee

School Kitchen/Department of Public Instruction Fees
Production kitchen site
Satellite kitchen site
School pre-inspection
School reinspection

Swimming Pool License and Fees
Swimming Pool License
Swimming Pool Pre-Inspection
Swimming Pool Reinspection
Swimming Pool Late Application
Swimming Pool Duplicate License

$170.00

$75.00

$125 00

$125.00

$100 00

$579 00
$243.00
$250 00
$200.00

$465.00
$165.00
$155.00
$100.00
$20.00



Whirlpool License
Operating Without a License

Lodging Establishment License Fees
Tourist Rooming House License
Tourist Rooming House Pre-Inspection
Bed and Breakfast License
Bed and Breakfast Pre-Inspection
Hotel/Motel Base License (5-30 rooms)
Hotel/Motel Base License (31-99 rooms)
Hotel/Motel Base License (100-199 rooms)
Hotel/Motel Base License (200+ rooms)
Hotel/Motel Pre-Inspection
Hotel/Motel Reinspection
Educational Campground License
Educational Campground Pre-Inspection
Temporary Campground License
Temporary Campground Pre-Inspection
Late Application
Duplicate License
Operating Without a License

Plan Review
Repeat Plan Review Charge (per occurrence)

$465.00
$749.00

$165.00
$75.00
$195.00
$75 00
$404.00
$558.00
$738.00
$900 00
$395 00
$260.00
$200.00
$85.00
$200 00
$85.00
$100.00
$20.00
$749.00

$100.00

SECTION 2

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of thus ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain In
full force and effect

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance
are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of June. 2O2], by

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of June, 2021.



ATTEST.

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

AYES __ NOES _ ABSENT---



....,
r::::::,
0
E
<4
Cl)
Cl)
LL

r::r::·-C)
Cl) -"_
0n l

Cl)
E
0
C)
Cl)....,
cu
(J

;:
Cl)z

,.,,
Cl)

·.:
0
C)
Cl)....,
0
(J
Cl)
(.)
r::
0r::·-"C...
0

.!!!cuCl) ,,
:::!E 0

0u
zs_
Cl) Cl) Cl)(/) a:: 'i
- Cl) Cl)
Zo - -=:c ,-=ogz:.c Cl) Cl)
.! -g (/)
a6Ecz
- - I
Cl) - -W Cl) C

Cl) Cl)
,, Cl) E
0 LL .Cif Cl) .!

ag·s
a:: ::l in

%g
Cl)
Cl)
C
Cl)
.9-cCl)
E.c••as
Cl)
w,,
0
0
LL

s
Cl)a::

0
LO
t
T"""
LO

><Q)
a.
E
0
(_)

>,

ro
:;:::;
C
Q)....
0a.
ti)
ti)
Q)
0g
a.
"'O
C
ro
0
0
0
0
0.-
0 ti)

O
T""" 0
El')- 0
C '+
Cll (f)
£ (_)
L... I
Q) -.... ti)
Cll "'O

o
o» g
ti) ti)
Q) :::J
Cll 0
ti) "'O

L...
"'O Cll
0 N
0 Cll
LL ..c

0
LO
('I)
('I)
I'-

Q)....
~
Q)
"'O
0
5

"'O
C
Cll
0
0
0

ci --0 ti)
0 "'O
- 0
6 g
CU)
Cll (_)
£ I
o
ti) "'O
Q) 0
"'O 0
C '+-
Cll ti)
0 :::J
0 0
oo %
N Cll
El')- ..c
.... >,
ti) -Cll -•- ....
.... C
ro a>....
ti) 0
Q) a.
Cll ti)

"' ti)
"'O (1)
0 0
o e
LL a.

0
0
('I)
0
LO

(f)
(_)
I
Q)
a.
E

u5

>
Cll
:;:::;
C
Q)....
0a.

I
C
0
C
ti)

"'Q)
0g
a.
Oc ti)
ro -o
0 0og
o_ u,
LO (_)
N 1-,
..,.. C
ti) 0
3e
:: ti)
ro -o
w. O
0 .2
ti) ti)
Q) :::J
U O
ti) "'O

L...-o ro
0 N
0 Cll
LL ..c

0
0co
LO
N

6
(_)
I-

I
C
0z
6
:::J
"'O
0
L...a.
ro
C
~
(f)
(_)
I-

I
C
0z
Q)
a.
E

ci5

>
ro .

:;:::; (f)
C (_)
Q) 1-
.... I
0 09- C0 ti)
0 :::J
- 0
ti) E
ti) Cll
Q) No roe ..c
a. >,
"'O =C Cll
ro c
0 Q)

86- a.LO I
coy r
o g
C .._

o
6"' (_)
Q) t:,
3 o

3
ti) E
-o ro
0 No ro
LL ..c

0
0
cri
T"""

N

"'O
Q)
0)
rox
0roa.
~a..

0)
C
5
1/)

8g
a.
"'O
0
9
C

"'O
Q)
0)
ro
0)
C
(1)....
0z

I

f
0.
.!!! ,,
cu 0
Cl) 0
:::!E LL
g s
2 •Cl) a:: ;;;
(/) Cl) -,... = CG
0 .c Cl)
Z 0 :::!E
, Ea
£ o £
Cl) v, ·-%2.c ::::, Cl)

es%
jS C 0
CG 'u; Z
,;; Cl) ..:.
W CD C
,:::, LL CD
o c Egg£

ss gs
Cl) C ena:: w

Cl)
Cl)
Cl)
LL
C
0
';i
CJz
Cl)
C
£
0.-CCl)
E.c
.!!:cs
Cl)
w,,
0
0
LL

E
Cl)a::

0
0o
(0
¢

><Q)
a.
E
0
(_)

>
ro
:;:::;
C
Q)

6a.
"'"'Q)
0g
a.
"'O
C
Cll
0
0
0
ci
0 --0 ti)
- "'O...... 0

El')- 0_ 
ro u,
£ (_)
L... I
Q) -<U ti)e
o» 2
"' 1/)Q) :::J
ro o
"' "'OL...
"'O Cll
0 No ro
LL ..c

0
0
i.ri
N
N

Q)
ls
Q)
"'O
0
5

"'O
C
ro
0
0
0

o 0 ti)
0 "'O,...:- g
El')- -
C (f)
Cll (_)+o
ti) "'O
Q) 0
"'O .2
C
Cll ti)

o
8
6 %
N Cll
El')- ..c
6 >ro -g- ......,.. C
ro a>....
ti) 0
Q) a.
ro ti)
ti) ti)
"'O (I)
0 0
o e
LL a.

0
0
0
(0
T"""

6
(_)
l-
6
:::J
"'Og
a.
ro
C
..:::-(f)
(_)
I
Q)
a.
E

u5

>
Cll..:;
C
Q)
l
0a.

I
C
0
C
ti)
1/)

8
9a.
"'O -C ti)
Cll "'O
0 0og
o_ u,
LO (_)
N 1-v ,
#
Cll g
Q) -
.... ti)
Cll "O
«. Oog
3 o
Cll 5
ti) E
"O Cll
0 N
0 Cll
LL ..c



0
0
0
("')
..--

<ii
()
I-

I
C
0z
5::,
"O
0....a.
(\1
C
i.+=..__,
Cf)
()
I-

I
C
0z
Q)
a.
Eo

>,
(\1 ,...._

:;::; Cf)
C ()
Q) I-_ I

0 0
0. C--0 1/)o
'+- 0
1/) "O
1/) ....
@ U
0 Ne 2
a. >,
"O =.g
o
0 Q)

+-
o_ g_
LO I
N Cg
C .__go
- 6Go
Q) t:..
3 o

3
E

O
0 N
0 (\1
LL .c

0
0
0
O>

"O
Q)
C)
(\10Ua.
Q)....a..

C)
C
G
1/)
Q)
0g
a.
"O
0
0-s
"O
Q)
C)
U
C)
C
Q)

6z

..,
C
:::s
0
E
<(
Q)
Q)
LL

C
C·-C)
Q) -"_ V
0u, N

Q)
E
0
C)
Q)....,
cuu
;:
Q)z

u,
Q)
'i:
0
C)

9cuu
Q)
(.)
Ccu
C·-'E
0

a,
Cl)
Cl)
LL
C:
0:uza,
C:

2....
C:
Cl)

E.c
.!!!
o
J!
"'w
"CJ
0
0
LL

0
0
C>
<X>
N

X
Q)
a.
E
0
()

>,

nJ
:;::;
C
(I)-0a.
1/)
1/)

8g
a.
"O
C
(\1
0
0
0
ci
0 ,...._
0 1/)
- "O..-- 0
o

C '+-
nJ Cf)
£o
.... 1-(1) ..__,

- 1/)nJ "O9 o
o» g
1/) 1/)
(I) ::,
(I] 0
(/) "O....
"O (I]
0 N
0 nJ
LL .c

0
0
C>
("')
N

Q)-~
Q)
"O
0
5

"O
C
(\1

0
0
0

8c
0 "O......-- g
€% w-
c Cf)
(\1 u
t

(/) (/)
(/) "O
(I) 0
"O 0
C '+n
0 ::,
0 0
oo %
l
~.c
6 >
3 .s- -
- CU D-(/) 0
(I) Q
(\1 (/)
(/) (/)
"O (I)
0 0
o e
LL a

0
0
C>
<X>..--

6
()
l-
6
::,
"O
9a.
(\1
C
i.+=..__,
Cf)
()
I
Q)
a.
Eo

>,
(\1
:;::;
C
(I)-0a.

I
C
0
C
(/)
(/)
(I)
0
9a.a
(\1 "O
o Oog
o_ en
0 O
N 1-v ,
- C(/) 0
(I] C
Q) -:: (/)
(I] "O
«. O
0 .E
(/) (/)
@ 3
(\1 0
(/) "O....
"O (I]
0 N
0 (I]
LL .c

0
0
iri
LO..--

<ii
()
I-

I
C
0z
6::,
"Og
a.
(\1
C
G-..__,
Cf)
()
I-

I
C
0z
Q)
a.
E

u5

>,

(\1 -:;::; en
C ()
(I) I-_ I

0 0
0. C0 (/)o 3
w- O
2 g
g
e 2
0- >
"O =.g
s t
0 Q)
+

o_ g
LO I
y
o g
C L..
(\1 0
E
(/) Cf)
(/) ()
(I) !:::.
(/) (/)
(I) ::,
(\1 0
(/) "O....
"O (\1
0 N
0 (\1
LL .c

0
0
LO
0..--

"O
Q)
C)
(\1
5
0
(\1
a.
~a..

C)
C
5
(/)

8
9a.
"O
0g
C

"O
Q)
a,
(\1
a,
C
(I)-0z

Cl)

.! "'C:a s
:E :.J
iii "'s3
EE
ggz
Cl) Cl)
ti) ti)........
C: C:
Cl) Cl)

E E.c .c
.!!? .!!!::c ::csn
WW
"CJ "CJ
0 0
0 0
LL. LL.

±?3

"'g
LL.
Cl)

"'C:
Cl)
(.)

:.J
.!
5
0
E
3>
C:
I!
:::Jsn
Cl)
0::::

0
LO
LO..--
("')

"O
Q)
C)
Ux
0
(\1
a.»a..

"O
(I)
C)
(\1
$
0
(\1
a.
9a..

0
0
0co
-.:t"

Q)
a.
E
(f)

(I)
0-~
(I)
1/)

.2
(I)
a.
E

u5

0
0
LO
0
LO

Q)-(\1....
Q)
"O
0
2

(I)
0-~
(I)
(/)

::,-(I).....
(\1....
(I)
"O
0
5



0 0
0 0..... 0..... Nr--- .....

ca
9
<(
a.
~a.

>< ca
Q) C
a. 0

±zE O
0 "Ou <(

Q) cau Q)

~
,._
ca

Q) a.Cl) Q)- ,._- a.:::J..... ca><Q) c
a. 0zE "O
0 "Ou <(

...,
C
:::,
0
E
<(
Cl)
Cl)
LL

C
C·-C')
Cl) -"_N
0n y

Cl)·c::
0
C')
Cl)...,
cu
0
;:
Cl)z

n
Cl)·c::
0
C')
Cl)...,
cu
0
Cl)
0
Ccu
C·-"E
0

.!
5
0
:IE
'a; ti)

sz
E

g
EE
CD CDtn tn- -C C
CD CD
E E.c .c

.!!? .!!? ti)
jS .C CD
s s?
ti) ti) C
I o
"CJ "CJ ·-o o 3o o gg
LI. LI. ...

ti)
•- •- Css
CD CD 1..a:: a:: D.

ti)
CD
.!
C
0
>CJz
ti)
Cz
C-Cs
::I
J!
ti)
CDa::

0
0o
(Y).....

"O
Q)
0)
caxucaa.
~a.

"O
Q)
0)
caxucaa.
~a.

0
0oco.....

Q)
a.
E
i:n

--:::J
LL
Q)
a.
Eo

0
0oco
N

Q)-s
Q)
"O
0
~

Q)u-~
Q)

Cl)
--:::J
LL
Q)-~
Q)
o
0
~

0
0
LOco
(Y)

><Q)
a.
E
0
()

Q)u-~
Q)

Cl)

:::J
LL
X
Q)
a.
E
0
()

.!
5
0
E
'a;
CV .!!
CD CV
:IE CD
E=r O
·- C? o ?
U, CD

± %
C C
CD CD
E E.c .c
ti) ti)

n.C .C CDg CD6 u-.
WWc
"CJ "CJ .2
0 0 •0 0 CJ
LI. LI. 8

ti)

J! J! ·=CD CD CDa:: a:: a::

0
0uo
LO.....

"O
Q)
0)
ca
5<ucaa.
~a.

"O
Q)
0)
ca
x<ucaa.
~a.

0
0o
00.....

Q)
a.
E
i:n

Q)u-~
Q)

Cl)

:::J
LL
Q)
a.
Eo

0
0o
(Y)
N

Q)-ca,._
Q)
"O
0
5

0
0o
00
N

><Q)
a.
E
0u

:::J
LL
><Q)
a.
E
0u

ti)

8=
"CJ CDnCV
U) "CJ
- CCV CV
Cl) ti)
:IE CD
Cl u,
C C
•- CDz.g
Cl) ..J
tn U)

.! ::I
C 0
CD CD5
.c =• 8
- U).c ·-J! :IE
U) U)
w ni
"CJ Cl)
0 :IEif Cl
- CssCl) Cl) Cl)a:: tn LI.

CD
CJ-~
Cl)n
I..
0

3
U)
C
Cl)

.2
U)
::I
0
Cl)
Cs
cii
CJ

.!!?
:IE

£
"CJ
C
CV-Cs
::I

i1



0
0
ci
I.O......

0
0
ci
0......

0
0
ci
N

....,
C
::::s
0
E
<C
CJ)
CJ)
LL

0
0
I.O......

0
0
I.O
N......

0
0
I.O
N......

0
0
ci
0......

0 0 0o o
o or-- ,::j" LI')
LI') N N

Cl)

2
C
0
:;::.
(1Je
a.a.
(1J

Cl)-co
...J

Cl)
Cl)u.
C
0
5
Cl)
a.
(/)
C

-CCl)
'Cs
I-

l
C
Cl)
E..c
.0
.0co-(/)w
"O
0
0u.
·ro-Cl)
0:::

(/)

(1J
Cl)
~
0)
C-~
Cl)

en
l
C
Cl)
E..c
.0
.0
U
inw
o
0
0u. Cl)
- Cl)·ro LL
Q) C
0::: .Q
5-= Cl).o c

0 (/)
5=

(/)

(1J
Cl)
5
O>
C

~
Cl)

(J)-0z-CCl)
E..c

.Do

.0co
inw
"O
0
0

LL CD
- Cl)·ro LL
Q) C
0::: Q
5= Cl).o c

0 (/)
5=

l
C
Cl)
uj
Cs
I-

Cl)
Cl)

LL
Cl)
(/)
C
Cl)
(.)

:::i-CCl)
E..c
D
.0
(1J-(/)w
O
0
0u.
·ro-Cl)
0:::

-C(1)
E
.c
.!!:asnw

·c:
0
C)
CJ)....,
cu
0
~
CJ)z

C
C
■- "ClC) 0
CJ) - 0m T"" LLa:-C(1)

·.;; UJ
C (1)

o
I- LL...
"Cl 0

nfll (1)
n

a 5
0 CJ
::i :J

Q)
(/)
C
Q)
(.)

:::i
Q)-U
(.)

a.
:::,
0

C
0
:;::.
3e
0..a.
<(
Q)
(/)
C
Q)
(.)

:::i
Q)-3

...J

....
Q)
0)
3
C
0
5
O
0
0

LL
O
Q)
t;::
E
Q)
CJ
U-:::,
0..c-5
0)
C
:;::.s
Q)
a.
0

-:::,
0..c-5
0)
C
:;::.s
Q)
a.
0

Q)
(/)
C

8
:::i
3

II)
(1)
(1)
LL
C:
0.:;
(J
::::,...-II)C:

I)

°
c,
Cl
I
I I
I I
:.:
C)

#
)
I=~
)
)

~ I
C

Cl)

2
C
0
:;::.
(1J

.9
a.a.
3
Cl)-U

...J

-Cs
:::,
co-(/)
~
>s
0a.
E
Cl)
I-

Cl)

~
C
0
:g
Cl)
a.
(/)
c

-cs
:::,
U
6
Cl)

0:::
Cl)

.0
0
5

Cl)g
C
0
5
Cl)
a.
(/)
rc

Cl)
Cl)

LL
c
0
G
Cl)
a.
(/)
c

Cl)
Cl)

LL
Cl)
(/)
rc
Cl)
(.)

:::i-Cs
:::,co-(/)Cl)

0:::
>
(1J....
0a.
E
Cl)
I-

n
(1)
(1)
LL...
0
UJ
(1)
UJ
C
(1)
CJ
3
C:
l!g
E
(1)
1-
"CI
C
fll

%:a
0
::i

u,
CJ)·c:
0
C)
CJ)....,
cu
0
CJ)
(.)
Ccu
C
■-"E
0

Q)
(/)
C
Q)

.9
Cl)-0.e
a.
:::,
0

c
0
55
3e
a.a.
0
Q)
(/)
c
8
Q)-U...J

....
Q)
0)
U
C
3
E
"O
0g
O
Q)
t;::
t
Q)
(.)

co-:::,
0..c-5
0)
c
:;::.s
Cl)
a.
0

Q)
(/)
C
Q)
.e
3-:::,
0..c-§:
0)
c
55
~
Cl)
a.
0



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 o o o 0 0 o o 0 o o 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 o o o o o 0 o 0 o 0o LI") LI") LI") o o LI") 0 i 00 00 o LI") o o o 0» i I.O LI") LI") LI") LI") o LI") o LI") o
0 I.O I.O LI") 0 ({ I.O t 0 LI") C'I') 0 en I.O 0 ] t ¢ I.O cn r-- I.O r-- 0 00 0 00 0
(] t .-i .-i v et r-- t LI") N. en C'I') rl .-i r-- .-i l (y (] .-i

'ii, QJ

E VI
u

II) 'ii, 'ii, C: C: C:
'ii, 0 0 C: roCl) E 0 E 0 C: 0 ....

Cl) E 0 .... C: s> 0 +J ·.:; LL II) 0 0 0 0 ro 5> u u uO QJCl) 0 .... 0 ·.:; u u QJ u,, QJ Cl) .... 0 .... ro 0 C: QJ QJ a. a. 0
C C: VI LL en l + u ...J 0 a. VI

VI QJ VI ....0 cn I C:
3 C: 0 C: 0 0 0 ..!!:! > QJ VI C: VI C: QJ) I QJ "j"·,.:::; QJ ,, .-i 0 0 ...J VI C: QJ C: "j" a.0 I C: VI uCl) C: u QJ QJ a. C: "j" u QJ QJ -·.:; ro r LI") C'I') .-i (] 0 C: QJ QJ .... QJ
II) 0 • :.:::i VI - - - C: QJ VI 5 E a. QJ QJ :.:::i a.. u .... QJu ;5 C: 3 0 E C: QJ u .... :.:::i a.. llOC QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ C: u ::l VI :.:::iCl) a. u a. ..... QJ II) VI VI VI VI ·.:; ,Q ro :.:::i QJ C: VI C: a.. 3 3 o 3

....
QJ u .e u 75 ~ C: C: C: ro

.9 QJ VI a. a. ro :.:::i Cl) C: C: C: C: u .... :.:::i "j" QJ QJ C: C: ..c:VI C: <( .e II) QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ u a. QJ QJ QJ VI VI  ::l 3 3...J C: VI u u u u a. QJ .... QJ QJ u .... 3 ::l 0 0 u"j" C: QJ ro C a. ro ro VI VI :.:::i 0 0C: QJ a. :.:::i :.:::i :.:::i :.:::i VI a. a.. 0 0 .... .... 30 u QJ .....  .... Cl) C: <( .e ..... C: C: llO llO .... ........ QJ VI .... ..... r r llO llO·,.:::; 0 :.:::i ro o QJ 5 .9 QJ QJ QJ QJ "j" 0..  QJ QJ a. a. QJa.. 0::: ...J VI 0 C: QJ 0 u u VI VI a. a.u 0 VI VI VI VI QJ ..... ro ro llO llO E E 5QJ a. 0 0 6 0 0 C: ..c: ...J ro ro ro ro .... QJ ro 3 ..c: :.:::i :.:::i - ..... C: C: E E QJa. QJ ..... cc cc cc cc a.. 0::: ...J o ..... ..:.: ..:.: ·- ·- ro ro
0 0 0 0 0 5 .... .... u u ro ro 0:::VI Cl u Cl) - - - - 5 QJ QJ ro ro E E u uC: a.. a.. a.. a.. a.. :.:::i - QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ II) ..:.: ..:.: QJ QJ - - esC llO llO llO llO llO - 0 ..... .... .... ..... .... ..... ..... .... Cl) .... .... .... .... 0 0 ro ro >QJ C: C: C: C: C: 0 llO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 llO ro ro cc cc 0 0 C: C: ....

0::: E Ee .E 0 C: ::!!: ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ C: Cl) ~ ~ o 3 0::: 0::: 0 0 ro 3 a..
E E E ·,.:::; ·.:; LL z3 ·.:; .... ....

6 E o - :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- :::::::- C: C: .... .... 0 0 .....
E E E E E .::: ro G ro u 0 0 ro ro VI VI ro ro a. a. ro

0 .... QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ QJ .... .... .... ·.:: ·.:: u u QJ5 ·- QJ - QJ • E E..c: 5 5 5 5 5 ..c: 0 ..... .... ..... ..... .... .... .... .... .2 • o 3  ::l ::l 3 a.
u z a. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a. QJ QJ 0 0 o o QJ (I) QJu Cl) V) V) V) V) V) 0 :::c 1 r r r r r I r 0 ::!!: ~ ~ cc cc I- I- LU LU I- I- 0:::



Wisconsin
Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
Division ofFood and Recreational Safety

October
2020

Administrative Rule Changes to ATCP 75-Fee Structure

Types of Retail Food Establishments

75.08 Retail Food and Establishment
Fees
The new food code utilizes a risk-based licensing
approach. A hazard assessment will be completed
for each type of establishment. Refer to Table A on
page 2 for the questions asked during an
assessment.

Retail food establishment-not serving meals.
This includes mobile retail food establishment-not
serving meals:

• Prepackaged TCS food
• Simple (final food product is Non-TCS)
• Simple (TCS)
• Moderate
• Complex

• Non-TCS food
• TCS food
• Prepackaged TCS food only

Mobile retail food establishment base:

No food preparation or processing activities. All
other base license fees are calculated on the risk
category assessment in Table A on page 2 for the
activity conducted at the base

Vending:

• Vending machine operator
• Vending machine license

Micro markets:

• Single location
• Multiple location (on the same premises)

Retail food establishment-serving meals. This
includes retail food establishment serving
prepackaged meals and mobile retail food
establishments-serving meals:

• Prepackaged TCS
• Simple
• Moderate
• Complex

Transient retail food establishment:

NOT ALL CHANGES ARE INCLUDED IN
THIS FACT SHEET. PLEASE REVIEWTHE
ENTIRE UPDATEDWISCONSIN FOOD

CODE FOUND HERE.

Simple
Moderate
Complex

• 2.5 or less
• 2.5 - 4.5
• 4.5 or more

Exceptions to the hazard assessment include a retail
establishment serving only prepackaged foods or
meals, a transient retail food establishment, a
vending machine, a micro market, or a mobile retail
food establishment base with no food preparation.

A retail food establishment shall be assigned to a
license category by evaluating the complexity of the
retail food establishment based on the criteria
specified in Table A. License assignment by point
value:

Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
Drvis1on of Food and Recreational Safety
2811 Agriculture Dr., P O Box 8911, Madison, WI 53708
https //www datcp wi gov



TABLE A

Determining Factors for Assigning License Categories Points
A retail food establishment that only sells pre-packaged food or meal items, regardless if 0
the food items are time/temperature controlled for safety food.
The retail food establishment does not serve meals and has annual gross food sale 0.25
receipts less than $25,000.
The retail food establishment does not serve meals and has annual gross food sale 0.5
receipts more than $25,000 but not more than $1,000,000.
The retail food establishment does not serve meals and has annual gross food sale 1
receipts more than $1,000,000 but not more than $5,000,000.
The retail food establishment does not serve meals and has annual gross food sale 2
receipts more than $5,000,000.
The retail food establishment contains a self-service salad or food bar.* 1
The retail food establishment handles raw poultry, meat, eggs or seafood. 1
The retail food establishment has a variance under 3-502.11 (special processing 1
methods**) or a required HACCP plan under 3-502.12 (reduced oxygen packaging) of
ATCP 75 Appendix, Wisconsin Food Code.

The retail food establishment has approval under 3-301.11 (bare hand contact plan) or 3- 1
501.19 (time as a public health control plan) ofATCP 75 Appendix, Wisconsin Food
Code.

The retail food establishment has a catering operation or processes, packages, or holds 1
customer preordered meals or food items.
The retail food establishment does cold holding, hot holding, or reheating of 1
time/temperature control for safety foods.
The retail food establishment does cooling of cooked or reheated time/temperature 1
control for safety foods.
The retail food establishment prepares TCS food at its location and transports it to be 1
sold, under the wholesale exemption for retail food establishments.

The retail food establishment serves or sells food that requires food processing activities 1
including chopping, dicing, mixing, slicing, blanching, boiling, cooking, packaging, and
assembly in order for that product to be served or sold.

The retail food establishment has one or more additional areas where food preparation 1
activities occur.
The retail food establishment specifically prepares or serves food to a population 1
identified as highly susceptible, such as a nursing home or day care.
The retail food establishment has a customer seating capacity greater than 75, or operates 1
a motor vehicle drive-thru window for food purchase and service.

Ifonly "condiments" or other non-meal, ready-to-eat, non-TCS foods are offered ordisplayed forcustomerself-service, that display does not qualify as a salad or
food bar, such as, but not lmmtted to, pickles, onions, non-TCS dessert topping, relishes, gamushes, and bakery 1tems

•• Smokmg, cunng, usmg food additives or components forpreservat10n rather than flavor, reduced oxygen packagmg, operatmg a molluscan shellfish hfe-support
system, custom processing, sprouting seeds orbeans, or any othermethod as determined by the department to require a vanance

9e"%%4
±

Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
DrvIsion of Food and Recreational Safety
2811 Agrculture Dr., P O Box 8911, Madison, WI 53708
https //www datcp w1 gov



blank page



APPROVAL
Slw--

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION FORA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH KUENYARCHITECTS LLC FOR

DPW AND FIRE NEEDSASSESSMENT SERVICES PROJECT
IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,375

MTG.DATE
June 15, 2021

ITEM NO.

G.3.
BACKGROUND
The Department of Public Works (DPW) has outgrown its facility at 7979 W. Ryan Road and the
2021 budget includes design work for a Highway Building Addition. Meanwhile, the Fire
Department noted that with the recent and anticipated growth in the southwest part of Franklin, a
fourth fire station is needed. The Fire Department then realized that if the fire station on S. 60"
Street were relocated to the DPW site, the City could be served by three stations, instead of four.
This relocation of a station would have a tremendous cost savings each year of operation.

Staff gleaned many names of reputable architects that have ability to perform a Master Plan and
Space Needs Assessment Study for both the DPW and Fire Departments on the 20 acres of the
7979 W. Ryan Road site. As a result ofthat research, Kueny Architects and the team ofBarrientos
Design and Consulting / Zimmerman Architectural Studios were invited to tour existing Franklin
facilities and interview for the project. After the interviews, Staff representing both departments
made visits to a total 13 facilities of representative projects for the interviewed firms.

ANALYSIS
In the collective opinion of the Staff who conducted the site tours, participated in the interviews,
and visited sample projects, Kueny Architects was selected as the firm most suited to Franklin's
needs for this project. Of special note, Kueny had a project where a Fire Department and DPW
shared a building.

Enclosed is the agreement for Kueny with their proposal as attachment A. The proposal includes
resumes for the project team and projects along with a detailed project approach. The agreement
has a notice to proceed date for June 16, 2021 and is expected to finish in five months (mid
November). One product of this effort will provide a budget number(s) for a future project(s).

There will be opportunity for public input but the Franklin project team to coordinate closely with
Kueny throughout the projectwill comprise the same individuals who interviewed the consultants:

• Shannon Anthione- Assistant Fire Chief ofEMS
• Catherine Header- Fire Administration Assistant
• James Mayer- Assistant Fire Chief of Operations
• Glen Morrow- City Engineer
• Adam Remington- Fire Chief
• Kevin Schlueter- DPW Superintendent
• Ken Skowronski, JR- Board of Public Works member
• Peggy Steeno- Director ofAdministration

FISCAL NOTE
There is $30,000 for "Highway Building Addition - design work" in the 2021 Public Works
Capital Improvement Fund.

RECOMMENDATIONMOTION
A motion to adopt Resolution 2021-a resolution for a professional services agreement with
Kueny Architects LLC for DPW and Fire needs assessment services project in the amount of
$23,375.

Engineering Department: GEM



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 10th day of June, 2021, between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and Kueny
Architects (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose principal place of business is l 0505 Corporate
Drive Suite I 00 Pleasant Prairie WI 53158.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide DPW and Fire Needs Assessment Services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for DPW and Fire Needs
Assessment Services, as described in CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT
dated April 16, 2021, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, with a not-to-exceed budget of $23,375, subject to the
terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $23,375. For services rendered, monthly
invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A. Jon Wallenkamp/Kueny Architects will coordinate the work of the
CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for communication within the
CLIENT' s organization as related to all issues originating under this
AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Jon
Wallenkamp/ Kueny Architects CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other

Page-2



key providers of the Basic Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only
with the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A. Limit of General/Commercial Liability
B. Automobile Liability: Bodily Injury/Property Damage
C. Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile Liability
D. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability
E. Professional Liability

$3,000,000
$1,000,000
$5,000,000

$500,000
$2,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured for General Liability.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent

Page-3



acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes $$ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FORCOMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed as of June
16, 2021.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to

Page-4



continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMSAND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME Stephen R. Olson

TITLE: Mayor

)'','
BY: _

PRINT NAME· Paul Rotzenberg

TITLE D!fector ofFmance and Treasurer

)p']'}

BY. _

PRINT NAME: Sandra L. Wesolowski

TITLE City Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form:

Jesse A Wesolowsk1, City Attorney
DATE: _

KUENY ARCHITECTS LLC

BY_--F----------------

PRINT NAME. Jon Wallenkamp

TITLE: Owner/Partner

DATE· June 10, 2021

Page-5



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION FOR A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
KUENY ARCHITECTS LLC FOR

DPW AND FIRE NEEDS ASSESSMENT SERVICES PROJECT
IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,375

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works (DPW) has outgrown the space at the
facility located at 7979 W. Ryan Road; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has a need for better response times to the southern
portion of Franklin; and

WHEREAS, there is anticipated a benefit for considering the expansion of the DPW
facility in conjunction with a new fire station on the same parcel located at 7979 W. Ryan
Road; and

WHEREAS, Staff representing both departments has solicited consultants,
interviewed firms, and visited sample projects for the represented firms; and

WHEREAS, the Staff collectively selected Kueny Architects, LLC as the firm most
suited to perform a DPW and Fire needs assessment services project for the City of Franklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Agreement with Kueny Architects, LLC. for
Professional Architectural and Engineering Services for the DPW and Fire Needs
Assessment Services project in the amount of $23,375 in the form and content as annexed
hereto, be and the same is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, the Director of Finance and
Treasurer and the City Clerk be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver
said Agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2020.

APPROVED:
ATTEST:



Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYES __NOESABSENT

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor



+-c
Q)

E
..cu
0
++-
<(

>-Dz
LLI". I-:) I
o
Ii~

0 00
0 U')......

• Cl) CW)u = U')
..J ::, C
..J en 'iii..:? .., 0o
Cl) c .!!!

:E Cl) 3:
o...... ·-
<( o •>- aC ._ 0..
Cl) 0 -::, U C
u 0
0 Cit
U') 0
0 Cl)
... ii::



LO co N N t -..0 ON N (") (") Cl) Cl)
I I I I I I I

I (") O N. O 0 (Y) -.:t" LO -.0 N. O (") (") -.:t" O NNr0-.:t"LO O h. N N V NN N N (") (") Cl) (Y) (")
V) V) V) V) V) V) V) V)

Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) ()) ()) ()) ()) ()) ()) Q) ()) Q) ()) Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) ())
0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0)a a a a a a a a a 0 0 a a 0 a a a a a a a a a0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0.... 0....

V)
Q)
(.)-~
Q)
C/)

a
c
0:..=

.5
oC <(
Q)

O

N

V)

6
())

-+-
£u
-<zc

0:..=a
E.....
0
4-
c

><w-

e
C
.!c
8



<c
__J

<(

<
<(

d

e E
0

:::) 0 C

>- (I)

>- 0
:::) ~ ......_
I- 0..: (I)

c C
(I)

t
> 0 0

-, 0....

.....
:::)
0

0

E
Ill
0
V)

(1'

6.s::.
V)

.s::.
t
0z

or:!"co
=II:
66

-0
2u

-0
2u

i c c
0

(I)

:;::: 9
C
Cl)

.....

= 0
<(

(I)
0

C
0
ii::

C
0:;:::
0
~
Cl)·=LI.
0d
g
0:=:
.9a::,
A..

-+-c
(I)

E
t:
0
Q_
(I)
0
0)
C·;::
(I)

2o
·- 0
0) 0
Ca,:: Nw II)
c .o= E (Y)

O II)
C -g9=
LL • '=-.o:!:: ~ 0
Uo-i'.i::

N
0
N

o
·;::
Q_
<(



0
0
0o
0o

ii
t,
<(
ai=::w>
0u
wuz
<(
0
::::,
ti)z

0
0

I...
Cl)
0»
0
C
0
5

0

+c
(I)
E
(I)
>
0
>c

6
0

+-c
0u

CX)
ll)

(")
I.{)

-

-g
(I)
C
(I)
09

I
(I)-:
0..

Q.

E..u::

C
.Q.....
0
£g
..E



U)
C
0:;::
8;::::·-5:::,
CJ
E-u::-

C
([)
([)
.0
([)
>
0

..c
0

..c
3

..:
(I)
::::,
0
.0
0.E
..c
0
V)

C
..c
0--,
0
c
0
6
([)
+-:c
9
0
c:i
E
0
\.
c
([)

0z
c
0--,

o
([)
c
t:
0 .,;
O..cj

.....0 ([)>
"ti o
·.;:; CY)

C 0 ([)
0 >
.,, 0
o 5.,_
u Q)
C_c

~©
- 0)U 0
Q) +
• 0)g
'1.. 32,_ ,_
::::, 0
O3



,_
::,

L.. 0
::) -0 0

O
::>
Cl

w
¢

0
0:c
(J
0pee

£»z
0u
<(
w
(.):!
w
I.I.I
0
:I:.....



>< >< >< >< >< >< ><

>< >< >< ><

>< >< >< >< >< >< ><

><

>< >< >< >< ><

>< >< >< >< >< >< ><

>< >< >< >< >< ><

>< >< >< >< >< >< >< ><

>( >( IL >( >( >( >(

>< >< IL >< IL >( ><

>< >( >< >( >( IL >( IL >(

><><><><><><><><><1L><1L><><><><1L><><spin4/n9/ > >

fy1,2e4 1es

1peg 1en4

3e] Jue[pe] > > >

Sue)sKg ye

8UGJQ Pll84J81\0 >< >< ><

e:>t11J8S / e611JQJS
- seq3j40/9NO

N/'unoes
'9 1!11 110 p~lll6$4Ul >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< >< ><

eueueu]W} ep3/ye/A X > >

UllldJ&JSlll/11

sei nos uppung
8JIIJ$ '!119J8p&..I

....
0
~ena.
C
C
U)

I

G)
0
C
G)
·c-a,
a.
><LU
6
G).. ....._.
9
0.
ci



••
•

•
•
• •
' •.
• '

• •

6
0c
0u

Q)
0)
0
C
0
5
V>
C
0

.;::::
9
Cl)
Q_

0

.;....
V>
0u

o
D
<(

6
Cl)ea...

.9::c
:::,

ID..

E
0.c~
iii

u
0c
0u

+
V>
0u

6
<I)

€a...

0
a,
CJ)
C

>

>- (Y) "O
0 (Y) C

0,. .0 ~ 0
...... V>~ .E (I)
V> ....

0 <I) 0)
0

0
0Q_ 0) 0
0 3:

N es ll)I
i--: uVl O 1,;
ll) :0± 0 t,

<I) ~ 0 0 ::>- O V>

D a...·u 0 0 -
0 0

t "O V> <(C 0 C ~
0 £

I&. Q_ - .0
+-Q_ O  u

Cl)
"' :, C 0

Cl)
> v, 0 Q

a <I)
...

"O >-:E 0 Cl)
0

"O
C O ::>

""": IJ.J C
3: 0 .0 0 V>

a... ~--V> .s:::. V>
N

- g• <I) V> <I)
0-u 0 "O
N o .0

::c l;:::: 3 -.0 8°e
......
O - U:::,
G± <A-

@ ?ID..
0 t-.. ~b o,- o
~

ll) Cl)
I O .s:::. U Q.

(Y) "O
... 3: V> ~ 0

~ - Cl)t U
a,

o99e
0 o

a, 
0 § :!. E

C .0 <I) 0 o:, E .,, +=
00 0 (I)_,C a... Cl> C
-.0 >gs(J)t_ Cl)3 o 0 2o CV?_

- E
0 0 Q_ ..c: in 0-

~ a... w= <I) Cl) Cl)
<A-

...
50> al



Ga
+-c
0u

+-u
(I)

ea...

.!:!

.a:,
A.

e>:,
.a...
0
"Oa,u-0
£u

ua
+-c
0u

+
V)

0u

6
(I)

€a...

M....
0v

I
a,
u-~
a,
V)

5.e
.!:!
C:,Ig
:,
.cu
a,
E
:::i-0
a,
0)
0

5



6
0c
0u

+u
0u

0
0
¢cou
00
Lt)
%-

(',I
00
%-

•• • •
•
' ••• • •• •

•• • '
• ' -• •-• •
• • ••• •• '
• •• ••• '
• ••

• -• • •
• "'
' ••• • •• •

•• • '
• ' -• •-• •
• • ••• •• '
• •• ••• '
• ••

6
Q)ea..

0....
0
l

I

±2
Go•
~-.,,Cl)...
0u.
oc1
>0
3.c
0)

5
2
C
::::,
0u
±Cl)
C...
::::,
lllCI

<ii
Q)
c
5cw
>o--~a..
0 V)

6 :::>
+-
O
@
6

6
0
E
0u

6
Q)

€a..



6
0
+-c
0u

+
V)

0u

6

«-
V)

0
0
0
CV)
U')

5
O>

0 0
C~ 0

<( 5
V)

3C
0

.;::: 5
...... g ..c
V)

Q) Vl-- Q. 0
"<I" OcvE0co ""QC() Vl- lri 0°' jg 0-1 o%-

- ("')@)
e

Q) - Q)
0 ..c O ..c
0 8!>0 c-~C> 5 .. t0 (I) (I).:.: \I0
U")  'r·o2.... ..c
%- 5a u»

~
en
0~cen
0-0
±2u

.........
0
N

I...
.!
C
GJu
en
C
0:;::
!:!
GJ
Q.
0

6
0
E
0u

+
Vl
0u

Lt)....
0
N

I
C)
C
5
·s
1:10
g...
0

==.g
.0::,
D...

ai
'O
5
C
1:10-0
a,
C) u
C OJ= 2



.;..:u
0c
0u

+.,,
0u

0
0
0g
0
LO
%-

8
0
C'i

u
(!)e
a..

...a,-ca, u
0 2.,. .c
C ~
0 <(
5 c
C ~,_ C
a, 0
0.5o

C
0.,. E

a, :::>
C ©

·- z0 .c:e "!::
.,. 3:
a, e!
a2
6g
2D .Q

<i3
0)
0
C
0
5

u
0c
0u

.,,
C
0

"5
<i3o 9o
2o
(!) CX) (!)
(!) l() u
±=@
V) CX)

°5590
0E
(!)

~ ©.:..:
...:: C -

. o Eo<£

+
V>
0u

8
0
LO
CX)

0:-
u
(!)e
a..

I...a,-Ca,
0 ±u
.,. (!)

5zz=C <(

cii §
0.0 0

3
Cen C

"C 0
·- EC. :::>
0 oo==z
... .c
C"!::
"C 3:
a, e!u .2

C

08
z2u.Q



67

E
0u
5
E

0u
~
5.,,03

+.,,
0u

0
0

8
2
8
N
I.I)
t>'T

6
(I)ea..

0
a,
0)
0

5

0-0
("I

I...a,-Ca,u

0
+-u
~
6

6
0

+-c
0u

+v,
0u

0
0
O
N
'SI"
--0
00
t>'T

I
0
0;::
2
0
3:

('I)....
0
("I

I...
2
Ca,u

-0
2
5



0w
I
<(
>
0zw
0'

c
0
Gc
Q)

3
)

6
0+-c
0u

+v,
0u
c
0:;::u
:::)....
+v,
c
0u

0
0
t--.
I.[)
00
O

0
0
0o
8o
%-
(I)
+-
0
E:;::
V,w

2M
Xw

•• •
• •
• • •• •• •• • •• • •• 4 •

•• •• •• • • •• • t •• 4 • 4

• •• • •• t

t • •
• • • ••• • • •• • •• •• • • •• •• •

• • •• • • •• • • • •• •• •• •• 4

• •• • •• • •
• • •• •• •• • ••• • • • • •• • •

4 • •• t •• • • • • •• • •• • 4• • • •

(I)...
0.c
V,

.c
t
0z

-c(I)
E
t:
C
C.
(I)
C
(I)...
ii:

0
l
0y

°"....
0
l

I
'tJ
0
0
3:
9
0.c
9

I
3co
=II:
c
0:;::g
t»
ii:

.v

±e
0
G)

aagog
0..

g
w
"C
C
0
!
iI:

3
£c
G)
0
o6
enc
0=·-"C
i



C
0·.,;
C
Q)
+-x
UJ
Ci)

6
0
+-c
0u

«-
V'l

0
0o
0-

0
Q)z

··O'tioooOos,-tA-u Q)
::> +-±= 0
~ E
OE-u iYl

0
0
'SI"
LO
N
<X)

%-
-CCl)
£
Ca.
Cl)
C
Cl)...
ii:
~
0.cn
.c
1:
0z

co,-
0
N

I
>-0
3
.c
Ill
&i:g
.c
31:

I
?co
=II=
C
0=.E
V)

Cl)...
ii:



O
0
0
('I

(')
=1:1::
C
0:.;::
0.....
(/)

~
iI:

I-u
CD·o...
A.
C
0
=s
>0
C
CD
1111!:

0
C
0

:;:::
5
'"O
<(

....:
V,

0u
C
0

:.;::
0
:::,,.__
+v,
C
0u

0
0
0
N.
N
O
%-

0
@

<(

0
0
0
c5
(')
O
%-
(I)

+-
0
E

:.;::
Vlw

Vl
Q) 0
0 Q)
0 .....
Q. 0
t

.c 0
±- O
3': 0.
eo-

·- 0:!:: C
"O 0
"O ·o '"O> O
0 o.a .....
... 0
.3 «-
0 Q)- .....0 D
o5

+r:: .....·- .....C: V,

0 0)
·- C=.-.!:!:?
VI X
>. @
0 Q)
..0 .c
5

.N.c =55z "O
·- >-"tii 0·x ..a
<I> '"O
Q) Q)
.c. Q)
+- '"O
«- O
o E

o
E e
"O .
"O >« o..a
"O .c.
C: +-
O ±=
C: Q)0 .....

·-:::,
- +-0:::,

a-.
0 0C:a, ,.__

?

O
0
0
<"I

I
9
t:
od
<"I
=#:
II)
C
0:;::g
V)

~
i.i:

I
Cg
C)
.5.::

::::,
iCQ-0
C
3:
0
I-



..;...;u
..;...; .. 0
V, 0 +-

6

0 Q) C

u .._ 0
<( u

8
0 ....:
o V)

co 0
~ 0- 0-
tA-

~

2
C
::::,
E
E
0u
C

~
I-

Q)
C
0 0
0 0

I 0
0 oC
0

Lf)

+-
~

V, -
~ %
Q) (1)z +-

O 0
C E
0 :;:::
.._ V,

Q)
UJ

+-
C
Q)u

C
.Q
+-
0+v,e......

...:
5
"O
C
Ca.::
G
C
3:g

3
0
('I(

I
('I(
=II:
C
0:;:
.E
t
a,=II.
~z
I
C
"iii
C
0u

.!!
3:

..;...;
u
0+-c
0u

Q)
C

aE
(")
O
Lf)

cbg
• 6

O
>o 
V)

g
i ..
...... Q) ••=
·- 0 0.c .c Eu a.. UJ

..
0
Q)

<z

6%
..;...;
V,

0u

0
0
0
II)
O
Lf)
II)

Ea,
5
V,

0
a,
C)
C

5

0,.

8
t

£u
C

I&,.



0
5

::::>
0
0

Q) ••
C: ·-0 0

Vl .c E5 a w

"'°....
0
('I

I

£·u
0u..
a,
.9
0
0..
,:::,
C
0

0:c
a,
0)
0

5
I
2
U
0
0
Ca,
t,
0
a,
0)
0

5

u
0+-c:
0
0

Vl
::::>=C:
0.c
+-g
0
€
0u

@
0 N
N ::::>
'St" .c

N 1 0%a.c C") C:
0-O
(I) lO +-

> oor--.._
0 -:-:- 0

Q) ••

5:.c _g E
Oa.. w

+
Vl
0
O

0
0q_
O
'St"
N.

6%-

«-
Vl

0
0
0co

0
('I
0
('I

I-Ca,
E
t
0a.
a,
C
a,
.9
0
0..
0...
G
:E.

N

J!!
0
(I)

IIIIIIIIIIIJI,,g
0..

2
$
U>
0
~::,
0..-(I).c....
0



"° -.... vi'
0 v> EC C(',I 0 ,Q 0

I :.;:: +- 0
C co·- 0 0::::C 'D ,._ 00 'D (I) ,._ ·a:E <( Q. ~ '+-; ·c'tJ ,._Q 0-o v> ..c'tJ >- 0 (I) 0 (.)C (.):::::.:, ..,_: 0c( CX) (I)... c o5 N' I-

a, 0 0 a+ v> >- v> 0) (I) (/) (/)
0

(I) 0C g»5o5 (.)
a, (I) ·s;,._u :.;:: Et-o'.: <( L... +-

0uuo (I) C
C (.) (I) Q_ "'O (/) :::)

0 ·c 15 n. ·s; 0 0 0
5 ·- O 0 L... (.)
C E <D

X V') ,._ 0:::: '+-; :::) 0-+-.!:! - "'O o._ +- v> (.) ..c
E ...... C o6 .9:2 - (I) o 6C 0:::, o o , CX) :!::: O

E U 0) - C 0 N .
c"'O= %- (.) r--.. 0

E ~·-(I) ·- kb 3.- O O'- O
0 °' ·s; ~ E -o -X ou >-OQx.1 <D ..!!! v>

@y =.... co::: ...... <5"'0 0 ~~ (I).... >··5 0 0 co
0,. 0 <D ,.__ 0 N -5
2 (.) "'O (/) ..c 0 (") ···-(I) ••

O:::)O)Uv> CX) 5 c=C (.) ,.__- og:::, ..C e.So <( N L... ..c0 "'-"'O Q.. a wu ~ ~ C .!::'.? (I) %-
:::) c O O:::)

C 0 (I) Q_ ...... .0
>< O"..c oIll •• (I) , C (I) -+-a,

+ > - O> (.)
> O o @.E- 0:::, <D ,.__ · +- -+-

C ·- 0.. C "'O v> Cgoo 0 03: o.__Oow u u



Cl)
G)
0
C
9
G)

.._
G)
0.
l

I

j

±

ii

C')
y
N
C')
I.()

=c6
(])
0

~
9co
(I)
C:
0
...J

c6>
ii:
"i.

lJ
0g
@
0..c:

V)

0
(])
0)

_Q
5

c6
0)
0
C:
0(])0)

_Q
5

lJ
5a
0uu
(])
.n
(])

Cl<:

N
00
C')
I.()

I
N
C')
N

6
N
~

V)

C:
0:.=
0,._
(]) ,._
0. (])
0 0)

0
lJ C:
6 0r 5

I.()
00
N
N

I

°'"'"C')

io

>--C:
:::,
0u

,._
(])
C:
0·.;;
V).E
E
0u
>-
0
3..c:
0)
:i:

UJ
a..

00
O
C')
I.()

3
E
(])
5
V)

--d
0
0

Cl<:
..c:u
0:.=
C:
<
&
00
00

V)

(])
4. •
O 0

...J

8e
0 (])= 5> V)

6u
@
i5

I.()
I

00
00
7
-0
~

>--C:
:::,
0u
0..c:
V)

0
C:
(])~

V)u
(])·o,._
a..
0)
.!= ,._,._ (])
(]) 0)

2 o
·- C:
0) 0
&6

Q)
C:
E
0
5
Mt
C:
9
LL

0
0
N
I.()

<
(I)
:::,
O"
:::,
.n
:::,
0
t:
:::,
0u
5
0.
5I.()N
0-

-0
>--a
6-u
9
i5

C:
0
E,._
(])-V)

0z
C:..c:
0-,



0
N

ILi
CL.
..:GJ 0)::, .§
0 <I>.c <I>
,:, £
·- 0)E .fi.co2v»

• 0
u.. 2
; ".c V)

0...,

t:
C
5
,.....
C
C

.Q....
2
■-c

~
0



C
0)
·v;
Q)go
2 :>-_:::-9»LL ......_ •u
±%
3 5

..c O 0
0) u- zr >o o .2= > 5
0 "5J 6:
3±s
o e
- ::J V)
0 0 0
Q) u
0) o '6

_g >= 8 D

.s2,_ 0)
0 -~= s2 o
]5 0
=> E

0.... Q)
o6 a.::
.s2 ~
5 E

0.... 0

£go
0 0-e 0

55 E
-C 6
D 3:

N
Q)
V,
0.c
a..

£<6 ·a
"O 0
Q LLE
Q)

,_ a.::
o= g8
0 "O
Q. <(

o
3::, .c

5 o
C I
.2 >E
Q) ::,
3: 0
- u0 Q)
Q) 0)
0) 0g t=
> fr.

-+-0 ·.,;
V> C

I !2
C 1-
0 >-
6C 0
'E >
J I
CO C
- 0gs

6
0 Q.
I- <(

±u
0
LL

~rr:
"O
C
0
>-
0

c62
5: o
Cl') +=
Q) 0d v,

_J I

E o
$
V) 0
6 ¥
Q) 0
0) C
g >
5 9

Q)
"O
0
E
Q)
a.::
"<I"
<X)
=#:
d
V)

I
Q)
::,u
V,
Q)
a.::--© ~rr:

o D
C 0
0 .c2 o

.c6
Q) 0z9
a..

VI+-
VI C >,.
C Q) :!:::g c
0 Q) :::>

-~ CJ> E
..Q o E

CJ) 0
~ iE u

C
Q VI

:;::: C
0 0
I,,_ +=

:!!i 0
CJ) =
Q) :E
~ <(

..a,
E
C...
A.-C
Cen
Ca,
A.

.!!!
C

u
C·c:
A.

I
u
..J
..J

en-ua,
:!::.cu...
<(



7
N

c
0·u·c::

..c
0
(I)
I-

±
5
0
IL

g
.... O>
0 -~
3: ©
-~ -0:n 0

=> Ea.. (I)
o6 a,:

g 8
E

a.. 0

%=-0 a..
C 0
o g
-8 0::, 0
'6 3
>8
D 3:

N
(I)
V,

0.s::
a..

;o-_:'.'
@5
-a Ti
O 0E IL
(I)

a,:.... --(I) C= g8
?

Q. >o
c 3
::::> .s::
~ O>
C I
.2 >E
(I) ::::>
3: 0.._ u
0 (I)
(I) 0)
0) 0g
> fl_

C
0a:

±
5
0
IL

Drr:

b6
(I)
c
Cw
0....

::::>-u
::::>....-V)

-0
0
(I)

_,J

iu
C
Cl)
·;::
Cl)

)(
w-uCl)
0...
A.-CC
t
"ii
ai::

>-+-·c
:::>
E
E
0u

O-
0
8

I
lf)
0
8

I

E>
0
a)
6
(I)
V)

(I)
(I)
+
VI
:::>,.__
l-

o
+- ~co
0VI I(I) ....,.
,._ 0
Q.0
,N

I
o=oU
NC

I :::>
VI 050
+- ..c0 VI
(I) ·;;::

.!::: 0
0 n..
..._ I
O..c

"O u,.__ ,.__
0 :::>oc
caU

I U<<=o2
>- 8
_g ~
VI 0g<
(I) •
~ (/)

Ca
CJ):cu
s6%
a C ::!:::::> +-3 oE
0 u-

9a -u ~6 o U
5 0 c
C - 0aue 6e·;:;;:;::: a
§ g .g
u ,.__ (I)

-~ 2 E
~ C <(

C
0 VI

:;::: C
a o
-!=+=a9

E
0:: <(

0:c
0

C.c
0-,



V)

0) cc
'.Q 0 0);-
5 5 c
ca 0 < '.Q
>- <( (I) 5
O ca
3 c ::::,

0 CT (I)
.c ·.;; ::::, 0)
0) 5 .0 0
:i: i5 ::::, .....

0
(I) >- 0 -- >-(/)± O I - 0
@6 3 V) - 3c ·;::-- .c 0 (I) .c
O 0) .c 0) >-
(/) E- :i: t:i: O (/)
>- ..... >- >- ·uc c (I) -- O0 0.. c --::::, ::::, c LL
0 ::::, 0 0 ::::, zo u CT -- u 0

C") (I) ·.;; u a...
CX) CX) > c 5 c 0 (I) 0

O 0 OO O C V) 0 .c 0) c..... ..... V) ......... - O 0 (I) I- 0 O 0
C C I :.:= - >- (I) c t .c

C N I L() u - -- 5 (I) 0 ~.e O (I) o::!:: CX) N O- ::::, -, -,  a... iTI
O O .....- ::, CX) CX) +-::, O V)

u, I O I C >-u C ..... 0c:: 0 >- I I Q) u zt+- ..... Q) ·u·v;8 u ..... V) Q) C + OQ) 0 u 'Sf" L() '5 LL
> V) t;:::: O C

C ·c C ..... O- O C 0) (I) ± C'-1 c- O 0 O- w 'G .9 'fl: 0u V)

O :::>  I Q) 56 (I) ;-
·.:: V) I 'Sf" C ..... c >- 5O Q) ..... 0.. °' 0) 0 a... 0 0- 0 °' O 0u +- ,._

CX) O- 'G +- 0 LL ;-
II.- 0 >- 0 C 0) O 3 <(... +- O Q) c oo.... a, +- u Q) C -- .c
0 (/) G ~ I 0 V) 5 O (/) CJ) >-

w V) ,._
0) I

,._ - Q) >- (I) >- Oa U Q) Q) +- .,; 5 O :i: 3C
,._

5 3 ..... 00 .> ,._
Q) C 0.. Q) u::::V) Q) :c 0 ::::, .c ~C ·;:: Q) +- ca .cw C Q) Q) C 0 O (I) I ·c -- 0) NC, O 5 0 w I 0) (/) :i::::> Q) C +- +- c

&$ • ·v; V) a.. 0) :i: 0 0 (I)
C I I C 5 C Q) CX) ,._ C/) O g -- 0 ..... >-:c '5 C w ,._ °' Q) <( C >- 0) (I) ·a --0) °' 5 -- cCJ) 0) C C w +- a.. _c 0 c c 5 o ::::,

C E C ·;:: w +- u Q) +- w G >- ::::, ~ u 0·;:: Q) u Q) u I 0 <( V) -- 0 ::::, ::::, u·- ::, Q) ·s; Q) ·o ,._ N Ck: Q) D u ca 0 0...Q - Q) Q)

U ,._ 5 Q) ~ I ..... 0 UJ 0C ·o 0 O --E 0.. C a.. I C (/) -- (I) - c5 ,._
0) ""O

,._ 0 (I) 0) 0 OOJ '5 I a.. I <( a.. c..
C

V)
G C c c 3 .Q >- :c::, u C: C >- I C Q) O ""O (I) ..... --w +- Q) (/) ::::, 0 5 D V)a: <( ·;;:: w > V) 0 0 0 w Q) <.'.) ca I- <((I) O 0 +- :.:= o .,; w +-> (I) O u z C O ""O ·o u 5.. u Q) 00 :I:: .g ·c ,._
O C Q) c·c V) E 0 V) z 0OJ Q) Q)

,._
O 0.. V) u ;-

$ I C: 0 +- 0) <( _J ....._c O
,._ - 0 u 5LU _c 0:::: 0 C0.. u u +- u o<S O 'G

,._ <( 0
<( 5 Q) (/) V) Q) <(::c: .2 Q)  ""O 0 +- >- 0.. C _Q 05 ,._ V) 0 ·u 0 w V)

C ±- Q) u ,._ ,._ u E w cu +- ,._ E ,._ C 0 @6w u u ·c 0 C ::::, ·;:: V) Q) _J ;-

I w 8% ca 5 :::> I :::> > a.. 3 5 V) ~ O 0
V) 0...... C ~ c u

0 ..... ·u ·c Ee .. od C 0 .Q. Q) :.:= O ::::, (I)w OJ C u 0 V) O z LL a... s: E a.::::, . 0 :.:= C ..... a...0.. g C +- iii • V) 2 (I):.:= V) 0 0 5 M. 0 En .Q O Q) Q) ,._ :.:= u :0 ..... V) 0 u
Cl)  ·;:: u +- Q) 0 O ..... :,=

0 E u Q) V) .Q ,._ C ::::, s: (I) u -o::· -~ 5 u Cb a...  (I) 00 ::, ::::, 0.. t;:::: •;:: 0 >-a:: ""O X Q) Q) ..... u Cb (I) .9 c -- zE 0:::: w w (/) Ck: <( <( 0 :0 0 c c
O >< ·.;; -- 3 ::::, a.... ::::, V) 0 0O w w >- a... (I) 05 - O z ..... u OI}!. "'O u ca CJ) ca 0 V)

Cb - ..... - - g... :r: 0 ::::, 0 0 .c
C 0 .0 V) O. ... (I) ..... (I) (I) (I)

(Ii') .c IL 0) O 0) CJ) ~ 3u - g 0 O .Q ::::, ::::,
C (I) 0 OGz 0 5 u 5 5 s: s:>
Cb
cii
a,::



V)

c
.Q
s
Q)
Q. 0
0 :r:
c D£ Ol- g
g =0 V)

+-- D0 _:,,t_

Q) 0
Ol -'
_Q C

s

Q)
0
0
E
Q)
0,:: 0)--- -~C: Q)
2 o
5 o
o E
<( Q)
>- 0,::
0 Q)> o
..c ~
.O O
T 2

a
C: 0
::::, 0
Q Vlu .2
Q) 0
0) 3
0 ::::,
t: o=

Cl)
u
C
Cl>•;::
Cl>
)(
ILi-u
Cl>o..
IL-CO
>
Cl>
'ii
Di:

·;::
0..
<(

Vlc
0

:;:::
0

-+-c
(I).,,
(I),._
CL

(I)
uc
(I)

·;::
(I)
0..
Xw

5±
C:

-+- 0co
0 C:

-+- 0::, ·v;
o
C LU
0 "CJog
0) ..._
C c:
·- (I)
I... E
(I) (I)
(I) 0)
c o
0) C:
C a
u1,.._
> 9
0

I E. ,.._
w .2
C.. U') C

' 0
C.. C: ·-0) -+-
0 ·v; 0
u, (I) u
CO :::i

.c o
0 :t:

..., C/)

• '5
'u

C
"C
C
::i

G
Ea
(I)
0

E
C
~

....
C.e
"S
Cl)
C
0u
0)
C·c:
(I)
(I)
C·a,
Cw



00

-E,g
a
C
0u

8..
.cu
i2

N

£
C

£
II..,
C
:,

E:,.,,
C.
E
3

<")N

NN

N

-0

N

~g
a
C

~ Eu aa IDg
a OJ
Cl. iiii 0

5£s &

N

N

N00

"'00

00st

N

N

N-0N -0

czg-

1
C
II
iC

±
¥..
f
5
I
N.,.s

e
II

C-"
0 Cs
£

•:,
C II
s%

E
.cu
"'

8

...J
<(
V)

0
CL
0
Cl:::'.
0-.

§
u
1-uw
'0
Cl:::'.
CL
N
::j:j::

z
0
i==

$
w
Cl:::'.
LL

o6
(/)
~
Cl:::'.g
u
=:i
co
:::>
CL
z
=:i•z
~
LL

5en
0
0.g
ll.
(I)
(I)
LI..

<i



QJ
+-'

+-' ro
z C Et QJ
0 0 E +-'

1/1+-' C. C. wC QJ 0QJ 0:::: C "O
> QJ C. ro C C:
C 1/1 ro 0"O > 0 a.
1/1 QJ QJ ..c C +-'o +-' ro ro::, QJ 1/1 C. +-'
+-' z 1/1 ~ QJ a. cro C ... QJ... QJ 0 u ... tiro ro z C QJ 1/1u 0 QJC. ro a. 0 +-'

\I) C. ...
C. C. +-' 1/1 u ro Cl.
<( Vl C. 1/1 >- ~

QJ
......... QJ QJ +-' 0:::: t
+-' ro u ... 0QJ c bO ·u ro ctl C.QJ +-' e c c0 ro QJ
LL C u a. LL LL LL 0::::

1/1
C

2 >ro
a. QJ QJ

QJ ~ > >
1/1 QJ QJ

"O ro QJ 0:::: 0::::
QJ co > 0 >
+-' o0 >- QJ C uu C +-' 0:::: C
QJ

+-' "O QJ
t0QJ QJ ·u C G

Vl QJ ro ::, +-' ~ LL C co -u o 0 0 w
QJ - N+-' - C c >

0 ·.;; ......... ·.;; 0..c ...
5 1/1 QJ 1/1 QJu u... X +-' X C

<( ><- w Vl w w

LO
r]

00
1aq020 .-I

.-I

.-I

t
......
(l

0
10qua1dos (]

Nl
.-I

DO

0
n)

n)
rJ

1sn3ny U)

.-I .-I
( O»0
(

(]

DO
(]

0)

nr .-I
(l
.-I

n0

00
(l

.-I

aunf (]

t
.-I

......

Ke



.c
0
C
9
0.

2
otS
>C)
.Q
0
"C
0.c
G
5

1J
C
0ac:
C
C
0¢

3:
0-
M.
0-
M.

I

3::
A..
C

g..
0
3::
.!::!
5::,
A..

6-C
Cl)

E
t:o
Cl)
C

0
-t-

c
0;-
0
O
0
-t-
c
(I)

©
:t::
5
0
-t-
0
N
=It:
C
0;-
0
-t-
V)

(I)
-t-
0
0
0
~
6
C
0;-
0
-t-
V)

(I)
L..u:::
0
C
0;-
5
"'O
0
C
0
"'O
"'O
0
0
-t-

"'O >
(I) 0
(I) 0
C.;::::
o ·u
"'O (I)
(I) Q.
-t- V,

0 -9?
"'O ·-.(1)
g a
- 00 Q.
V, V,
0 (I)..c L..

>- (I)
-t- >o o
(I) Q.

..c E
I-

........
0-
0-

I
g
C
0:;::
C-Cl)
Cl)..
ii:



6
N

0
G
'U
0
.c-d::e

Vl
-+-c
Q)

E
@
::>
V)

0
Q)

5
Q)
u
C
0
E
6
't:
Q)
a..
Q)

E
i=
Q)
V)

n C
C 0
0 0..

:,.:::: V)

@
Q) Cle:'.
o @
0 U::

< co O O w

Vl
-+-c
Q)

E
Q)
>
9
0..
E

.s::.u
0
0...
a.
a.
O

......
::>
0>-
0
0......

'U
C
0
Ill-G

-+-
0
VJ
'U
d
@
C
Cl)
0
0a..,,

£
0
0-

.c
6
.0

Vl
0



+-c
(])

E
Q_

5
O
(])

o 2c c
0 (])
o Ee g
0 ::>
>- rr
0 (])
.Q .....

64- j;2
o Oo g
(])
C (I)
(]) .Q
£ 0
o c -0
0 (])

~

5
(])
0)
0·;:::
.Q
VI
0

+-c
Q)

E
:::>u
0
0

0
C
0
C
0

:;:::
9
0
Q_

~
Q_

0
E
VI

6-0c
0
Q)
0).....
0

• • • • • • •

>-+·;:::
:::>u
(])
VI
VI
:::>
0

·;:::
0
>
6
(])
Q_
>-+--+-c
:::>
0
E
0
0
c
0
c
0

:;:::u
9
Q)
+-c

(])
VI
0
Q_
0
6
(])

~

VI
VI
::>u
VI

5
>-
0u
G-
'c:3
(])
0..
VI

0+-

VI
0
(])

5
0)
C-~
0
6
4-
(])
..c
+-

6
4-
VI+-c
(])

E
(]).....
5
O"
@
0:;:::
0
0..
VI

(])
..c
+-

-0-C
QJ
E
t:
0
QJ
C



•• •

+'
' I -

(I)
O> ••
0 V'I,._ 0g

O
Q) :>

o "..C C
Q) Q)

> E
lJ .Q.
C :>
0 CY

.!:::: Q)
0 lJ
Q_ C
Q) 0

a::: V)o
ou:::: 0
0 ,._
..... Q)

e£.o O
..... V'I

5 GlJ ,._
0 lJ
e8

lJ
Q)
Q)
C

0.....

V)
Q)
E
5
.E
@
:>.....

.2
lJ
C
0

2
C
(I.)

E
(I.)
>e
E
g
V)

"Q
C
0
V)

0
·u
c
-<(
u.i

(I.)

• • •E
LLJ

(j

0
~
-<(



• • • • • • •

"O
C
0

CJ)
C
5
:>
u
C

e
2
0
Da

V)
CJ)
C

5
Vl

5
0
O

• • • • • • •

Eg.._

V)
(!)
u
C
0
5
(!)
u

"O
C
0
(])
N·.:;:;
C
0

:;:::
Ou
0

(!)
V) V)

0 C
Q_ 0
O E-a9
(!) (!)= 8

V)

:>
-+-
9
0
Q_
Q_
0
(!)
c
-+-

5,.._
V)

-+-c
(!)

E
(!)....
5
O"
~
5
:.;:::
0
Q_
V)

V)
V)

:>u
V)

5
>>
5u
t;::::

'6
(!)
Q_
V)

0-+-

C
0:;::
C-Cl)
a,...
ii:



(j

V,

"O
Q)
Q)
C
V,
Q)u
0
Q.
V,

Q)
..c
f-

-+-c
Q)

'o
:E 0)
Q) C

5
0
C U
0 C

"O V)
Q) "O

o·o Q)
"v,' C
·- Q)"O ,._
>- .2

22::> Cu 0
.a

0
:j:j:: +=
e
0 Q)

+= Q.
0 O-+-

:2
0 Q)t:
C ::>
0 U;-

3
-+- Q)
.!!? ·::;:e
gs

V,
0) V,
C Q)

+= u
V, 0
3 a

@
...=
e
Q)

"O
C
0
E
E
0u

• • • • •

V)
C:

.Q.,_
g
(I)

0
ci

0)
C
5
::>
u
C

0
Q)

-+-c
::>
0uu
0

"O
C
0
0
Q)
V,
V,
::>u
V,

5
Q)

..Q

V)
C
0

5-
9
Q)
Q.
0
Q)

"O
5
+-c
Q)

E
t
0
Q.
Q)
0

u
6
Q)
0)
0
6-+
V)

Q)
V)

0
..c ...:

(I)
Q) +-
0) C

89 e
V, 0
0 +=
0 0..,_ E- ,._
39•0 0
0) C
C 0
tEo 0
0) 0 ...:
C Q) (I)

5 2V,o o» g
> o
(I)·;:: C

6>
::> t "O
O" 0 Q)
Q) Q. V,

0 0
<( Ck: :r:

• • •

£2
C:
(I)

Eg
V)

0
(I)

<
(I)
u
C:
O
€.g
(I)

Cl..
(I)

£
(I)
V)

C:
0
V)
(I)

a:::
(I)
.!::,
LL



V)>0
""CJc
3

C
0

:;:::
O
::::>
V)

C

""CJ
C
O

za..
0

0
>u
C
0
ti
Q)
Q.
><
Q)
Q)
±--
O
co
c
0

:;:::
5c
0uV)

Q)

9...
(])
..0
E
(])

€
""CJ
c
O

vi V)
CJ) ...
C (])

·- ..06E
(]) (])

€ E

• • •• •• ••
•

••• • •• • 4• • • I•
•• •• • • t• • • •
••

•• • •• • 4

• ••
•• •

•• • 4
4

• • • •• • •• • •
• •• • I •• • • • •• •• • •

I• • •• • •• • I •• • • I• • • • •• I • •• •• • • 4

• •

(j)
tl1
0r
0..

-CCl)
E
Cit
Cit
Cl)
Cit

ci:
Cit,,
Cl)
Cl)z
Cl)
u
0
CL
t.......
C
0a...
.!
Cit
0
5

-£ +-a, CE a,
en E
Cit Q,
Cl> 0
Cit -Cit Cl>
<C >
Cit Cl>
0 o
Cl> C

oz
o %u a,a. Cit
Cl) C
- ::e5 «
i: 1i
... a,go
v £
C O::e u

•• • •4

• •
4• • •• •

•e @

•••

a,

0u
Cl)

"C
C
C
cu
0
0....

It)

G)
Q.
0
0
U)

g
C

5
C
9
Q.

2



(I)
+-
'G
t
0

C
O
VI
VI
(I)
VI
VI
O
0~
O

E
9
4-

O+-
O
0

-CCb
E
0
G
>
Cb
C
C
0
ii:...
.!.,.
0od-
Cbu
C
0u
I
(',I

(I)
t/%
O

..c
ll..



.0

e
C
0
V)

0
E
())

-+-

9u
C
0u
5
V)

())
C
0
Q_

())

6•u
C
0u

C
0
Q_

5
+
Vl
0
E

e

6
Q_

9
())

..c
I-

"O
())•>
9
Q_

())
.Q

0
+-

c
0
Q_

ID+
Vl
0
E

~
0..c
0)
C
:;::
u
())o
Q_

"O
())
V)

0
())o•())

..c
+-

i

-+-
::>
0
0

-+-

±:
V)

C
0:;::
Q_
0
0)

.c
'D
C
.2
5
())

3
::!=
::i
E

0
C
0
Q_
X
())

'D
C
0
C
0
Q_

i
+
Vl
0
E

())
..c
+-

'D
~
0
Q_

E
0u
())
.Q

V)-~
0
C
0

s
>-
0

.g

..c
Q_

9
0)

'D
C
0

he
())

..c
+-
0
0+-
C E,Q
;t:: 0
'D

())

'D
+-
>-0 .Q

.c
V)
+
Vl
0u
C
0:;::u
::i•+
V)

C
0u
>c
0
'6
())

6
E:;::
V)
())



0
(I)
1J
(I)
(I)
C
V,

0
V,
(I)
(I)

-+--
-+--e
E
0u

tl

'»I!ul

-~
E
0
(I)

+-
I.... •
::) Vl

05
V,

Vl (I)C .._
.Q (I)
-+- ..co-
-+- -C 0

o
(I) C
k5
0 Cog
c..c (I)
00
(I) C
I- ::)

0
-+-

1J
(I)
1J
(I)
(I)
C
V,

0
(I)
0
0
E
(I)
.Q

5
C
0

:;:=
0

-+-c
(I)
V,

@
C Q.

.556.g
-+- C
C .Cffi u
(I) (I)

it ;
5
£o



C:
0
Q_

(I)
+-·.,;
0
(I)
-0::,
u
C:

9+-c:
0u

-0
C:
0

V

- .
C "'11' (I)

6
$
- +-(l) V)

> (I)
(l) +-
0 0
C U
.2o:n ~o ·s;
o
c oo e
3,: 0
(l) +-·- ::,> 0
(l) >
a:: 0
2 

:.:: 0
0 C:
E o
<IJ :;:::

..c u
0 C:
Cl) ::,.......-~ ...
£
....... 0
OE
:!:: u
::, (I)
V, V,

(I) -.._ c
(I) 0

o

·;;;
a,
C
ol1I
3a,

·s;::
a,
0
u
5=
0
E
a,
..cu
V)

-Ca,
E
0
cii>a,
C
C

en
Cl)
0-~e
5
C
0
E
"C
"C
<(

I
.2$
"C
C
Cl)
0.

2



"D
9
(I)
0
'G
C
0
0
0)
C'o
..0
~
0
VI

"D
:.0

('I)t

(I)
.c
+-
c
(I) lJ
6 g
o D5 ea

:;:::: .2 0..... u .....
0 0 V)

0. ..... 0Ec
0 lJ
Oc

°(I) (I)
·- CJ)C: C
(I) 0..... I::

_f; <(

O) oi
c
3
0
0-

0
C +-
.Q C
5 9
2 o
1;; "D
.c C

~ 0 (I)
(I) u ElJ I

o E:0 Q_ 0
>- 0 0o
oS o
(I) lJ (I)~c
VI Q :::)
CJ U VI
V) .!!!>- C lJ

+- 0 Co ,o
(I) V)

::J 1;;
c:,:.:J

(I)
"D·:;;
9
0.

0+-
VI
C
0:;::::
0
0;;::::o
(I)
0.
VI

O
C
0
VI
C
0
0.
0
c
0

:;::::
:::)
..0·;::
+
VI

5
6-VI+-c
(I)

E
:::)
0
0
0
>-
0.
0
0
"2
0.c
>
0
VI
VI
(I)
0
(I)
C
(I)
.c
+-

.5
"C
"C
iii

+o»0 .€Go.o
e 5o
O> rr o.
"vi w O
(I) -
oo9%·- g= <( 0. C> 0 0u :r: u __J

"D
C
0

C
0
0.

C
0+:g
C

~
0..

±C
a,
E:,
u
0
C
C
0+:u:,...-"'C
0u



0)
C

~
0
0)
@
0)
C
G·;::
0

C:
0

Eu::,
J::
"'C:
0u-"'0
A..

>- -0
:!::: Q)
0 6
-0 Q)
t ±.,_ 0••0 0
0... 00... .,_
Q.,_

VI.·c ...J

0 .c
-0 g
C ::>
0 a..

-0a,
'o...
A..

-::,0
Ia,
"'..2u

I:.a

€4

I....

::> 0
O • O
+- Cl)--. o
g eu -a;

>
I.... 0+- ...
VI -C. o

z
a,
>
0
C:
0

E-
0::,
J::
"'C:
0u

-.r::



APPROVAL REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

June 15, 2021

REPORTS & ARESOLUTIONAUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION
RECOMMENDATIONS OF AFENCE WITHIN THE 10 FOOT DRAINAGE

EASEMENT
UPON LOT 11 OF PLAT OF OUTLOTS 1 THRU 5 OF

TUMBLECREEK SUBDIVISION
(4259 W. PEBBLE BEACH COURT)

(TAXKEYNO. 739-0011-001)
(STOJANOVICH ,PETER & DIANE L., APPLICANTS)

ITEM NUMBER

G.4.

BACKGROUND
Peter & Diane Stojanovich have made application to replace a fence on the border of their property at 4259 W.
Pebble Beach Ct. The existing fence, constructed in July 2004 located at the drainage easement is deteriorating
due to age.

ANALYSIS
Staff has reviewed the application and does not have issue with the installation as proposed.

The resolution provides that
1. The subject fence shall not impede the stormwater drainage way.
2. The applicants, or their successors, shall keep the fence in good repair.

FISCAL NOTE
No Impact on Budget.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Resolution 2021-a resolution authorizing the installation of a fence within the 10 foot drainage easement
upon Lot 11 in Tumblecreek Subdivision (4259 W. Pebble Beach Court) (Tax Key No. 739-0011-001, Peter &
Diane Stojanovich, Applicants).

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTIONNO. 2021 ----

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A FENCE
WITHIN THE 10 FOOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT,

UPON LOT 11 OF PLAT OF OUTLOTS 1 THRU 5 OF TUMBLECREEK SUBDIVISION
(4259 W. PEBBLE BEACH COURT)

(TAX KEYNO. 739-0011-001)
(PETER & DIANE STOJANOVICH, APPLICANTS)

WHEREAS, the Tumblecreek Subdivision Plat prohibits the building of structures within
the 10 foot "Drainage Easement," described thereon;

WHEREAS, a current fence was originally permitted July 12, 2004, with permit
#P020042259. Due to deterioration, it is necessary to replace the fence;

WHEREAS, Peter & Diane Stojanovich having applied for an installation of a new
wooden dog eared cedar fence, four feet in height at their property located at 4259 W. Pebble
Beach Ct., zoned R-6 Residential, bearing Tax Key No. 739-0011-001, more particularly
described as follows:

Lot 11 in Tumblecreek Subdivision, being a subdivision of part of the Southwest quarter
of the Southwest quarter of Section 1, Township 5 North, Range 21 East in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin;

WHEREAS, the fence would encroach upon a 10 foot "Drainage Easement" restriction
which extends approximately 145 feet along the said rear yard lot line;

WHEREAS, the fence is proposed to be located in the exact same location as the fence
permitted in 2004;

WHEREAS, the 10 foot "Drainage Easement" restrictions upon the Final Plat for
Tumblecreek Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the building of structures is a
restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in its approval of the Final Plat;

WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on platted
land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a public body
vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and that the
restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right of
enforcement;

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the request for the encroachment to
the 10 foot drainage easement restriction so as to allow for the subject fence installation only;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the proposed location and type of
fence to be installed upon the subject property.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of the proposed fence of the type and
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans accompanying
the application of Peter & Diane Stojanovich filed on June 03, 2021, be and the same is hereby
authorized and approved and that the "Drainage Easement" restrictions as it would otherwise
apply to such installation upon the subject property only, is hereby waived and released, subject
to the following conditions:

1. The subject fence shall not impede the stormwater drainage way.
2. The applicants, or their successors, shall keep the fence in good repair.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required
permit(s) for the installation of the subject fence and that the subject fence shall be installed
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted hereunder
shall be null and void.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby directed to
obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee
County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of2021, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--



blank page



APPROVAL,

Sw
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

DISCUSSION OF TRAIL PROJECTS INCLUDING:
S. 116TH STREET, ST. MARTIN OF TOURS,

W. FOREST HOME AVENUE, W. CHURCH STREET,
STH 100, RYAN CREEK, AND CASCADE CREEK PARK

MTG.DATE
June 15, 2021

ITEM NO.

G.5.

BACKGROUND
There has been much discussion on development of trails for various locations in Franklin.
Currently 62% of trail project costs are eligible for reimbursement from the Park Impact Fees. To
update Common Council and ask for some guidance, below are summaries of where several
projects stand. Attached is an exhibit showing the location of the projects, all of which have been
identified in the Comprehensive Outdoor and Recreation Plan (CORP) as either trail or sidewalk
facilities.

S. 116TH STREET
This trail segment located on the WE Energies property (former interurban railroad) along S. 116"
Street from St. Martin of Tours Church to the Muskego city limits is approaching a 60 percent
design stage. A public information meeting is scheduled for Thursday July 22, 2021 from 4:30 to
6:30 pm at the gazebo in Market Square Park. The current construction estimate is $764,000.

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) Program 80% grant applications
are due on August 2, 2021 and the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 80% grant
application is due January 24, 2022. If either 80% grant is received, this trail construction would
cost Franklin approximately $152,000 and approximately $94,736 would be eligible for using Park
Impact Fees with the remaining $57,264 coming from the City's Capital Budget. To make the
grant applications more competitive, the City could request less than 80% funding.

This project previously missed TAP grant award. To make the project more competitive, the City
has advanced the engineering work and added a trail head on the north side of W. Ryan Road.

Recommended Motion to direct Staff to apply for the CMAQ grant and subsequent TAP grant,
if needed, with a 70% grant request. ($142,104 Park Impact+ $87,096 Capital Budget = $229,200
City Portion).

ST. MARTIN OF TOURS
Originally the S. 116" Street Trail included an expanded sidewalk along the front of St. Martin of
Tours Church within the right-of-way for S. 116" Street. This section was discarded when the
Church was receptive to routing the trail through their property and around the western edge of the
cemetery that would connect to the Hike-Bike Trail just west of the WE Energies electrical
substation. Plans are approaching the 60% design stage and includes various easement covenants
with the Church. A condition requested by the Church to restrict the trail to 8-feet width does not
allow it to be eligible for CMAQ or TAP grants. Staff is working with the Church to finalize the
easement language.

The current construction estimate for this trail is $174,000 and approximately $107,880 is eligible
for Park Impact Fees funds with the remaining $66,120 coming from the City's Capital Budget.
This project is on schedule to be bid this fall and constructed in 2022.



Recommended motion to direct staff to complete easement negotiations, complete the design,
and bid project for a 2022 construction period. Any easement with St. Martin of Tours would
come to Common Council for execution.

W. FOREST HOME AVENUE
This Milwaukee County trail project was discussed by Common Council on June 1, 2021, and
Staff was directed to "draft a resolutionforfuture Common Council action reflecting the desired
segmentsfor sidewalk, ifany, for W. Forest Home Avenue in a Milwaukee County Department of
Transportation Road Reconditioning Project."

Staff has developed a survey and it is open until July 9, 2021. The link is found on the City's
website www.franklinwi.gov. Fliers are prepared and will be displayed at locations including, but
not limited to City Hall, Public Library, Wheel and Sprocket, and along the Root River Trail.
Paper ballots will be available through the senior lunch program and at City Hall.

The construction cost is dependent on which segments are selected and is eligible for using 62%
Park Impact Fees. The project and expenditures are expected to occur in 2023.

Recommended motion to direct Staff to proceed as previously directed and return to Common
Council with a recommended resolution on July 20, 2021.

W. CHURCH STREET
This trail connecting Mission Hills drive to S. Martins Road has morphed from a separated
pedestrian accommodation to a wide concrete shoulder with rumble strip, like the construction of
the method employed on W. College Avenue from S. 27 Street to S. 35" Street.

There is a current complication concerning the platted lots that do not conform to the current
location of W. Church Street. Staff is consulting with legal staff and is hopeful that this may be
resolved to construct in 2021.

Current budget is $75,000 and $46,500 is eligible for using Park Impact Fees with the remaining
$28,500 using Capital Budget funds.

Recommended motion to direct Staff to continue efforts to obtain land, if needed and bid out
project for 2021 construction.

STH 100 TRAIL
This Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) project was discussed at the May 18,
2021 and June 1, 2021 Common Council meetings. The common "directed staffto send a letter
to the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation indicating trail on west side ofSTH100 [from W.
Prairie Grass Way to W. Loomis Road] compliance with Franklin Department ofPublic Works to
maintain, and cost share use ofimpactfee."Note that Staff incorrectly reported that a sidewalk
would be provided from W. Prairie Grass Way to the Root River bridge at no cost to the
City.

Upon hearing that there is a desire for a full bicycle accommodation, Staff would like to direct
Common Council's attention that if the trail were placed on the east side of the road, it could be
extended from W. Prairie Grass Way to a trail stub at the Root River. WisDOT is working on an
estimate for this trail and Staff is hopeful to have the budgetprior to this Common Council meeting.



The project and expenditures are expected to occur in 2025 or 2026. During a June 10, 2021, Final
Scoping Review meeting, WisDOT is also considering the extension ofthe pathway to the northern
end of the project at the intersection of St. Martins Road and S. Lovers Lane.

Recommended motion to direct staff to work with WisDOT staff on developing a 10-foot trail
along the east side of STH 100 from the Root River bridge to St. Martins Road / S. Lovers Lane
intersection.

RYAN CREEK TRAIL
The Comprehensive Outdoor and Recreation Plan (CORP) also discusses a trail along Ryan Creek
in the southwest portion of the City that touches the northern portion of Franklin Savannah
conservation area, as well as potentially providing access to lands identified in the CORP for future
recreation. Such a trail would be a significant connection from the proposed S. 116 Trail to the
future extension of the Milwaukee County's Oak Leaf Root River trail, as well as the existing
terminus of the trail at the Franklin Sports Complex.

Staffhas asked GRAEF for aproposal to solicit input from the community, masterplan and develop
budgets for this project. This proposal will be discussed at the Franklin Parks Commission then
proceed to the Common Council for consideration with the Commission's comments and
recommendation.

Recommended motion to direct Staff to develop a scope for a master plan of a trail along the
southern portion ofFranklin.

CASCADE CREEK PARK
This proposed project connecting the Root River Trail to S. 60" Street and River Terrace Drive
was presented to the Milwaukee County Parks in July 2020. Only the segment connecting the
Root River Trail to River Terrace Drive was advanced. Franklin's real desire was connection to
Cascade Creek Park on S. 60 Street and that eastern portion was not approved. Staff would like
to resubmit for reconsideration but this effort has not been prioritized.

Recommended motion to direct Staff to resubmit entire Cascade Trail project to Milwaukee
County Parks for reconsideration.

Engineering Department: GEM



Discussion of Current Franklin Trail Projects
June 15, 2021

'7
'~
ltAW

.~..
:? 8..
'..
..)IICI
l)REJCI

; .
►~~ f

--1.- .. -- .. ... .
'JI , /

i!: l -~~-~ .=· 'JI • ~ •

.tj
Cascade\ t· '

:J ,' Creek-Park~.,
T ·1 ~-rat

•

.,
OAKWOOD

, '
I

STH 100 Trail

UACO#HIU ,~t .. • ,.... '

23

~. bRyan Creek Trail•••••••

W. Church
. ' ' . .,,,.Str-eet Trail~-----. :,.·° ± ±-, i •fl ' i . t"" . ' ~·-, ✓.."'> . - .\ < ~

t. Maninof
Tours Trail °

SOI/TH COUNTY UNE SOUTHCOUNTY



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP, BEING A REDIVISIONOF LOT 1 AND
2 IN BLOCK 6 OF FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL
PARKLOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4, AND LOT 3 IN
BLOCK 6 OF FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL

PARK ADDITION NO. 1 LOCATED IN THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH,
RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,

WISCONSIN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM
THAT PART CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF

FRANKLIN BY QUIT CLAIM DEED
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO.6934853
(CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT)

(AT 5801 WEST FRANKLIN DRIVE)

MEETING
DATE
06/15/21

ITEM NUMBER

G.6.

At its June 3, 2021, regular meeting, the Plan Commission carried a motion to
recommend approval of this resolution, the vote was five (5) 'ayes', no 'noes' and one
(1) absence, 5-0-1. Additionally, the Plan Commission adopted a resolution
conditionally approving a Land Division Variance for this 2 Lot Certified Survey
Map, to allow for the creation of the lift station lot with an area of 0.47 acres, while
the minimum lot area in Planned Development District No. 7 (Franklin Industrial
Park) is 1 acre, per Ordinance No. 85-864. The Land Division Variance resolution in
draft form is attached to this packet.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2021- , a resolution conditionally approving a 2
lot certified survey map, being a redivision of Lot 1 and 2 in Block 6 of Franklin
Industrial Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4, and Lot 3 in Block
6 of Franklin Industrial Park addition no. 1 located in the Southwest 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, excepting therefrom that part conveyed to
the City of Franklin by quit claim deed recorded as document no. 6934853 (City of
Franklin, applicant) (at 5801 West Franklin Drive)

Department ofCity Development RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTIONNO 2021

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 5-26-21J

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 2 LOT CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP, BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 1 AND 2 IN BLOCK 6 OF
FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF

THE SOUTHWEST 1/4, AND LOT 3 IN BLOCK 6 OF FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL
PARK ADDITIONNO 1 LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,
IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN,

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN BY QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO 6934853

(CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT)
(AT 5801 WEST FRANKLIN DRIVE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklm, W1sconsm, having subrmtted an application for
approval of a certified survey map, such map bemg a red1v1s10n of Lot 1 and 2 1 Block 6 of
Franklin Industnal Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4, and Lot 3 in
Block 6 of Franklm Industnal Park Addition No 1 located m the Southwest 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East, m the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, excepting therefrom that part conveyed to the City of
Franklm by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No.6934853, more specifically, of the
property located at 5801 West Franklin Drive, bearing Tax Key No. 931-0006-001, City of
Franklin, applicant, said certified survey map havmg been reviewed by the City Plan
Commiss1on and the Plan Comm1ss10n havmg recommended approval thereof pursuant to
certam conditions, and

WHEREAS, the Common Council havmg reviewed such apphcat10n and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed certified survey map 1s appropnate for approval pursuant to law upon certam
cond1t1ons

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Certified Survey Map submitted by the City of
Franklm, as descnbed above, be and the same 1s hereby approved, subject to the followmg
conditions

1 That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agenc1es, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicant, pnor to recording

2 That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees 1mposed pursuant to $92-9 of the Mun1c1pal



CITY OF FRANKLIN -- CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
Page 2

Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordmance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and buldmng permitted or resulting hereunder as 1t occurs from tame to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time

3 Each and any easement shown on the Certified Survey Map shall be the subject of
separate wntten grant of easement instrument, in such form as provided within the
City ofFrankln Desgn Standards and Construction Spec,jicatwns and such form
and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the City Engmeer or
designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement, and all being subject to
the approval of the Common Council, prior to the recording of the Certified Survey
Map.

4 City of Franklin, successors and assigns, and any developer of the City of Frankl 2
lot certified survey map project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, mspection and review fees mcurred by the City of Franklin,
mcluding fees of consults to the City of Frank.Im, w1thm 30 days of mvmce for same.
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Umfied Development
Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9 .0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the
general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to t1me

5 The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the City of Franklin and the 2 lot
certified survey map project for the property located at 5801 West Franklm Drve (i)
being m compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes,
orders and ordmances, and (11) obtammg all other governmental approvals, permits,
licenses and the hke, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as
presented for this approval

6. This Certified Survey Map approval is conditional upon a land division vanance to
allow for the creation of the lift station lot with less than 1 acre in area as required for
properties located mn Planned Development District No 7 (Franklin Industnal Park)

7. The techmcal corrections noted by the Engmeermg Department mn memorandum
dated May 24, 2021, and Milwaukee County Register of Deeds mn letter dated May
17,2021, must be addressed pnor to recordmg of this Certified Survey Map

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner,
Zeta Company, LLP, be and the same 1s hereby rejected without final approval and without
any further action of the Common Council, if any one, or more than one of the above
condrt1ons 1s or are not met and satisfied with1n 180 days from the date of adoption of th1s
Resolution



CITY OF FRANKLIN - CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
RESOLUTION NO 2021-
Page 3

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that upon the satisfaction of the above conditions
within 180 days of the date of adoption of this Resolution, same constrtuting final approval,
and pursuant to all applicable statutes and ordinances and lawful requirements and
procedures for the recordmg of a certified survey map, the City Clerk is hereby directed to
obtam the recordmg of the Certified Survey Map, certified by owner, Zeta Company, LLP,

with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin th1s
___ day of , 2021

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of
Franklm this day of 2021

APPROVED

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of June 3, 2021

Certified Survey Map (CSM) and Land Division Variance

Item D.1.

RECOMMENDATION: Department of City Development staff recommends approval of this
Certified Survey Map (CSM) and Land Diviston Variance.

Project Name:

General Project Location:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Agent:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Staff:

Certified Survey Map for the South 60 Street LIft Stat1on

5801 W Franklin Drive

Zeta Company, LLP

City of Franklin

Glen Morrow, City Engineer

Planned Development District (PDD) No 7

Commercial

Industrial to the north, east, south and southwest,
residential to the northwest.

Approval of Certified Survey Map and Land DIv1s1on
Var1ance

Principal Planner Regulo Martinez-Mont1lva

INTRODUCTION:

These Certified Survey Map (CSM) and Land Drvis1on Variance applications are part of the South
60 Street Industrial Park Sanitary Lift Station replacement project A Site Plan for a new sarntary
lift station was approved early this year by the Economic Development Commission (Resolution
2021-01) and Plan Commission (Resolution 2021-003), such Site Plan mcludes lift station
bmldmg, below-grade wet well, asphalt driveway, landscapmg and site lightmg

The purpose of this Certified Survey Map is to create a new lot for a new sanitary lft station mn the
City of Franklin Industrial Park The 11-acre property located at 5801 W Franklm Dr would be
drvded mnto 2 lots lot I with an area of 10 41 acres for the ex1stung manufacturing fac1lrty owned
by Zeta Company LLP and lot 2 with O 4 7 acre for the new samtary lift statton to be owned by the
City of Franklm.

The land dvrs1on variance 1s required to allow for the creation of the lft station lot wth an area
of 0.47 acre, while the mm1mum lot area m Planned Development District No 7 (Franklm
Industrial Park) 1s 1 acre per Ordmance No 85-864

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS:

City Development staff reviewed thus CSM for compliance wth DI1s1on 15-7 0700 "Certified
Survey Map" of the Unfied Development Ordinance (UDO), the mnformatron provided mn th1s
CSM 1s substantially complete



With regards to the requested Land Division Variance to allow for lot 2 with an area of 0.47 acre,
while mimmum lot area is 1 acre per Section 12.10(9) of the PDD Ordmance 85-864. City
Engmeer Glen Morrow provided responses to the findmgs and factors per UDO Section 15
9.0310 B.I City Development staff has no objections to the requested Land DI1s1on Variance
as lot 2 1s for a sanitary lift station, which does not require the same area as a regular industrial or
commercial site. Additionally, the use and location of the lift station was previously reviewed
and approved as noted in this staff report

Regarding natural resource features, sheet 3 (of 7) depicts two wetlands m the proposed lot 2 for
the lift station. Wetland l 1s exempt from state regulations but subject to federal regulations, and
wetland 2 is subject to both state and federal regulations However, natural resource protect1on
standards are not applicable to essential services per UDO Table 15-4 0100(a), a lift station is
considered an essential service per UDO definit10ns (Part 11).

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

City Development staff recommends approval of the subject Certified Survey Map and Land
Divis1on Variance, subject to the conditions mn the attached draft resolution mcludmng technical
corrections by the Engineering Department and Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

2



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLAN COMMISSION

RESOLUTIONNO. 2021

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

[Drcifi 5-26-21J

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A LAND DIVISION VARIANCE
FOR A2LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING A REDIVISION OF LOT 1 AND 2 IN
BLOCK 6 OF FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4, AND LOT 3 IN BLOCK 6 OF FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL

PARK ADDITIONNO 1 LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST
1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 6 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM
THAT PART CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF FRANKLIN BY QUIT CLAIM DEED

RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO.6934853
(CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT)
(AT 5801 WEST FRANKLIN DRIVE)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, havng submitted an application for a
land drvis1on var1ance to allow for the creation of a lift station lot with an area of 0 47 acres,
while the mun1mum lot area m Planned Development DIstr1ct No 7 (Franklin Industr1al Park)
is 1 acre, per Ordmance No. 85-864, such var1ance bemng necessary as a concurrent
application for approval of a certified survey map, such map being a redivision of Lot 1 and
2 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located 1n the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4,
and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Addit10n No. 1 located mn the Southwest 1/4
of the Southwest 1/4 of Sect10n 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East, m the City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsm, excepting therefrom that part conveyed to the City
of Franklin by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No.6934853, more specifically, of the
property located at 5801 West Franklm Dnve, bearmg Tax Key No 931-0006-001, City of
Franklm, applicant, and

WHEREAS, $15-9 0310 of the Umfied Development Ordmance allows for Land
Divis10n Vanances in part from the provisions of Divis1on 15-5 0100, $15-5 0106 and
Ordinance No 85-864 Section 12 10(9) prov1ding that no lot which 1s less than one (1) acre
m area shall be created m the Planned Development District No 7 (Frank.Im lndustnal Park),
and

WHEREAS, $15-9 0310 of the Umfied Development Ordmance sets foiih findings
whch must be made by the Plan Comm1ss1on and approved by a mayor1ty vote of the entire
membership of the Plan Comm1ss1on (4 votes) for approval of a Land DIvIs1on Variance
application.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Comm1ss1on of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsm, that the Commission makes the following findmgs upon the greater
we1ght of the evidence that all the following facts and condntuons ex1st



A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A LAND DIVISION VARIANCE
FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
Page 2

1 There are exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions
where a literal enforcement of the reqmrements of this Ordmance would result m
severe hardship, to wit: This lot is not needed for a full funct10nal business as other
lots m the mdustrial and busmess parks This 1s only a utility structure and most of
the requirements mtended to accommodate customers and employees are not
applicable
2. Such hardships should not apply generally to other properties or be of such a
recurrent nature as to suggest that the land drvus1on portions of the Unified
Development Ordmance should be changed, to wit The purpose of this structure is a
permanent nature and must be located here to facilitate sewage service for the area
Thus need 1s not appl1cable for most parcels m the City.
3 Such var1ance 1s necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights possessed by other properties in the same vcinuty, to wt A larger lot
for the lift station would unduly waste areas that are better suited for expansion of the
existing buildmg.
4 That the variance wll not create substantial detriment to adjacent property and will
not materially impair or be contrary to the purpose and spirit of this Ordinance or the
public mterest, to wit Architectural and landscapmg features have been provided to
not impair adjacent properties.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the apphcat10n by City of Franldm, for a Land
D1vis10n Vanance, upon the above findmgs, be and the same 1s hereby approved, subject to
the approval of the aforesaid certified survey map application by City of Franklin

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklm this
day of,2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of
Franklin thrs day of,2021

APPROVED

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST

Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



~City of Franklin_;;

5801 W. Franklin Drive
TKN: 931 0006 001

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 195 390 780 Feet A
NORTH

2017 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approxunate relative locahon ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map s provdedfor mformatonalpurposes only
and maynot be su.ffic1ent or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



E City of Frankltn_;;,,

5801 W. Franklin Drive
TKN: 931 0006 001

Property

FRANKLIN

]F-n

I-n
I-r.r,

:r.
I-:::c r-

I- Lu
o
0

I
:::c
I-t
I.I")

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 195 390 780 Feet A
NORTH

2017 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approxunate relatrve locaton ofproperty
boundanes but was notprepared bya profess1onal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor mformatwnalpurposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropnatefor legal engmeermg
or surveymgpurposes



Date·

To·

From.

RE.

MEMORANDUM

May 24, 2021

Paul R. Einng. GRAEF-USA, Inc.

City of Franklin, Department of City Development
Principal Planner Regulo Martinez-Montilva

Applications for Certified Survey Map and Land Division Variance - 5801 W Franklm Dr
and 10100 60" Street (S 60 Street sanitary lift stat1on)

Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the above applications. Department comments are
as follows.

Department gf City Development

1. Review comments below form the Engineermg Department and Milwaukee County Register of
Deeds must be addressed pnor to recording this Certified Survey Map (CSM)

Engineering Department

2 Technical review comments for the proposed land division (CSM)
I) Comments from Milwaukee County must be addressed
2) The label Township 6 on the headmgs must be changed to Township S
3) Descnbe the physical appearance of the reference monuments
4) On page 2 of 7, the 1/6 hne must be visible on the map

Mi l wau k ee County R e g i st e r g f D geds

3 See attached letter dated May 17, 2021



REGISTER OF DEEDS

Milwaukee County
ISRAEL RAMON • Register of Deeds

May 17, 2021

City ofFranklin Plannmg Departm ent
Attn Ga!l M Olsen, City Development Secretary
9229 W Loomis Road
Frankhn, WI 53132-9728

$75.00 Review Fee Paid

RE Prelmmmnary Review ofCerti fied Survey Map
That Part ofLot l & 2 1m Block 6 offrankhn Industnal Park, SW¼ ofSW ofSEC 36T SN, R21E, City of
Franklm, County ofMilwaukee, State ofWisconsin

Tax Key Number (s): 931-0006-001

Owners(s): Zeta Co

Comment: Please correc t the header on all pages about the Township 6 Should read Township 5

Comment: Please note the surrounding formatton regardmng Lot 4 Block 6 Frankl Industnal Park Addition No I
1s now Cert ified Survey Map 6200

Comment Some ofthe annotations on the proposed CSM 1s very small Once the CSM is recorded it wll need to
be legible

Comment: Milwaukee County is reviewing the Preliminary Plat for closure issues and to verify ownership.
Please referto Wisconsin State Stats 236 and the local municipahties ordinances for further questions.

35e.
Ros1ta Ross
Real Property Supervisor
Rosita.Rossa MilwaukccCounty1.gov
414-278-4047
Cc file

Ronnre Asuncion, Engncenng Techmucran
David L. Koslo/GRAEF

Franklin
MAY 19 2021

City Development

COURTHOUSE ROOM 103 • 901 NORTH 9TH STREET• MILWAUKEE WISCONSIN 53233 • (414)278-4021 • FAX (414) 223-1257

2858 R11



Planning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email generalplanning@franklinwi gov

City of Franklin Phone (414) 425 4024
Fax (414) 427 7691

Web Site www franklinwi gov

Date ofApplication

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (CSM) APPLICATION
Complete, accurate and specific information must be entered. Please Print

Applicant (Full Legal Name[s))
Name Stephen R Olson
Company City of Franklin

Mailing Address 9229 W Loomis Road

cy/state f"an."53132
Phone (414) 425 7500

Emal Address solson@franklinw gov

Applicant is Represented by· (contact person)(Fu/1 Lego/ Name[s])
Name Glen E Morrow
Company City of Franklin

Mailing Address 9229 W Loomis Road

ciy/sateFran"zu s3132
Phone (414) 425-7510

Email Address gmorrow@franklinw gov

Project Property Information
Property Address 5801 W Franklin Drive
Property Owner(s) ZETA COMPANY LLP clo LOGARAKIS GROUP

Tax Key Nos 931-0006-001

Mailing Address 9130 W LOOMIS RD STE 500

City/ State FRANKLIN W

Email Address

2i 53132

Existing Zoning _

Existing Use

Proposed Use

CMP Land Use Identification

•The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future land Use Map is available at http.//www franklinwi gov[Home/ResourcesDocuments/Mas htm

Certified Survey Maps shall be prepared as provided mn $ 236 34 (1m) (c] Wis. Stats and Division 15-7.0700 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

Certified Survey Map submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following
0 Milwaukee County Review Fee, payable to Milwaukee County Register of Deeds $75

0 Two (2) original map copies for Milwaukee County review, prepared at 8 1/2" wde by 14" long on durable white paper
[] Thus Application form accurately completed with original signature(s) Facsimiles and copes wall not be accepted
0 Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Frankhn $1,500
[] Seven (7) complete sets of Application materials, for Caty of Franklmn review to mnclude

[] Project Summary a written detailed description of the project One (1) orgnal and six (6) copies
[] Ma Copies One (1) original map copy and six (6) map copies prepared at 8 1/2" wide by 14" long and must be clearly legible

LJ As may be required, seven (7) copies of a "Natural Resource Protection Plan and "landscape Plan" for any landscape bufferyard easement areas
[]if opplcable, three (3) copies of the Natural Resource Protection report (see D1v1s1on 15-9 0309D of the UDO)
[] if applicable, one copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations (see Dr1son 15-3 0500 of the UDO)
D Email {or CD ROM) with all plans and submittal materials in Adobe PDF (May be waived by City Planner)

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days
•All Certified Survey Map requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval
•All Certified Survey Map requests shall comply with Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes

Name & Title (P RINT)

>2

Date _
Name & Title (P RINT)

Signature Property Owner

Name & Titl e (P RINT)

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other mformatlon submitted as part of this apphcation are true and correct
to the best of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information 1n this
apphcation, and (3) the apphcant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Apphcat1on and its
submittal, and any subsequently issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there 1s a breach of such
representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By execution of thus application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to
enter upon the subJect property(1es) between the hours of 7 00 am and 7 00 pm daily for the purpose of inspectmn while the application s under review
The property owner{s) grant this authonzat1on even if the property has been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat 5943 13

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President if the business is a
corporation A signed applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's
authorization letter may be provided 'n lieu of the property owner's signature[s] below If more than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this

Appl/'.°''~



Plannmng Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklm, Wisconsin 53132
Email generalplannmng@franklmw gov

City of Franklin Phone (414) 425-4024
Fax (414) 427-7691

Web Site www franklw1 gov

Findings and Factors in the Review of Land Division Variances

Date: May 5, 2021 Case No. _

Property Owner: _z_e_ta_C_o_m_p_a_ny _

Property Address:9%01Fan"P""@

Section 15-9.0310B.1 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance states, "No
variance to the provisions of Divisions 15-5.0100, 15-8.0100, and 15-8.0200 of this Ordinance
shall be granted unless the Plan Commission finds by the greater weight of the evidence that all
the following facts and conditions exist and so indicates in the minutes of its proceedings:

1. There is exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions where a literal
enforcement of the requirements of this Ordinance would result in severe hardship.

This lot is not needed for a full functional business as other lots in the mdustral and business parks This is only a utility structure and

most of the requirements mtended to accommodate customers and employees are not applicable

2. Such hardships should not apply generally to other properties or be such a recurrent nature as
to suggest that the land division portions of the Unified Development Ordinance should be
changed.

The purpose of this structure rs a permanent nature and must be located here to fac1htate sewage service for the area This need

1s not applicable for most parcels in the City

3. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights
possessed by other properties m the same vicinity.

A larger lot for the lift station would unduly waste areas that are better suited for expansion of the ex1stmg building

4. That the vanance will not create substantial detriment to adjacent property and will not
materially impair or be contrary to the purpose and spirit of this Ordmance or the publ1c
interest.

Architectural and landscapmg features have been provided to not impair adjacent properties



GR-EF
The Avenue
275 Wesl Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee WI 53203
414/2591500
414 1259 0037 fax
www .graef-usa.com

PROJECT NARRATIVE

,
. 5?2t

1· 3%%$. ,
,..

•

2.Ee
,\ ::::------..___
I\Jll ' ~~- .. ,h-ca+eras-g-jg

TO: Franklin Planning Department

FROM: James A Lisak, P.E.

DATE: December 3, 2020

SUBJECT: Franklin South 60th Street Industrial Park Sanitary Lift Station

The City of Franklin Engineering Department has determined that the existing municipal sanitary lift
station located on South 6oth Street approximately 650 feet south of W Franklin Drive has reached its
useful fife and requires replacement. The sanitary hft station tributary area is primarily the commercial
and industrial properties within the Franklin Industrial Park, as well as residential lots on the west side
of South 60th Street and north side of Oakwood Road

The existing sanitary lift station Is comprised of two below grade structures, a 10-foot diameter concrete
wet well which accepts wastewater from tributary sanitary sewers, and a 9-foot diameter metal pump
station with 20 horsepower pumps and piping. The existing pump controls are located above grade
The site is accessed by an asphalt driveway. The existing lift station and force main are located within
the right-of-way of South 60 Street.

~ -. -- ·7 ~~---- . .

----- _.....---

2020-0296 00



GR
REHER

EF
The existing sanitary lift station must remain active to serve its tributary area during the construction of
the new sanitary lift staton. This is accomplished by constructing the new sanitary lift station
approximately 150 feet south of the existing lift station. Once the new lift station is complete and
operational, wastewater will be conveyed to the new lift station via a 24-inch gravity sanitary sewer, and
the new pump discharge reconnected to the existing 12-inch sanitary force main.

The project parcel is property currently owned by the Zeta Company, with an address of 5801 W
Franklin Drive, and a tax key number of 931 0006 001. The City of Franklin has started negotiations
with the property owner to purchase a parcel of approximately 0.470 acres A Certified Survey Map
(CSM) will be prepared for this purchase, which will include an easement on the south side to maintain
the Franklin Industrial Park drainage dutch.

The site will consist of an asphalt driveway for access and fac1lit1es relate to the lift station operation
Landscaping Is proposed on the site to complement the facility and provide some level of screening
from the neighboring facilities Site lighting will be located on the west fa9ade adJacent to the access
doors, and a site light pole adjacent to the wet well is provided for maintenance. The site light pole will
be operated as needed basis, via a switch wthin the facility

The new 11ft station will consist of two structures, an above grade Lift Station and a below grade wet
well The above grade lift station will be approximately 736 square feet and constructed of masonry
block walls veneered with EIFS and EIFS brick, and metal deck roofing abutting a masonry parapet
wall. The building will be classified as Type IlB, non-combustible, unprotected. Access into the fac1l1ty 1s
by one 6-foot wide double entrance door and a 10-foot wide garage door The facility will be comprised
of two rooms, one space that houses the process p1pmg and pump control panels, and another space
that houses a diesel-fueled, 1 00kW standby generator and electrical equipment A generator air intake
louver will be located on the north facade of the facility. A generator exhaust louver, exhaust pipe, fuel
tank fill box, and normal and emergency vent piping will be located on the east facade of the facility.

The below grade wet well consists of two chambers. The wastewater influent enters a headworks
structure that includes a grinder channel and bypass channel. The grinder cuts sizeable wood, paper
and plastic items down to a size that can be passed by the pumps Wastewater then flows into the
primary well that houses the submersible pumps. Three submersible wastewater pumps are utilized to
convey flow to another section of the municipal sanitary sewer system. Each submersible pump
includes a removal system that allows the City to remove the pumps and perform maintenance without
entering the structure. Jib cranes are provided for removal of equipment, and as a device for
maintenance personal safely enter the below grade structure if needed

Soil Investigation

A geotechnical investigation has been completed for the project Soil borings were completed on
October 15, 2020, with a Geotechmcal Engmeenng Report completed and submitted on November 10,
2020. In general the soil profile includes a surficial topsoil layer of 10 to 14 inches thick, a sandy lean
clay or organic sandy clay fill layer of 3 5 to 6 feet thick, and a native lean clay layer with occasional

Franklin Planning Department

2020-0296 00

-2- December 3, 2020



GR
EE

EF
native sandy silt or clayey sand intermixed. Groundwater was observed to be approximately 18 5 feet to
23.5 feet below the ground surface during drilling.

Wetland Investigation

A wetland investigation and delineation was completed on October 8, 2020. Historical aerial images
were reviewed to further understand the past land use of the site The 1975 and 1985 images portrayed
a farm field in the area of the north-south wetland ditch. Sometime between 1985 and 1995 the ditch
area was regraded, and the rest of the site was built on for commercial/industrial uses. In the 1975 and
1985 images, wetland signatures are not present. The subsequent images reveal progressively more
prominent wetland signatures Based on grading and stormwater plans, the ditch was created to drain
runoff from the parking lot and building directly north of the wetland. It is likely that the human
alterations to the landscape allowed for the ponding of water and created the north-south wetland W-1
In addition to historic images, WWI, contour, and soil maps were reviewed with no evidence of wetland
characteristics observed pnor to these human modifications. Wetland signatures were also not
observed on the historical USGS topography map

The wetland 1s not believed to have a fish spawning habitat or provide passage to fish spawning
habitat. Water quality and flood protection will not be impacted as the wetland will continue to flow in
the same way post construction. Based on the summary of observations and desktop review of maps
and images, it 1s our opinion that these wetlands were formed from human modification to the
landscape and there is no definitive evidence of wetland or stream prior to 1991. Due to the stormwater
drainage nature of this wetland, it is unlikely to provide fish spawning habitat or provide passage to fish
spawning habitat.

GRAEF electronically submitted on October 30, 2020, an artificial wetland exemption request to both
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and the US Army Corp of Engineers In accordance
wIth UDO Section 15-4.0102J, the site would be exempt from wetland setbacks. An approved
exemption letter was received from the Wisconsin DNR on December 2, 2020.

Natura] Resource Protection Plan

As defined in UDO sections 15-4.0100 and 15-11.0100, there are no natural resource features present
on the site

Franklin Planning Department

2020-0296 00

-3- December 3, 2020





CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.
Being o red1v1s1on of Lot 1 ond 2 In Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located in the
Northwes 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and Lot 3 In Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park
Add1\1on No 1 Located mn the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26,
Township 6 North, Range 21 Eost In the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County Wisconsin
Excepting therefrom that part conveyea to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim deed
recorded as Document No 6934853 -

275 West Wisco nsin Avenue, Suite 39
Mitwat:kee, WI53203
41412591500
414/259 0037fax
www.graef-usa.com

GR@EF

0 100' 200'
?z

SCALE 1" = 200'

LEGEND

MAP DATIE. 1/29/2021

0 FOUND

• 3/4x24 REBAR SET
MINIMUM WEIGHT 1 13 LBS/FT

Ill FOUND CONC. MONUMENT
W/BRASS CAP

( ) RECORDED AS

(N 2530'35° w)
N 2530'42" w
83.21'

SW 1/4, SEC. 26 T 5N R 21E.
LOCATI ON MAP

LEN .-47.50
RAD.-370.00
A-00721'1g"
CHD. LEN.47.47
CHD. DR.-S0359'11E
TAN.-23.78
TAN. BRG.-S OT39'5D" E

W FPAAKl>N~>J71--IW OI\K\\ICODRQ.4D

t

1291

FOUND 1 _j
ID PIP E

E ASE,

" = 2000'

LOTZ
453,730SO_ FT

1QA16AC.

(S 88"31 50" W)

N 001854"
150.02s.
s 88'31'43" ·w SSJ:03'

RIGHT OF WAY VARIES

LOT 4 BLOCK 6

FND 2" LD PIPES

N 88"31'43" E
5.13

(N 883130" E)

DETAIL A

~ NTS /

-gs31 30" w 270 60)WESTFRANKLINDRIVE s 88"31'23" w
270.51'

--WT 1/4 CORNER
SEC. 26 T SN R 21E.
Y=32186676
X=2,538,659 53

33 45

P.0.8.L - ,~t' 45.~~-6.58
9 FR/WKUNINDUSTRIALPARK

ADDtnONNO.t

S.W. CORNER
S.X. SEC 26 T SN R.21E
Y=319,227 96
X=2,538,674.04

(N 44'06 22" E)
N 44'06'15" E

71.42'

GENERAL NOTES
1 ) Bea ri ngs are reference d ta th e West line of th e Southw est 1/4 of Sectio n 26, To wnship 5 North , R ang e

21 East which bears N 0018 54 W based o n th e Wisco nsin Stote Plo n e Coordinate System, So uth
Zon e NAD2 7

2 ) Own er on d subd 1v1d er 1s Zeto Comp ony o Wisco nsin generol partnership 5801 W Fra nklin Dnve Fra nklin
WI 53132 Tax Key #931-0006-001

3 ) This parcel is zone d Pla nn e d D evelo pme nt District No 7
Build ing setb ocks ore 30 feel from fro nt yord , 25 feet for rear yord ond 10 feet from sid e yard

4) This porcel not in floo d plo in
5 ) Dote of survey Septemb er 2020 Jonuary 2021

This Instrument Drafted By David L Kasla, PLS No 2437 JOB NO 20200296 SHEET 1 OF 7



CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.
Being o red1v 1s1on of Lot 1 and 2 mn Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located mn the
Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and Lot 3 In Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Pork
Add1t1on No 1 Located mn the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26
Township 6 North Range 21 East In the City of Franklin Milwaukee Coumy, Wisconsin
Excepting therefrom thm port conveyed to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim deed
recorded as Document No 6934853

Ill
5

I
I
I

ESE

1" = 100·

www .graef-usa .com

275WestWisc0nsn Avenue, Suite300
Mit.vau~.wt53203
4141259 1500
4141259 0037ax

-GR@EF

15DRAINAGE EASEMENT
FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK

BU ILDIN G SETBACK --- 30' ~
(TYP) o:i

e
2a WATERMAINEASEMENT

DOC.10976419
N 88''04'59' E~~------1 0

a
_- -EASE--- '-------1 "'
N88"04'59" E 276.52'

o 50' 100'
1....--L...-,

SCALE

- - - EASE- -

30'

4O PUBLIC STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT
FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK ADDITIONNO 1

LOCATIONOF THIS UNE IS
APPROX. AS EXHIBIT IS VAGUE

40 SANITARYSEWEREASEMENT
FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK

--FA

r1
I BU IL D IN G SETBACK
---'------4---~---1---LANDSCAPEEASEMENT

I I ~ FRANKUN INDUSTRIAL
PARKADDITIONNO 1
-EASE-

$i $.4%•a °/

V°f.,_:. N89'4106"E 168.97' 12'UTIUTYEASEMENT1 ooc.eor
N89"41'06' E 180.00

_,
~ ILi w

s·3 3I I I
~ I Iz
~ I r-- UTILITY EASEMENT
1--- DOC. 5887636I I I
no tA

~ f f
"'~ I I

I I
w [I

w wn• -< -<w w

-.--+aol-
40' 1-1

I I
l= · L.i=..% •

'.!,! IX UTILITY EASEMENT
w 1 · DOC.5921936

r

(/)
(/)
wuu
<(

0z

GENERAL NOTES

1 ) Resolutio n esta blishing dee d restnctions on d protective covenants for the City of Fra nklin lnd ustn al Park
reco ded on July 18 198 5 Re el 17 7 4 Ima g e 100 5 as Docume nt No 5828 27 3 and m Resolutio n recorde d o n
Novemb er 20 , 19 8 5 Reel 1818 , Ima ge 596 as Docume nt No 58 664 27 Resolutio n Ame nding dee d restrictio ns
and protective covenants for the City of Fra nklin Ind ustrial Park recorded o n Octo ber 7 198 8 Re el 226 1 Imag e
790 as Docume nt No 62 15 75 9 Resolutio n Amending Resolutio n Na 88-3 18 9 and amending th e dee d restnct,o ns
and protective covena nts for the City of Fra nkhn Ind ustrial Pork recorde d o n February 12 19 92 Re el 27 13 ,
lma ae 15 7 , as Document No 65 69 7 9 2

2) Resolutio n to release access to South 60th Street restrictions note d In the final plat for Franklin In d ustri a l
Pork Additio n Na 1 record e d o n Octo ber 19 , 20 09 , as Document Na 980 50 6 1

3)Project Areo Redevelo pme nt Pla n for the City of Fro nkhn Business (Ind ustri al) Pork Expa nsio n recorde d on
Decemb er 29 19 95 Re el 370 2 , Ima ge 18 7 as Docume nt No 7 16 6729

This Instrument Drafted By-David L Koslo, PLS No 2437 JOB NO 20200296 SHEET 2 OF 7



CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.
Be,ng o red1v1s1on of Lot 1 and 2 1n Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located mn the
Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and Lot 3 mn Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Pork
Add1t1on No 1 Located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Sect ion 26
Township 6 North, Range 21 East mn the City of Franklin Milwaukee County, W1scons1n
Except,ng therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Franklin by OU1t Claim deed
recorded as Document No 6934853 -

t
275 WestWisccmsin Avenue, Suite 3G0
Mi lwaukee. WI 53203
4 4/2591500
41412590037fax
www .graef-usa .com

GR@JEF

0 20' 40'

Sze
SCALE 1" = 40'

@
Wetlan.ds were delineated by Alison
Kuhne October 2020, the
delineation rs prelimmarly, subject
to Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resource confirmation Wetland Is
subject to state and federal
weUond regulations

-· - EXISTING
CONTOURS

PROPOSED
CONTOURS
For Sanitary Luft Station
approved by Plan Comm1ss1on
Resolution No 2021-003

WETLAND SETBACK

1<
~

wow ]
g

CD
Exempt from state wetland regulations and rs not
subject to local setback or buffer requirements
Subject to federal regulations and permitting

Wetlands were delineated by Alison Kuhne October
2020, the delineation 1s preliminonly, subject to
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource
confirmation

LINE TABLE

LINE# LENGTH DIRECTION

L1 14,98 N1Y23'37"E

L2 17 56' N1432'02"w

L3 68.92' NO210'26"E

L4 4.64' NO210'22E

L5 2704 N06'51'16"E

L6 6.12" N88"3 1 39"E

L7 26.54' S0214'08"w

LB 5.08' S00'43'56"W

L9 35.15' S00'44'01"w

L10 34.74' S0619'23"w

L11 25.97' $0239'42E

L12 8.56' $5517 46"w

LINE TABLE

LINE# LENGTH DIRECTION

L13 5.90' NO019'32"w

L14 25.97' N68"48'52"E

L15 22.10' N7915 20E

L16 8.56 N5517'46"E

L17 42.44' N82'56'02"E

L18 35.03 N8822'41"

L19 4.77 N88"22 39"E

L20 1955' $0018'54E

L2 1 4.78' S8S"35'03"W

L22 33.19' S85"34'56"W

L23 40.79' $85 02'1.2"w

L24 22.10' S8013'19"W

L25 34.69' S8831'42"w

D°

;
26

....._ ,·
\

This Instrument Drafted By Dov1d L Koslo, PLS No 2437 JOB NO 20200296 SHEET 3 OF 7



CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.---------
Being a redivision of Lots 1 and 2 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4, and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Add1t1on No 1 located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4
of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Excepting
therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No 6934853

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

I, David L Koslo, a professional land surveyor, certify

Being a redivision of Lots 1 and 2 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4, and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Addrtion No 1 located m the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4
of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Excepting
therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No 6934853, which 1s
bounded and described as follows

Commencing from the Northwest 1/4 of said Southwest 1/4, Thence South 00°18'54" East along the West line of
said Southwest 1/4, 1534 46 feet, Thence North 88°31'43" East, 45 00 feet to the East right of way line of South
60 Street and the point of beginning, Thence North 0018'54" West, along said East right of way mne, 765 00 feet
to the south nght of way line of West Franklin Drive, Thence North 44°06'15" East along said South right of way
hne, 71 42 feet, Thence North 88°31 43 East, along said South right of way line, 5 13 feet, Thence North
85°54'29" East along said South rght of way line, 219 35 feet, Thence North 88°31 '23" East along said South nght
of way line, 270 51, Thence South 2530'42" East along said South right of way hne, 83 21 feet to the West nght of
way lune of South 70 Street, Thence South 00°18'54 East along said West nght of way line 701 62 feet to the
beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 370 00 feet and long chord which bears South 03%59 11" East
47 47 feet with a central angle of 07°21'19", Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, 47 50 feet to the
North line of Lot 4 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Addition No 1, Thence South 88%31'43 West along said
North line of Lot 4, 583 03 fee to the point of beginning

Containing 474,217 square feet (10 887 acres}, more or less

That I have made the survey, land division, and map by the direction of Zeta Company, a Wisconsin general
partnership

That the map is a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land dvision
thereof made

That I have complied with Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes and Part 7 of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordnance in surveying, dvidng and mapping the same Per Wis Stat 236 21 (1) this certificate has
the same force and effect as an affidavit

ao 2/2lz

r. L'

I
i

This Instrument Drafted By David L Koslo, PLS No 2437 sheet 4 of 7



CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.---------
Bemng a redivision of Lots 1 and 2 mn Block 6 of Frankln Industrial Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4, and Lot 3 mn Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Addition No 1 located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4
of Section 26 Township 6 North, Range 21 East mn the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Excepting
therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Franklin by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No 6934853

ENTITY OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

Zeta Company, a Wisconsin general partnership, duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Wisconsin, as owner, certifies that said entity caused the land described on this certified survey map to be
surveyed, divided, and mapped as represented on this map in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 236
of the Wisconsin Statutes and Part 7 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance I also certify that this
Certified Survey Map 1s required to be submitted to the following for approval City of Franklin

This agreement is binding on the undersigned and successors and assigns

Date _

Entity Name _

Signature_-

Type or Print Name _

Title _

STATE OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

Personally came before me thus_day of,2l •(name), the
_____(title) of the above named entity, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing
instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the foregoing instrument as such officer on behalf of the entity
by 1ts authority

Notary Signature

Print NotaryName _

Notary Public, State of_My commission expires

(Notary Seal)

This Instrument Drafted By David L Koslo, PLS No 2437 Sheet 5 of 7



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
Being a redivision of Lots 1 and 2 m Block 6 of Franklin lndustnal Park located mn the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4, and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park Add1t1on No 1 located mn the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1 /4
of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Excepting
therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Franklin by OUlt Claim deed recorded as Document No 6934853

CONSENT OF ENTITY MORTGAGEE

Lincoln State Bank, a financial institution duly organized and exasting under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Wisconsin, as mortgagee of the above described land, consents to the surveying, d1v1ding, mapping,
and restnctmg of the land described on this map and m the surveyor's certificate, and to the certificate of the
owner(s) of said land

Date _

Entity lame
lanatue

Type or Print Name _

Title _

STATE OF _

COUNTY

Personally came before me thus_day of,21n(name and
title) of the above named entity, to me known to be the person who executed the foregrnng instrument, and
acknowledged that he/she executed the foregoing instrument as such officer on behalf of the entity, by its
authority

Notary Signature _

Prut Notary Name_

Notary Public, State of _

My commission expires

(Notary Seal)

7,
/

This Instrument Drafted By David L Koslo PLS No 2437 sheet 6 of 7



CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP NO.---------
Being a red1v1s1on of Lots 1 and 2 in Block 6 of Franklin Industrial Park located in the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4, and Lot 3 in Block 6 of Franklin lndustnal Park Add1t1on No 1 located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4
of Section 26, Township 6 North, Range 21 East in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin Excepting
therefrom that part conveyed to the City of Frankhn by Quit Claim deed recorded as Document No 6934853

COMMON COUNCIL APPROVAL

Thus certified survey map was approved under Resolution Fle No

adopted by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on _

Date _

]0nature

Type or Print Name _
(Stephen R Olson, Mayor)

Date _

4]na[Ure
Type or PnntName _

(Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk)

This Instrument Drafted By David L Koslo, PLS No 2437 Sheet 7 of 7



blank page



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Recommendation from Fair Commission
to Hold St. Martins Labor Day Event on

September 5 and 6, 2021

MEETING
DATE

6/15/2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.7.

At their meeting of June 2, 2021, the Fair Commission moved to recommend to the Common
Council that the St. Martins Labor Day Fair be held on September 5 and 6, 2021. (In 2020 the Fair
was postponed due to the pandemic.) The Fair Commission reviewed and amended the Fair Rules
and Regulations to include recommendations as best practices to prevent the spread of COVID,
which will include an updated COVID-19 Special Events and Gatherings Considerations
information page from the Director of Health and Human Services/Health Officer. If the
recommendation to proceed with the 2021 Fair is approved by the Common Council, the City
Clerk's office, Department of Public Works, and Health Department will work together to develop
a plan for messaging, signage, hygiene and sanitation services.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to hold the St. Martins Labor Day Event on September 5 and 6, 2021, as recommended
by the Fair Commission.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE-slw



blank page



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Committee of the Whole
Recommendations

MEETING DATE

06-15-21

ITEM NUMBER

G.8.

Recommendations from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of June 14, 2021:

Continued Discussion Regarding the Establishment/Use of the City of Franklin Common
Council Reference Manual:

(a) Common Council Code of Conduct.

(b) Common Council Rules ofOrder.

(c) Handbook for Wisconsin Municipal Officials.

(d) Plan to Update to Existing Policies/Need for Additional Policies, and Common
Council Training/Professional Development Opportunities.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As directed

CLERKDEPT



blank page



APPROVAL

So
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION FORCONTRACT FOR SERVICESWITH THE
STATE OF WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF

ADMINISTRATION FORLOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD
WATERASSISTANCE PROGRAMVENDORREFUND

POLICY

MTG.DATE
June 15, 2021

ITEM NO.

G.9.
BACKGROUND
On Monday, June 14, 2021, Staff received an email from the State of Wisconsin, Department of
Administration (DOA), Division of Energy, Housing, and Community Resources (DECHR).
DECHR will be receiving grant funding for a Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program
for FY 2021.

The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law No: 116-260) signed on December 27,
2020, included $638,000,000 in funding with instructions for the Administration for Children and
Families (ACF) within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) to carry out
grants to assist low-income households, particularly those with the lowest incomes, that pay a high
proportion of household income for drinking water and wastewater services, by providing funds
to owners or operators ofpublic water systems or treatmentworks to reduce arrearages of and rates
charged to such households for such services.

To be established as a vendor/supplier in the State's Financial System, Franklin Sewer and Water
Utilities need to Utility Vendor Agreement Contract by Friday June 18, 2021. Additional
information regarding this program and timing, will be forthcoming.

ANALYSIS
No additional analysis currently. Staff has left voicemails with DOA staff and is awaiting
clarification.

FISCAL NOTE
Unknown impact currently.

RECOMMENDATIONMOTION
A motion to adopt Resolution 2021- a resolution for contract for services with the State of
Wisconsin Department of Administration for low income household water assistance program
vendor refund policy.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION FOR CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION FOR LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM VENDOR REFUND POLICY

WHEREAS, The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law No: 116-260) signed
on December 27, 2020, included $638,000,000 in funding with instructions for the Administration
for Children and Families (ACF) within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
to carry out grants to assist low-income households, particularly those with the lowest incomes, that
pay a high proportion of household income for drinking water and wastewater services, by providing
funds to owners or operators of public water systems or treatment works to reduce arrearages of and
rates charged to such households for such services

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration (DOA), Division of
Energy, Housing, and Community Resources (DECHR). DECHR will be receiving grant funding for
a Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program for FY 2021 in accordance with the referenced
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021; and

WHEREAS, to be established as a vendor/supplier in the State's Financial System, Franklin
Sewer and Water Utilities need to Utility Vendor Agreement Contract by Friday June 18, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Franklin enter a contract for services with the State of Wisconsin
Department of Administration for low income household water assistance program vendor refund
policy.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, the Director of Finance and Treasurer and
the City Clerk be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said Agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk
AYESNOESABSENT



State of Wisconsin Department ofAdmin1strat1on
Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources (DEHCR)

homeenergy+
Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP)
PO Box 7970
Madison WI 53707-7970
heat@wsconsmn gov

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN THE STATE OF
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION AND

VEN DOR NAME

This Vendor Contract is entered into by and between the State ofWisconsin, Department ofAdmin1strat1on, D1v1s1on of Energy, Housing
and Community Resources hereinafter the "D1v1s10n", under the following terms

1. Definitions
a) Agency means the entity that administers LIHWAP
b) Department means the Wisconsin Department ofAdministration.
c) Division means the Division of Energy, Housing and Community Resources
d) LIHWAP means the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program.
e) LIHWAP payment includes home drinking water and wastewater benefits
f) Vendor means any private or public entity in the business of supplying water and/or wastewater related services to

customers
g) WHEAP means the Wisconsin Home Energy Assistance Program

2 The Division agrees to the following
a) To provide funds for LIHWAP
b) To assign a vendor number/business code to each Vendor after the contract is signed
c) To issue to a vendor a single check or Automated Clearing House (ACH) payment that includes benefits for all LIHWAP

eligible households A payment register, accessed via the secured Home Energy Plus System, precedes the check or ACH
deposit. The register includes the name ofthe LIHWAP applicant, the account name and number, the amount(s) to be
applied to each customer, and the address and county of residence of the applicant.

3 The Vendor agrees to the following
a) To provide water and/or wastewater services to each eligible res1dent1al household in an amount equal to the LIHWAP

payment received in the current program year
b) To charge LIHWAP eligible households using the Vendor's normal billing process
c) To charge all LIHWAP eligible households the price normally charged for home drinking water and/or wastewater

supplied to non-ehg1ble households
d) Not to discriminate against a LIHWAP eligible household with respect to terms, deferred payment plans, credit,

conditions of sale or discounts offered to other customers
e) To provide to the Division, upon request, wrth written reconcilation and confirmation that benefits have been credrted

appropriately to households and their services have been restored on a timely basis or disconnection status has been
removed if applicable

f) To apply LIHWAP crisis payments 1dent1fied in the Payment Register as directed by the Agency and/or DIv1s1on
g) To post all payments to customer accounts wrthmn 3-5 business days.
h) To clearly enter, on LIHWAP households' bill, the amount of LIHWAP payment(s) recerved in a manner which 1dent1fies

the payment as received from the Wisconsin Low Income Household Water Assistance Program or LIHWAP
i) To provide a statement to LIHWAP households clearly indicating the cost of home drmkmg water and/or wastewater

services provided
J) To, annually send all refunds, mn compliance with LIHWAP Vendor Refund Pohc1es, no later than 60 days following the

end of the program year (September 30)
k) To comply with LIHWAP Vendor Refund Policies and to maintain an accounting system and supporting fiscal records for

five years and to provide records to D1v1s1on representatives upon request
I) To fully cooperate with the Division's monitoring practices, Including but not limited to providing requested

documentation within set time frames, as well as communicating with DIvsion staff.
1of3
5/2021



¥
DEHCR lInenergy#

m) To provide at no cost to the D1vis1on, customer, or agency, written information on an applicant household's home
drinking water and/or wastewater costs, bill payment history, and/or arrearage history for no more than the previous 12
monthly billing periods even when it may be from a prior occupant household.

n) To comply with all Wisconsin laws, regulation or other requirements pertaining to the supply of home drinking water
and/or wastewater services for residential use In the event of any dispute between the Div1s1on and the Vendor, the
venue for any legal action arising out ofthe Contract shall be Dane County Wisconsin

o) To provide at no cost to the Department, or an authorized agent to the Department, for the purposes of research,
evaluation, and analysis, information on household water and/or wastewater costs and usage for partIc1pants of
LIHWAP.

p) To report, to the Agency and/or the Division, srtuatons that threaten life, health or safety.
q) To cooperate with the Agency and/or the D1v1s1on in developing procedures to respond to mmmedate and potential

emergencies which includes the prov1s1on of household water and/or wastewater services based on the documented
promise to pay using LIHWAP funds

r) To cooperate wrth the Agency in providing home drinking water and/or wastewater services to elgble households.
s) To provide the Division with business practice and contact mnformaton and to notify the Divs1on of any changes
t) To comply with the terms ofthis contract for customers who have LIHWAP payments transferred from another vendor.
u) To notify the Drvs1on of mergers and/or acquisitions Mergers and/or acquisitions may affect the company's policies and

service areas. Subm1ss1on of a new vendor contract reflecting such policy and service area changes may be required as
indicated in this contract

v) To provide the contents ofthis contract to all applicable Vendor staff.
w) To hold the Division harmless and to indemnify the D1v1s1on, the Department, its Agencies, officers and employees

against any and all claims, suits, actions, liab11it1es and costs of any kind, including attorney's fees, for personal injury or
damage to property arising from the acts or omissions of Supplier, or its agents, office, employees or subcontractor
Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary in no eventwith either party be liable to the other for any
Incidental, indirect, special, consequential or punitive damages or lost profits.

4 Length of Contract
a) This contract 1s in effect until terminated as described in the 'Termination' section Both parties have executed this

contract as ofthe day and year indicated by the D1v1s1on agent's signature

5 Termination
a) This contract will terminate effective immediately upon determination by the Dvision that the Vendor is not in

compliance with the terms of this contract. The Vendor will be notified within ten days of termination.
b) Either the Division or the Vendor may terminate this contract by giving the other party at least ten days written notice

6 Entire Contract
a) It is understood and agreed that the entire contract between the parties 1s contained m this Vendor Contract.
b) This contract supersedes all previous commitments, promises, representations either oral or written, between the

parties relating to the subject matter hereof
c) The person signing this Contract, on behalf ofthe Vendor, certifies and attests that they have full and complete authority

to bind the Vendor, on whose behalf they are executing this document.

By typing my name in the provided field, I indicate that I am the person named, and this entry is the legal equivalent of a
manual/handwritten signature. Ifurther understand that Imay print the document and sign by hand.

Vendor Signature

DIvs1on of Energy, Housing and Community Resources Signature

2 of3
5/2021

Date (mm/dd/ccyy)

Date (mm/dd/ccyy)



Monenergy
Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) Vendor Refund Policy

1 Credit Balances - If no change occurs mn the residence of the LIHWAP recipient and the recipient retains the same supplier wrth an
active account, the credit balance of LIHWAP funds remains with the Vendor until exhausted

2 Unclaimed Credit Balances - In the event there is a balance of LIHWAP funds remaining on an account AND the account becomes
inactive, AND the Vendor 1s unable to locate the customer, the balance of the funds is to be returned, by check, to the Div1s1on by the
end of each program year (September 30). The returned check shall include all information hsted m item number seven of this Refund
Policy

3 Move Within State and Change of Water and/or Wastewater Services Provider - Ifthe LIHWAP recipient changes water and/or
wastewater services providers or moves to another residence within the state and has a relationship with a new provider, the Vendor
holding the credit balance ofthe LIHWAP payment(s) must transfer the balance to the new water and/or wastewater services
provider (Vendor) or new account

4. Move and No Relationship with Vendor - When a LIHWAP recipient moves hus or her household and as a result the recipient has no
direct relationship wrth a Vendor, any credit balance of LIHWAP payments is to be returned by check to the Drvsion with the
information listed in number seven ofthis Refund Policy

5 Move Out of State - When a LIHWAP rec1p1ent moves out ofWisconsin any credit balance of LIHWAP payments shall be returned by
check to the Divs1on with the information listed mn number seven ofthus Refund Policy.

6 Deceased Recipient - In the event a credit balance remains, and the account 1s closed, the credit balance will be refunded to the
program no later than the end ofthe program year (September 30) Submrt a check to the Dison with the information listed mn
number seven of this Refund Pohcy

7 Return Address for Refunds to the State of Wisconsmn - Mail refunds to
DOA/DIVISION OF ENERGY, HOUSING AND COMMUNITY RESOURCES
ATTN LIHWAP REFUND
PO BOX 7970
MADISON WI 53707-7970
Refunds must include the following information Customer name, Customer address, Date of LIHWAP payment to Vendor, Reason
for the return

8 Vendor Payments -- All LIHWAP payments made to a Vendor shall be applied to currentwater and/or wastewater services costs
LIHWAP payments that exceed current costs shall be applied as creditto the customers' account. Credit balances shall be handled mn
accordance with the policies ofthis contract Any balance remaining shall be credited to the customers' account.

9 Incorrect Payments -- All Vendors are required to review the weekly payment register for accuracy of LIHWAP payments In the event
a payment 1s made in error, the Vendor shall contact the D1v1s1on's Help Desk at (608) 267-3680 or heat@wsconsmn gov Contact must
occur within 30 days to correct the error If payments are made in error corrections needed will be determined by the D1v1sion.

3of3
5/2021



STATE OF WISCONSIN
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION OF ENERGY, HOUSING AND COMMUNITY RESOURCES
P O BOX 7970
MADISON, WI 53707-7970
HEAT@WISCONSIN GOV

Water Utility Vendor Information

Water Utility Vendor Name (payment is Issued mn thus name)

Primary Contact

Primary Fax

Primary Contact Phone

Primary Contact E-mail

I Customer Service Phone*

Primary Contact Address

Payment/Check Contact

Payment/Check Fax

City I State I Zip

Payment/Check Contact Phone

Payment/Check Contact E-mail

Payment/Check Contact Address

Appears on customer notices

City I State I Zip

Legal Name

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Identify the TIN type below

0 Employer ID Number (FEIN) [_] Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) [] social Security Number (SSN)

Type of Entity
[] individual/Sole Proprietor [] corporation [] Limuted Liability Company [] Government Entity

Counties/Tribes served (Please check all that apply)

D 1-Adams
D 6-Buffalo
D 11-Columbia
[] 16-ouglas
D 21-Forest
D 26-lron
D 31-Kewaunee
D 36-Manitowoc
[]41-Monroe
[]46-Pepin
D 51-Racine
D 56-Sauk
D 61-Trempealeau
D 66-Washington
[]71-wood
D 88-Lac du

Flambeau Tribe

[]2-Ashland
D 7-Burnett
D 12-Crawford
D 17-Dunn
[] 22-Grant
D 27-Jackson
D 32-La Crosse
D 37-Marathon
D 42-0conto
D 47-Pierce
[] 52-Richland
D 57-Sawyer
D 62-Vernon
D 67-Waukesha
D 72-Menominee
[] 89-ad River

Tribe

D 3-Barron
D 8-Calumet
[]13-pane
D 18-Eau Claire
D 23-Green
D 28-Jefferson
D 33-Lafayette
D 38-Marinette
[] 43-Oneida
0 48-Polk
D 53-Rock
D 58-Shawano
D 63-Vilas
[] 68-waupaca
0 85- Red Cliff Tribe
[]91-Mole Lake/

Sokaogon Tribe

D 4-Bayfield D 5-Brown
D 9-Chippewa D 10-Clark
D 14-Dodge D 15-Door
D 19-Florence D 20-Fond du Lac
D 24-Green Lake D 25-lowa
D 29-Juneau D 30-Kenosha
D 34-Langlade D 35-Lincoln
D 39-Marquette D 40-Milwaukee
D 44-Outagamie D 45-Ozaukee
D 49-Portage D SO-Price
D 54-Rusk D 55-St Croix
D 59-Sheboygan D 60-Taylor
D 64-Walworth D 65-Washburn
[] 69-waushara []7o-wmnnebago
D 86-Stockbridge-Munsee Tribe
D 92-One,da Tribe D 94- Lac Courte Oreilles Tribe



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

3/ COUNCIL ACTION 06/15/2021w
LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of June 15, 2021.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED



Frau.nkdin
-4f w 4 S C O N S I N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Alderman Room

lune 15, 2021 -5:15 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Aoolicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Hogan, Jessica A.
2020-2021 3338 W. Birchwood Ave.New
5:20 p.m. Milwaukee, WI 53221

Walmart #1551
Extraordinary Federation of Croatian Societies, Inc. - Croatian

Entertainment & Special FestEvent
Person in Charge: Tom Krenz5:25 p.m.
Location: 9100 S 76 St (Croatian Park)
Dates of Event: July 170 10am-10pm

Operator Balles, Angela C.
2021-2022 2279 N. 63"" St.New

Wauwatosa, WI 53213
Chili's Grill & Bar

Operator Greely, Krystal L.
2020-2021 5140 3 Mile Rd.New

Franksvulle, WI 53126
Chili's Gnll & Bar

Operator Greely, Krystal L.
2021-2022 5140 3 Mle Rd.Renewal

Franksville, WI 53126
Chili's Grill & Bar

Operator Helgeland, Sierra L.
2020-2021 9471 S. 334 St.New

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreen's #05884

Operator Helgeland, Sierra L.
2021-2022 9471 S. 334 St.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreen's #05884

Operator Sanchez-Mora, Cassandra
2020-2021 915 924 St.New

Franksville, WI 53126
Walgreen's #05884

Operator Sanchez-Mora, Cassandra
2021-2022 915 924 St.Renewal

Franksville, WI 53126
Walgreen's #05884

Operator Williams, William T.
2020-2021 574 W19035 Bay Ct.New

Muskego, WI 53150
Walgreen's #05459



License Committee Agenda
Alderman Room
June 15, 2021

TvDe/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Williams, William T.
2021-2022 S74 W19035 Bay Ct.Renewal Muskego, WI 53150

Walgreen's #05459
Operator Bautch, Bradley M.
2021-2022 851 E. Forest Hill Ave.Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Country Lanes

Operator Bergner, John E.
2021-2022 8501 Parkland Dr.Renewal Franklin, WI 53132

Franklin Civic Celebration
Operator Cieslak, Tadeusz A.
2021-2022 7780 W. Grange Ave. Apt# 225Renewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Polonia Sport Club

Operator Drewek, Marcus C.
2021-2022 2957 S. 51 StreetRenewal Milwaukee, WI 53219

Root River Center
Operator Mamerow, Nyki L.
2021-2022 6306 W. Mitchell St.Renewal

West Allis, WI 53214
Irish Cottage

Operator Megna, Anthony M.
2021-2022 10321 W. Church St.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Franklin Civic Celebration

Operator Miller, Shannon P.
2021-2022 W124 S8236 North Cape Rd.Renewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Swiss Street Pub & Grill

Operator Otto, Lori A.
2021-2022 5967 Onole LaneRenewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Rawson Pub

Operator Rodriguez, Eva N.
2021-2022 5028 W. Layton Ave.Renewal

Greenfield, WI 53220
Rock Snow Park

Operator Sawinski, Brian K.
2021-2022 3551 S. 11 st.Renewal

Milwaukee, WI 53221
Franklin Civic Celebration

Operator Smith, Elyzabeth D.
2021-2022 5389 Orchard LaneRenewal

Greendale, WI 53129
Rawson Pub

Class A Combination Mega Marts, LLC
2021-2022 Dba Pick N Save #6431

7780 S Lovers Lane Rd
Joey Merchan, Agent

Page 2 of 4



LIeense Committee Agenda
Alderman Room
June 15, 2021

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class A Combination Nerankar, LLC

2021-2022 Dba Man Liquor & Indian Grocery
7158 S 76% st
Sudeep Mann, Agent

Class A Combination Sam's East, Inc
2021-2022 Dba Sam's Club

6705 S 27 St
Michelle L Peterson, Aaent

Class A Combination Ultra Mart Foods, LLC
2021-2022 Dba Pick N Save #6360

7201 S 76% St
Rick Kloth Aaent

Class B Combination, Christopher Matecki (Individually Owned)
Entertainment & Dba Buckhorn Bar & GrillAmusement

9461 S 27 St2021-2022
Christopher Matecki, Aaent/Owner

Reserve Class B FF&E, LLC
Combination Dba Hampton Inn & Suites Milwaukee/Franklin2021-2022

6901 S 76 st
Teresa D'Amato, Agent

Class B Combination, Irish Cottage of Franklin LLC
Entertainment & Dba Insh CottageAmusement

11433 W Ryan Rd2021-2022
Jenny Jenninas, Agent

Class B Combination, Little Cancun LLC
Entertainment & Dba Little Cancun RestaurantAmusement 7273A S 27 St2021-2022

Veronica Cervera, Aaent
Class B Combination Pantheon ofWisconsin Inc.

2021-2022 Dba Honey Butter Cafe
7221 S 76% St
Debbie Koutromanus. Aaent

Class B Combination, Point After LLC
Entertainment & Dba Point After Pub & GrilleAmusement 7101 S 76% st2021-2022

Darrvl Malek, Aaent
Class B Combination, Polonia Sport Club Inc

Entertainment & Dba Polonia Sport ClubAmusement
10200 W Loomis Rd2021-2022
Irene Hawkinson, Aaent

Class B Combination, R&C PUB & GRUB LLC
Entertainment & Dba Swiss Street Pub & GnllAmusement

11430 W Swiss Street2021-2022
Chrvstal Rausch, Aaent

Class B Combination, Rawson Pub, Inc
Entertainment & Dba Rawson PubAmusement

5621 W Rawson Ave2021-2022
Steven Schweitzer, Aaent

Reserve Class B Rock Snow Park LLC
Combination, Dba Rock Snow ParkEntertainment &

7011 S Ballpark DrAmusement
2021-2022 Michael R Schmitz, Aaent

Page 3 of4



License ommuttee Agenda
Alderman Room
June 15, 2021

Type/ Time Annlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class B Combination, Tuckaway Country Club

Country Club, Dba Tuckaway Country ClubEntertainment &
Amusement 6901 W Drexel Ave
2021-2022 Jennifer Jacobi, Agent
Class B Beer Marcus Cinemas ofWisconsin, LLC
2021-2022 DBA Marcus Showtime Cinema

8910 S 102nd St
Ryan C Helland, Agent

Class B Beer Sweet Basil MKE LLC
Class CWine Dba Sweet Basil2021-2022 6509 S 27% St,

Kenneth Sithy, Agent
Amusement Device National Amusement Services

Operator 2740 S 9 Pl2021-2022
Milwaukee, WI 53215
Janis Thein, Owner

Auto Salvage Al's Auto Salvage
2021-2022 10942 S 124 St

Albert Schill, Owner
People Uniting for the Franklin Health Dept - Family Movie Night, Trunk or
Betterment of Life and TreatInvestment in the
Community (PUBLIC) Fee Wavers: Park Permits

Grant Date of the Event(s): August 13th, 2021, 6-11pm (Movie
Night), October 2021, 6-8pm (Trunk or Treat);
Location: Lions Legend Park 1, Legend Dnve (Movie
Nght); Library Parking Lot, Legend Dnve, Schleuter Rd.
(Trunk or Treat)

Temporary Franklin Police Dept.-National Night Out
Entertainment & Person in Charge: Cpt. Enc StowersAmusement

Fee: Public Grant
Event: National Night Out Kick Off
Event Date: Monday, Auaust 2nd, 2021

Time
3. Adjournment
Notice 1s grven that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather mformation about an agenda Item over which they have
dec1s1on-makmng responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Coune1l wll not take formal action at thus meeting

Page 4 of 4



BLAKE PAGE



APPROVAL

- f
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
06/15/2021

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated June 2, 2021 through June 10, 2021 Nos 183309 through Nos 183512 in
the amount of$ 994,964 93 Also included m this hstmg are EFT's Nos. 4609 through Nos 4619 Library
vouchers totaling $ 2,441 24, Water Utltty vouchers totahng $24,341 64 and Property Tax refunds totaling
$ 23,517 08 Voided checks mn the amount of($ 878 20) are separately hsted

Early release disbursements dated June 2, 2021 through June 9, 2021 in the amount of $ 474,130 26 are
provided on a separate hstmg and are also included m the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

The net payroll dated June 4, 2021 Is $ 433,326 29, previously estimated at$ 422,000 Payroll deductions
dated June 4, 2021 are$ 244,631 56 previously estimated at$ 232,000

The estimated payroll for June 18, 2021 is $ 410,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$442,000.

The estimated payroll for July 2, 2021 Is $ 405,000 wth estimated deductions and matching payments of
$249,000.

Attached 1s a 11st of property tax reimbursements EFT's Nos 383 dated May 29, 2021 through June 10, 2021 in the
amount of $ 22,638 88 These payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

Approval to release June property tax settlements m the amount of $4,561,337 92

Approval to release additional 2021 Cc Celebration deposits and prepayments to various vendors, not to exceed
$20,000 Payments included mn thus distribution lusting total $59,000

Approval to release ambulance refunds when received from Andres Medical 8111mg, not to exceed$ 15,000 There
was a mscommunication between the City and Andres Medical regarding Covd related ambulance billings



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Moton approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of June 10, 2021 in the amount of$ 994,964 93 and

• Payroll dated June 4, 2021 in the amount of$ 433,326 29 and payments of the various payroll deductions in
the amount of$ 244,631 56 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated June 18, 2021 in the amount of$ 410,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 442,000, plus City matching and

• Estimated payroll dated July 2, 2021 in the amount of $ 405,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 249,000, plus City matching and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of June 10, 2021 in the amount of$ 22,638 88 and

• Approval to release June property tax settlements in the amount of $4,561,337 92 and

• Approval to release 2021 Franklin C1v1c Celebration deposits and prepayments, not to exceed$ 20,000 and

• Approval to release ambulance refunds not to exceed $ 15,000

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


	CC Mtg Packet 1of2-6-15-2021 Revised
	CC Mtg Packet 2of2-6-15-2021 Revised

